








CORPORATE PROFILE
AR

As a pioneer in the IT industry, Computer And Technologies Holdings
Limited and its subsidiaries (“C&T" or “the Group”) operate its business
on a vision to build a better world with Information Technology. Since
our establishment in 1991 and listing in the main board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 00046) in 1998, C&T has committed
to providing best-of-breed software products and cloud services from
enterprise information management to human resources management,
procurement management, retail management and cyber intelligence to
enable organisations to run their businesses and operations better. Apart
from software products, the Group also has a long-standing track record in
delivering effective IT solutions and quality services, including IT solutions
design and implementation, software development, online e-Services
as well as business processing outsourcing services, to enhance the
competitive advantages of our clients.

C&T's software products and related services have been widely adopted
across multiple industries, from local conglomerates to multinational
corporations and government organisations. Leveraging C&T's products
and services, our customers are enhancing their business and operation
covering from the basic necessities of our daily life including clothing,
food, housing and transportation to the highly-specialised and professional
services.

With decades of successful track records in delivering innovative and
mission-critical IT solutions to enterprises and government organisations,
the Group has been providing professional IT services to most of the
bureaus and departments of the Hong Kong SAR Government for
improving their public services. Over 10,000 companies have adopted our
online platform for Government Electronic Trading Services (“GETS") to
process trade-related documents.

Our credentials include the award-winning electronic tendering system
running on premises and cloud platforms supporting procurements worth
billions of dollars, the customer care and billing system that facilitates water
supplies to more than two million households in Hong Kong SAR through
our managed IT services, and the flagship HRM software that processes
payroll every month for millions of employee accounts of our clients.
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CORPORATE PROFILE (CONTINUED)
NERIEN (&)

Our staff is the most important factor for our success. We recruit and
develop high caliber professionals who are both knowledgeable and
skillful in latest technology spectrums including web-based development,
cloud services, mobile applications and cyber security. Our people are
also experienced in large-scale software implementation ranging from
project management and technical design to system development and
maintenance. Our sustained accomplishment is also a reflection of our
committed practice of IT development standards and methods in relation to
resources and project management, quality control, system implementation
and support methodologies.

Stepping up the efforts through years, C&T has built solid corporate
governance and a robust risk and compliance framework. We play our part
to build a better world for current and future generations and encourage
our staff to contribute to the local communities. The Group'’s efforts to
develop a sustainable society is witnessed by various market recognitions
over the years.

Together with our extensive business domain knowledge in enterprise
information management, human resources management, procurement
management, retail management and cyber intelligence, C&T is committed
to providing all our clients with best-of-breed software products and high
quality system development and related services and, putting all these
together, to building a better world with Information Technology for all of
us.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ng Cheung Shing (Chairman)
Cheung Wai Lam

Leung King San Sunny

Ng Kwok Keung

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Chan Yuen Shan Clara
Lee Kwok On Matthew
Poon Siu Hoi Casey*

Ting Leung Huel Stephen

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ng Kwok Keung

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Audiitor
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKER

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
1 Queen’s Road Central

Central

Hong Kong

REGISTRATION OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11
Bermuda

* Mr. Poon Siu Hoi Casey was appointed as an independent non-executive director,
a member of each of the audit committee, the investment committee, the
nomination committee and the remuneration committee with effect from 20
March 2023.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
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HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS

Level 10, Cyberport 2
100 Cyberport Road
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Codan Services Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11
Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited

17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.ctil.com
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t—-HLFE

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
—TZ-N\E —ZE—HhhE —E-FTF —ZT—— —F-C
HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million
BEATT BEBT BEBTT BEBTT HEATRT
Revenue WA 2814 2759 256.3 2655 268.7
Profit attributable to shareholders F% B & 15 4 & 34 7 68.0 559 60.1 538 47.0
HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents
il Al il AL AL
Basic earnings per share BREXRRR
('EPS") ([FRERAF]) 279 226 243 218 19.0
Interim dividends FHIRR E 90 920 50 6.0 6.5
Final dividends KHERR B 120 80 120 1.0 7.5
Special dividend R RIAR 8. - - - - 5.0
Dividends per share Bk E
('DPS") (SRR E D) 210 17.0 170 17.0 19.0
Revenue Profit attributable to shareholders EPS vs DPS
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREW|E

Dear Shareholders,

OVERVIEW

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Computer And
Technologies Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present
the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
"Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The geopolitical conflicts and the COVID-19 pandemic (the “Pandemic”)
weighed heavily on the economy of Mainland China and Hong Kong during
the reporting year. Apart from the Pandemic, the shortage of IT workforce
supply in Hong Kong also slowed down the related business development
of the local market.

Despite the challenges, the Group managed to maintain an increase in
overall turnover by HK$3.2 million, or 1.2% to HK$268.7 million (2021:
HK$265.5 million). However, the increase in direct operating costs has
outweighed the revenue growth and resulted in decrease of gross profit
by HK$7.4 million, or 4.9% to HK$145.0 million (2021: HK$152.4 million). The
gross profit margin also fell to 54.0% (2021: 57.4%).

Contributed by the 2022 Employment Support Scheme (the “ESS”) subsidies
and the improved bank interest income, the Group’s other income and
gains increased by HK$8.3 million, or 154.2% to HK$13.6 million (2021:
HKS$5.4 million). Nevertheless, the Group’s financial assets and investment
properties incurred losses of HK$2.4 million (2021: gains of HK$0.7 million)
due to bearish market valuation caused by prolonged Pandemic.

In line with the increase in amortisation of deferred development costs and
depreciation of right-of-use assets, the overall expenses went up by HK$5.2
million, or 5.2% to HK$105.7 million (2021: HK$100.4 million).

With the abovementioned, the Group’s consolidated net profit attributable
to shareholders reduced by 12.7% to HK$47.0 million (2021: HK$53.8
million). The basic earnings per share also dropped to 19.02 HK cents (2021:
21.76 HK cents).
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(E)

OVERVIEW (CONTINUED)

The Group has continuously been generating positive cash inflows from
operations and maintaining a robust financial position. The Board declared
the distribution of a final dividend of 7.5 HK cents (2021: 11 HK cents) per
ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2022. To celebrate the
Group's 25" anniversary of listing, the Board also declared the distribution
of a special dividend of 5 HK cents (2021: Nil). Counting the previously
paid interim dividend of 6.5 HK cents (2021: 6 HK cents) together with the
proposed final dividend and special dividend, the Group’s full-year dividend
aggregated 19 HK cents (2021: 17 HK cents).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Application Software
The overall operating environment of our Application Software business

remained challenging over the reporting year. While there were good
demands for application software products and services, the investment
decisions and related business activities were continuously hindered by
the Pandemic and the weak market sentiment. Furthermore, the persisting
shortage of local IT talents remained a critical constraint for timely project
delivery.

Benefiting from the continuous demand for add-on software and services
from its established customer base as well as the strong recurring
maintenance and Software as a Service (“SaaS”) income, the performance of
the Group’s Human Resources Management Software ("HRMS")!" business
in Hong Kong was stably maintained during the reporting year.

As mentioned in the interim results, the operation of the Group’s HRMS
business in Mainland China was almost frozen in April and May 2022 by
the lockdowns due to the resurgence of the Pandemic in Shanghai. While
the business managed to recover slightly in the second half of the year, the
operation was interrupted again due to the surge of infections immediately
after the PRC Government lifted the COVID-19 related control measures in
December. As a result, both the revenue and profit contributions from the
HRMS business in Mainland China recorded a considerable fall year by year.

In spite of the challenges imposed by the unfavourable business
environment, the Group’s HRMS business still managed to conclude new
orders from organisations of various sectors, including leading global
companies, premier biopharmaceutical companies and fintech companies.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(H)

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Application Software (continued)
The Group'’s enterprise software businesses attained mixed performance

amongst various product lines and reported lower revenue and profit
contributions to the Group. Nevertheless, it sustained healthy double-digit
growth in recurring maintenance and SaaS income with an expanding
customer base. The Enterprise Retail Management Software (“ERMS”)!
business performed fairly with its improved maintenance income and
new sales. The performance and contributions of CISC Limited also kept
steady during the reporting year. The Enterprise Procurement Management
Software ("EPMS")! business continued to gain repeated orders from
existing customers and captured new customers from commercial and
public sectors amidst the economic downtrend. However, its profit
contribution was impacted by increased cost for new product development
and short-term project delays due to staff turnover and shortage of timely
replacement from our related business unit as well as from our customers.
The Enterprise Information Management Software ("EIMS")!" business was
impacted by weakened market demand with reduced revenue.

During the reporting period, the Group continued to devote research and
development (“R&D") endeavour to improve its software offering with new
releases better fitting the respective market demands with improved user
experience.

Looking ahead, the management believes the endeavour invested over
the years, including the accumulated effort in product research and
development, expanded development centre in China and strengthened
project management practice, would help to mitigate the delivery
constraints over time and improve the overall performance of the Group’s
Application Software business in the coming year.

Solutions and Integration Services
Since most of the Group’s Solutions Services businesses were generated

from the HKSAR Government (the “Government”) and the Government
related organisations that were less impacted by the market sentiment,
the revenue of the Group’s Solutions and Integration Services®? business
achieved double-digit growth during the reporting year.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(E)

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Solutions and Integration Services (continued)
All business segments under the Solutions and Integration Services,

including the Managed Services?, the Development Services” and the
Integration Services?, kept their momentum in the second half of the year.
As reported in interim results, the Managed Services successfully delivered
the software enhancement project (the “Project”) for the Customer Care
and Billing System (“CCBS”") of the Water Supplies Department in June
2022. The completion of the Project is a key milestone of the Managed
Services business as the new software developed by the Group replaced
the existing software provided by a global company. Since the Group owns
the copyright of the new software, it can save substantial maintenance
cost paid to the third party after replacement. On the other hand, due to
the Project completion, the Group began the amortisation of deferred
development costs and charged HK$4.1 million to the statement of profit or
loss during the reporting year.

The performance of Development Services remained healthy in the
second half of the reporting year. Apart from recurring business from
enterprise customers and various Government departments under the
existing framework contracts, the Group was also awarded major solutions
and services contracts from a major financial authority and a public
transportation body in Hong Kong during the reporting period.

The Group's Integration Services business recorded mild growth in its
revenue and profit contributions in 2022.

e-Service and related business
The performance of the Group’s GETS business® in the second half of

the year was nearly a replication of its first half results. The business was
continually hindered by a weak external trade performance throughout
the year and resulted in negative growth in both revenue and profit
contributions.

The management believes that the full release of control measures related
to COVID-19 and full-scale reopening of all cross-border checkpoints
between Mainland China and Hong Kong will boost trading activities and
benefit our GETS business.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(H)

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Investments
Weakened market sentiment and overall underperforming investment

market had caused downward adjustments to the valuation of investment
properties and financial assets. As a result, the Group’s Investments segment
recorded loss of HK$0.1 million (2021: profit of HK$3.1 million) in 2022.

PROSPECT

The management believes that the market will gradually step out of the
Pandemic and return to normality. Leveraging its enhanced customer
base and revenue streams with strong recurring nature, the Group remains
prudently optimistic about the outlook of the businesses. To address
the shortage of the IT workforce in Hong Kong, the Group accelerated
its expansion of the Shenzhen development centre and achieved initial
success in building up its scale. The management believes that the team
in Shenzhen will gradually fill up the shortage of development resources in
Hong Kong and speed up its business expansion to the Greater Bay Area in
the future. With a proven track record and strong foothold in the industry,
the Group will endeavour to maintain a sustainable development in its
business so as to maximise the return for the shareholders.

Footnotes:

f The Group's Application Services business engages in the provision of enterprise
application software and e-business services for enterprises including the provision
of (i) enterprise application software (including SaaS product offering) with
implementation and ongoing support services for Human Resource Management,
Enterprise Procurement Management, Enterprise Information Management and
Enterprise Retail Management (collectively the "Application Software”); and (i) the
Government Electronic Trading Services ("GETS"), cloud services and other related
value-added services (collectively the “e-Service and related business”).

@ The Group's Solutions and Integration Services business includes (i) Development
Services for the provision of IT solutions implementation and application software
development (including SaaS product offering); (i) Managed Services for the
provision of IT and related operation/infrastructure outsourcing services; and (iii)
Integration Services for the provision of IT systems and network infrastructure with
related design, implementation and ongoing support services.

Bl Since 2004, the Group has been granted a licence (the "GETS Licence”) from the
Government for the provision of front-end Government Electronic Trading Services
for processing certain official trade-related documents. The Group's GETS Licence
was further renewed in early 2018 for operation of additional six years until the end
of 2024.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(E)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and gross profit
The Group recorded an increase in total revenue of HK$3.2 million, or 1.2%,

to HK$268.7 million (2021: HK$265.5 million) during the reporting year.
The change was contributed by an increase in revenue from the Group's
Solutions and Integration Services business, and a drawback by a drop in
revenue from the Application Services business.

In line with the increase in staff costs and third party licence fees arising
from software product sales, the cost of sales and services went up by
HKS$10.6 million, or 9.4% to HK$123.7 million (2021: HK$113.1 million). The
overall gross profit, being adversely impacted by the increased operating
costs, had been reduced by HKS7.4 million, or 4.9% to HK$145.0 million
(2021: HK$152.4 million). Relevantly, the gross profit margin fell to 54.0%
(2021:57.4%).

Non-operating incomes and gains, net (included other
income and gains, net, foreign exchange differences,

net and fair value gains/(losses), net)
The other income and gains materially increased by HK$8.3 million, or

154.2% to HKS$13.6 million (2021: HKS5.4 million). The increment was mainly
contributed by the Government subsidies of HK$5.7 million (2021: Nil)
granted under the ESS and the bank interest income of HK$6.0 million (2021:
HKS$2.5 million) resulting from the upward trend on interest rates in the
second half of 2022.

Conversely, the Group’s financial assets and investment properties incurred
losses of HK$2.4 million (2021: gains of HK$0.7 million) due to downward
valuations caused by the Pandemic.

Expenses
Primarily due to increase in amortisation of other intangible assets and

depreciation of right-of-use assets, the overall expenses (including the
selling and distribution expenses, the general and administrative expenses,
net, the finance cost and other expenses) went up by HK$5.2 million, or 5.2%
to HK$105.7 million (2021: HK$100.4 million).

The income tax expense was comparable to same period last year.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(H)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Net profit
Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company fell by 12.7% to

HKS$47.0 million (2021: HK$53.8 million) for the sake of increasing operating
costs. Relevantly, the net profit margin (profit for the year attributable to
shareholders of the Company divided by the revenue) also dropped to
17.5% (2021: 20.3%).

Non-current assets
Amortisation of other intangible assets and depreciation of right-of-use

assets mainly contributed to the reduction of the non-current assets by
HK$18.2 million, or 6.4% to HK$265.8 million (31 December 2021: HK$284.1
million).

Current assets
The current assets slightly increased by HK$15.4 million, or 3.9% to HK$412.7

million (31 December 2021: HK$397.2 million). The change was mainly
attributed to the increase in cash and bank balances and trade receivables.

The Group maintains strict controls over its outstanding trade receivables
and considered that the trade receivables (net of loss allowance) were all
recoverable in the foreseeable future.

Current liabilities and non-current liabilities
The Group's current and non-current liabilities slightly dropped by HK$2.3

million, or 1.4% to HK$155.4 million (31 December 2021: HK$157.7 million).
The change was mainly the net effect of the increase in trade payables
under the current liabilities and the decrease in lease liabilities under the
non-current liabilities.

Segment assets and liabilities
Segment assets of the Application Services business decreased due to

amortisation of other intangible assets while the segment liabilities of the
business dropped in line with decrease in both contract liabilities and lease
liabilities.

Segment assets of Solutions and Integration Services increased due to
increase in trade receivables while segment liabilities of the business
increased in line with increase in both trade payables and contract liabilities.

Segment assets of the Investments business dropped as both investment
properties and financial assets recorded valuation losses in 2022. The partial
disposal of financial assets in late 2022 also attributed to the decrease of
segment assets of the business.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(E)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Total equity attributable to owners of the parent maintained at HK$521.6

million (31 December 2021: HK$522.1 million) without material change.

The change was mainly the net results of the profit earned in 2022, the
purchase of shares held under the restricted share award scheme and the
payment of the 2021 final dividend and 2022 interim dividend.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity position
throughout the period under review. The Group strives to reduce exposure
to credit risk by performing ongoing credit assessments and evaluations
of the financial status of its customers. To manage liquidity risk, the Board
closely monitors the Group's liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity
structure of the Group's assets, liabilities and other commitments can meet
its funding requirements from time to time.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had pledged an investment property
with a fair value of HK$63.5 million (31 December 2021: HK$63.5 million),
listed equity securities of HK$4.2 million (31 December 2021: HK$7.5 million)
and bank balances of HK$1.0 million (31 December 2021: HK$1.2 million)
to secure certain general bank facilities including guarantee/performance
bonds facilities granted to the Group/subsidiaries of the Company in
aggregate of HK$111.9 million (31 December 2021: HK$112.1 million) of
which HK$21.3 million (31 December 2021: HK$21.8 million) have been
utilised as at 31 December 2022.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(H)

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's cash and cash equivalents were
HKS$309.8 million (31 December 2021: HK$298.4 million).

All of the Group’s on hand fundings are in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
and US dollars. The Group has not adopted any hedging policies, as these
currencies carry relatively low exchange fluctuation risks. Nevertheless, the
Group had been monitoring the foreign exchange exposures closely and
hedging any significant foreign currency exposure in order to minimise the
exchange risk should the needs arose.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no bank borrowings (31 December
2021: Nil). The Group’s current ratio representing current assets divided by
current liabilities was 3.0 (31 December 2021: 3.0) and the gearing ratio,
representing total liabilities divided by total assets, was 22.9% (31 December
2021:23.1%).

REMUNERATION POLICY AND NUMBER OF
EMPLOYEES

The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance, working
experience and prevailing market conditions. Apart from basic salary,
discretionary bonus and other incentives are offered to employees of the
Group to reward their performance and contributions.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed 361 full time employees and
12 part time employees (31 December 2021: 367 full time employees and
13 part time employees).

As at 31 December 2022, the Company operates a share award scheme for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to the employees who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations as well as to retain them
for the continual development of the Group.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(E)

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Save as disclosed in the report, the Group had no significant investments
held as at 31 December 2022.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

In January 2022, the Group completed the subscription of 10,000 new
shares issued by CISC Limited at a total consideration of HK$1,450,000 and
increased its shareholding from 40% to 80% accordingly.

Save as disclosed in the report, the Group did not have any material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries during the reporting year and up to
the date of this report.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in the report, there was no specific plan for material
investments or capital assets as at 31 December 2022.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in the report, the Group has no material contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2022.

FINAL AND SPECIAL DIVIDENDS

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of 7.5 HK
cents (2021: 11 HK cents) and a special dividend of 5 HK cents (2021: Nil) per
ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(H)

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Board has recommended a final dividend of 7.5 HK cents (2021: 11 HK
cents) and a special dividend of 5 HK cents (2021: Nil) per ordinary share
payable to shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members
of the Company on Monday, 12 June 2023. The Register of Members of the
Company will be closed from Wednesday, 31 May 2023 to Monday, 5 June

2023 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’

entitlement to attend and vote at the annual general meeting (“the AGM").
In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM to be held on Monday,
5 June 2023, all transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16
Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Tuesday, 30 May 2023. In addition, the Register of Members of the Company
will be closed from Friday, 9 June 2023 to Monday, 12 June 2023 (both days
inclusive) for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to the
proposed final and special dividends. In order to qualify for the proposed
final and special dividends, all transfers, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Thursday, 8 June 2023. During such periods, no share transfer will be
effected. The final and special dividends will be distributed on or about
Monday, 26 June 2023 to shareholders whose names appear on the Register
of Members of the Company on Monday, 12 June 2023.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(E)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an Audit Committee which was established in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purpose of reviewing
and providing supervision over the Group’s financial reporting process, risk
management and internal controls. As of 31 December 2022, the Audit
Committee comprises three independent non-executive directors of the
Company. The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2022 and the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group,
and discussed risk management and internal controls and financial
reporting matters related to the preparation of the annual results for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

APPRECIATIONS

On behalf of the Board and the management, | would like to express our
sincere thanks to all employees, shareholders, customers and business
partners for their supports to the Group during the reporting year.

By Order of the Board

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
Ng Cheung Shing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2023
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENENEEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ir. Ng Cheung Shing, aged 61, the founder and Chairman, is responsible
for the corporate strategies and business development of the Group. Ir.
Ng holds a Bachelor of Science (Honours) Degree in Computer Science
from the University of Manchester in the United Kingdom and has over 30
years of experience in IT industry. Before establishing the Company, Ir. Ng
held executive positions in companies such as Hewlett-Packard Asia Pacific
Limited and Sun Hung Kai (China) Limited. Ir. Ng is the Honorary Fellow of
Vocational Training Council and the Professional Validation Council of Hong
Kong Industries and a fellow of the Hong Kong Computer Society and the
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers. Ir. Ng was also the awardees of “Young
Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong’, “Ten Outstanding Young Persons Award
of Hong Kong”and “Directors of the Year Awards".

Ir. Ng is the brother-in-law of Mr. Leung King San, Sunny.

Mr. Cheung Wai Lam, aged 59, was the Group'’s Chief Executive Officer
("CEQ") and is now responsible for overseas business development. Mr.
Cheung has over 30 years of experience in IT and consulting business
ranging from software development to enterprise solutions implementation
and is one of the founders of Y&A Professional Services Ltd. (the "Y&A”).
Mr. Cheung joined the Group in 2006 when Y&A became a subsidiary of
the Group. Before Y&A, he held various consulting positions in IBM in both
Hong Kong and Australia. Mr. Cheung holds a Bachelor Degree in Computer
Science and an Executive Master Degree in Business Administration
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He has also completed the
Management of Technology Program at the Centre for Executive Education,
University of California Berkeley.

Mr. Leung King San Sunny, aged 61, is responsible for finance and
administration strategies of the Group. Mr. Leung has over 30 years of
experience in finance, administration and planning in the IT industry. Before
joining the Group, Mr. Leung held senior management positions in IBM and
its associated company in Asia Pacific. Mr. Leung holds a Bachelor's Degree
in Business Administration from the Simon Fraser University in Canada.

Mr. Leung is the brother-in-law of Ir. Ng Cheung Shing.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EEREREEE(E)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Ng Kwok Keung, aged 49, is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group
and the Secretary of the Company. He has over 20 years of experience
in accounting, auditing, finance and business advisory. Before joining
the Group, he was a financial controller of a Hong Kong listed company
and worked as a manager of assurance and advisory business services
department of an international accounting firm. Mr. Ng graduated from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Bachelor of Arts Degree
in Accountancy and is a Certified Public Accountant of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Chan Yuen Shan Clara, aged 51, joined the Board on 28 January
2022. She is the Vice-Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer and an Executive
Director of Lee Kee Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 637), responsible for
proposing strategies and ensuring the implementation of the strategies and
policies of the group. In 2018, Ms. Chan was awarded the Meal of Honour
by HKSAR Government. She is a member of the Lead and Zinc Committee
of the London Metal Exchange and a member of the Board Risk Committee
of LME Clear Limited. She is also a member of the Hong Kong Housing
Authority and its Subsidised Housing Committee, the Operations Review
Committee (ORC) of Independent Commission Against Corruption, the
Business Facilitation Advisory Committee of Office of the Financial Secretary
of the HKSAR, the Director of Nano and Advanced Materials Institute
Limited, the Council Member of Hong Kong Productivity Council and the
Executive Deputy Chairman of Federation of Hong Kong Industries. Ms.
Chan holds a Master of Social Science Degree in Global Political Economy
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and is an Industrial Fellow of
WMG at the University of Warwick.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EEREREEE(A)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Professor Lee Kwok On Matthew, aged 62, PhD, joined the Board in
1998. He is Vice-President (Development & External Relations) and Chair
Professor of Information Systems & E-Commerce at the City University of
Hong Kong. Professor Lee is Chairman of the Hong Kong Committee for
Pacific Economic Cooperation, and a member of the Hong Kong Deposit
Protection Board. He has substantial senior management experience and IT
related research expertise. Professor Lee is an independent non-executive
director of Glory Sun Financial Group Limited (Stock Code: 1282). He holds
the following U.K. university degrees: BEng (first-class honours) in electronic
engineering & MBA in business studies (University of Sheffield); MSc in
computation (University of Oxford); PhD in computer science (University
of Manchester); LLB and LLM in commercial & corporate law (University
of London). He is a charter engineer of the UK Engineering Council and a
professional member of the British Computer Society. Professor Lee has
been admitted as a barrister-at-law in Hong Kong and England & Wales.

Mr. Poon Siu Hoi Casey, aged 65, joined the board on 20 March 2023.
Mr. Poon has over 30 years of experience in the IT industry and has held
various leadership roles in renowned businesses of technology solutions
and outsourcing services such as Hewlett Packard Hong Kong Limited and
Oracle Systems Hong Kong Limited. He holds a Bachelor of Science Degree
in Electronic and Electrical Engineering from The University of Surrey.

Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen, MH, FCCA, FCPA (Practising), ACA,
CTA(HK), FHKIoD, aged 69, joined the Board in 2004. Mr. Ting is an
accountant in public practice as a partner of Messrs. Ting Ho Kwan & Chan,
Certified Public Accountants since 1987. He is currently a non-executive
director of Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited (Stock Code:
116) and holds independent non-executive directorship in six other listed
companies namely, China SCE Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1966),
Dongyue Group Limited (Stock Code: 189), New Silkroad Culturaltainment
Limited (Stock Code: 472), Texhong International Group Limited (Stock
Code: 2678), Tong Ren Tang Technologies Company Limited (Stock Code:
1666) and Tongda Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 698).
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
EENSNEEE(E)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yeung Sai Cheong Steve, aged 57, the Group's Senior Vice President,
is in charge of the corporate development as well as Application Software
business units of the Group. Mr. Yeung joined the Group in 1998 and has
over 30 years of experience in IT general management. He graduated from
the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Science Degree in Computer
Studies and received a Master Degree in Business Administration from the
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.

Ms. Ng Ka Yan Karen, aged 46, the Group's General Manager of enterprise
software, leads the operations and growth of the Group's enterprise
software businesses. Having joined the Group in 2019, Ms. Ng brought with
her 20 years of extensive business experience from international software
and solution companies. Ms. Ng graduated from the University of Hong
Kong with a Bachelor Degree in Arts and a Master Degree in Science.

Mr. Poon Chi Shing Anthony, aged 50, the Group's Vice President, is
in charge of the Solutions Services business units of the Group. Mr. Poon
joined the Group in 2003 and has over 20 years of experience in [T industry.
Mr. Poon graduated from the City University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor
Degree in Computing Science.

Dr. Zhong Shi, James, aged 47, the Group’s Head of Product Research
& Development, joined the Group in 2022 and has more than 20 years
of hands-on experience in information technology, including 12 years of
solid experience in a software development life cycle management role
and 6 years of dedication to semantic NLP and Python machine learning
techniques. He obtained his Ph.D. and M.Sc. from the Department of
Computer Science, School of Informatics at the University of Edinburgh,
United Kingdom.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard of corporate
governance within a sensible framework with an emphasis on the principles
of integrity, transparency and accountability. The board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”) believes that good corporate governance is essential
to the success of the Company and to the enhancement of shareholders’
value.

The Board opined that the Company has complied with the code provision
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG code”) as stipulated in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) during the reporting
year except on the deviations noted below.

The CG code provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer ("CEQ") should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual.

The Board considered that the powers and authorities have not been
concentrated as all major decisions have been made in consultation with
the Board and appropriate Board committees, as well as top management.
In addition, there are at least three independent non-executive directors
on the Board offering their experience, expertise, independent advice and
views from different perspectives. The Board is therefore of the view that
there are adequate balance of power and safeguards in place.

The Board reviewed the scope of operation and management structure of
the Group and considered the current organisation structure was effective
and there is no imminent need to appoint CEO. However, the Board will
continue to review the effectiveness of the Group’s corporate governance
structure and will consider whether any change, including the appointment
of CEO, are necessary.

The Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure
that its corporate governance practices are similar to those provided in the
CG Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2022, the Board comprises four executive directors and
three independent non-executive directors ("INEDs"):

Executive Directors:

Ir. Ng Cheung Shing (Chairman)
Mr. Cheung Wai Lam

Mr. Leung King San Sunny

Mr. Ng Kwok Keung

INEDs:

Ms. Chan Yuen Shan Clara
Professor Lee Kwok On Matthew
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen

INEDs constitute more than one-third of the Board. The Company has
received from each INED a confirmation of his independence pursuant to
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers that all INEDs are independent. One of the INEDs is a professional
accountant, which is in compliance with the requirement of the Listing
Rules.

One-third of the directors shall retire from office at every annual general
meeting and all directors (including INEDs) are subject to retirement by
rotation once every three years in accordance with the bye-laws of the
Company (“Bye-laws”) as amended from time to time and the CG Code.
Retiring directors are eligible for re-election at the annual general meeting
at which they retire. Any director appointed to fill a causal vacancy is subject
to re-election at the next annual general meeting of the Company. Separate
resolutions have been proposed for the election of each director.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
DEERRE ()

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Board nomination policy
The Nomination Committee shall endeavour to find individuals of high

integrity who have a solid record of accomplishment in their chosen
fields and who possess the qualifications, qualities and skills to effectively
represent the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.
Candidates will be selected for their ability to exercise good judgement, and
to provide practical insights and diverse perspectives. Candidates also will
be assessed in the context of the then-current composition in the Board,
the operating requirements of the Group. In conducting this assessment,
the Nomination Committee will, in connection with its assessment and
recommendation of candidates for director, consider diversity (including but
not limited to gender, age, ethnicity, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, industry knowledge and length of service)
and such other factors as it deems appropriate given the then-current and
anticipated future needs of the Board and the Company, and to maintain a
balance of perspectives, qualifications, qualities and skills on the Board.

The Company shall review and reassess the nomination policy and its
effectiveness on a regular basis or as required.

Nomination process
The Nomination Committee shall assess whether any vacancy on the Board

has been created or is expected on a regular basis or as required.

The Nomination Committee utilises various methods for identifying
director candidates, including recommendations from Board members,
management and professional search firms. All director candidates,
including incumbents and candidates nominated by the shareholders,
are evaluated by the Nomination Committee based upon the director
qualifications. While director candidates will be evaluated on the same
criteria through review of resume, personal interview and performance of
background checks.

The Nomination Committee retains the discretion to establish the relative
weighing of such criteria, which may vary based on the composition,
gender, age, knowledge, skills and experiences of the collective Board rather
than on the individual candidate for the purpose of diversity perspectives
appropriate to the requirement of the Group's business.

Exg (A

EXgRAEE

REZBEEHNRYEHRETELERZRS
ZEHEERENLBRER  BE Mk
MALTIMARRABNESRTE  UABRERAR
AIREBERNRERTZ REZETERE
AR BEBMFEEREANHEG S  REE
BRkETAHAERRNGEN ERNEEGNE
MRBMAKRENXBHFR - RETHBNE
B REAZEE@TEZRAMESHREAN
EREBEERE TEEEFEXNENZHE(R
BETERNMIR - Fik Rk XERBEES
BELR  RERTENBMREFH) RER
REAEEERARAER NIEHARKE R
EMABREZ URFEZGNEH BB
BE RN T -

ARFIEEHINAFTEHEHMEHTMIE
FRR R EYE

RERF
REZERATHIAREEHTHEEERE
BRI R AT A B AT 2 R

REZBERBZENAREEZTAE B
KEEFEXE FEEREXBEBAQANE
# o EHEFREA(BRERRREENENLSE
REEAN) THREZZEQERBEETERET
Al - MEFREABRARSERZFMGE
BRBEAEERE BEARSSHE -

REZBEREBITHEMEEBEERNERN - &
RATRE S R EREFT S (MIFERERIREAN)
EVAE R MER  FE - ANE REE KRt
TRAEHHEAS A EEERTRKHAE -

RBMESKEEAR AT —T - _FFRH

25



26

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
DEERRE ()

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Selection criteria
The Nomination Committee considers the following qualifications at a

minimum to be required of any Board members in recommending to the
Board potential new board members, or the continued service of existing
members:

broad experience in business and the ability to provide insights and
practical wisdom based on their experience and expertise;

the highest professional and personal ethics and in compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

with sufficient time to carry out their duties effectively and to make
contributions to the Company’s success and such other factors
as it may deem are in the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders; and

ability to develop a good working relationship with other Board
members and to assist and support management of the Group.

Board Diversity Policy
The Company noted that that people from different backgrounds and with

different professional and life experience are likely to approach problems
in different ways and accordingly, members of the Board with diverse
backgrounds will bring different concerns and questions to the table, and
allow the Board to consider a wider range of options and solutions when
deciding on corporate issues and formulating policies for the Group.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element
in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development. In designing the Board’s composition, the Board diversity has
been considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The Board appointments will
continue to be made on a merit basis and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERRE (R)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Board Diversity Policy (continued)
The composition of the Board is reviewed on an annual basis by the

Nomination Committee to ensure that the Board has the approximate
mix of expertise and experience, and collectively possesses the necessary
core competence for informed decision making and effective functioning.
The Company adopted its own Board Diversity Policy and recognises the
benefits of having diversity in the composition of the Board.

The board composition was also evaluated by reference to, among other
things, the gender, age, educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service of each director, against the
Company’s business model and specific needs.

As at 31 December 2022, the Board comprises seven directors and is
characterised by great diversity, whether considered in terms of gender,
age, length of service, educational background, professional experience,
skills and knowledge.

Composition of the diversified Board
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Age group Length of service
FRAH PR 4 5
Less than 5t010 10years

Name of director 40to 49 50to059 60to 69 5years years or more
ESfE Gender W0EHF  S0E59E  60Z69K SHSE 5E108 10EFHE
Ir.Ng Cheung Shing REBRETED Male 3 v v
Mr. Cheung Wai Lam RERLE Male 5 v v
Mr. Leung King San Sunny RENRL Male 5 v v
Mr. Ng Kwok Keung RE®REE Mae 3 v v
Ms. Chan Yuen Shan Clara R+ Femadle X v %
Professor Lee Kok On Matthew — FEIZHE Male 8 v v
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen TREXE Male 5 v %

R ZGEEARAT - _FFH
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Exg (A
ZritEEENAR (&)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Composition of the diversified Board (continued)

Professional experience

Educational background

BEER BELER
Accounting
Name of director Accountancy Law IT/Others  and finance Law IT/Others
ERRE/ ERRE/
EEpsg =6 hR Hit &fkem ER Hitr
Ir.Ng Cheung Shing REBFRETRERM v 4
Mr. Cheung Wai Lam RERLE % v
Mr. Leung King San Sunny REMEE 4 v
Mr. Ng Kwok Keung REBLAE 4 v
Ms. Chan Yuen Shan Clara BR o3 2o £ 4 v
Professor Lee Kwok On Matthew — ZEEZ#H K v v v
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen TREXAE v v

The Company believes diversity is important to enhance the Board'’s
effectiveness by encouraging a diversity of perspectives and to maintain
high standards of corporate governance. The Company will continue to
monitor and develop new objectives for implementing and achieving
improved diversity on the Board as and when it considers appropriate with
regard to the specific needs of the Company from time to time.

The directors’ biographical information is set out in the “Directors and Senior
Management” section on pages 19 to 22. Two executive directors, Ir. Ng
Cheung Shing and Mr. Leung King San Sunny, are brother-in-law. Save as
disclosed, there is no relationship between each of the Board members.

The Board has the ultimate decision on the Group’s overall strategy, annual
budget, annual and interim results, appointment or retirement of directors,
significant contracts and transactions as well as other significant policies
and financial matters. The Board has delegated the daily operations and
administration to the Group’s management.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERRE (R)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Composition of the diversified Board (continued)
According to the division of responsibilities between the Chairman and

CEO approved by the Board, the Chairman is mainly responsible for long
term strategic development of the Group as well as the operation of the
Board, to make sure that the Board is run in the best interests of the Group
and all the Board meetings are effectively planned and carried out. CEO
mainly focuses on the business operations of the Group, assists the Board to
formulate strategies for the Group and to make sure they are implemented
successfully. CEO is fully responsible to the Board for overall business
operations of the Group.

Every director is entitled to have access to Board papers and related
materials and has access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary. In addition, every director has separate and independent access
to the Company’s senior management to facilitate them to make informed
decisions. All directors, in the discharge of their duties, are allowed to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at a
reasonable cost to be borne by the Company.

The Company has not established any committee responsible for the
corporate governance function of the Group and the function has
been collectively performed by the Board. The Board acknowledges the
overseeing of the corporate governance function by the Board collectively.

During the year, the Board has reviewed and monitored the training and
continuous professional development of directors and senior management.
The Board has also reviewed and ensured compliance of the relevant legal
and regulatory requirements, the code of conducts, the CG Code and the
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors should participate in continuous professional development to
ensure their contributions to the Board remains informed and relevant.
Each newly appointed director is provided with necessary induction and
information to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the Company’s
operations and businesses as well as his responsibilities under the relevant
statutes, laws, rules and regulations.

Directors’ training is a continuing process. The Company updates directors
on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices. Directors
are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. In addition, all directors are
provided with monthly updates on the Group’s performance, position and
prospects to enable the Board as a whole to discharge their duties.

During the year, all directors, namely Ir. Ng Cheung Shing, Mr. Cheung Wai
Lam, Mr. Leung King San Sunny, Mr. Ng Kwok Keung, Ms. Chan Yuen Shan
Clara, Professor Lee Kwok On Matthew and Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen,
have participated in appropriate continuous professional development,
including the training provided by the Company on 30 November 2022, to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERRE (R)

BOARD MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

In order to achieve a high standard of corporate governance, the Directors (in
person or through electronic means of communication) held at least four
regularly meetings at approximately quarterly interval to discuss the overall
strategy as well as the operational matters and financial performance of the
Group. Attendance of each director at the Board meetings is set out below:

EXEERRHERR

RERRKEZLEER EF(RIHFEIE
BETBASTN)ZLBITHREHEE 0T
FoR IwmAREEERBUANELEERE
MBERR -BEFHFEFTEIRIBENET
mr

Number of meetings
attended/eligible

to attend
HESRRE
A R E
Executive directors: HITES:
Ir. Ng Cheung Shing (Chairman) REBLETREM(EE) 5/5
Mr. Cheung Wai Lam REREE 5/5
Mr. Leung King San Sunny R2FTAE 5/5
Mr. Ng Kwok Keung REI® LA 5/5
INEDs: BYFHITES:
Mr. Ha Shu Tong (retired on 1 June 2022) BRIEEE (RS ZFA—HEMF) 2/2
Ms. Chan Yuen Shan Clara ek g5 3 22 &
(appointed on 28 January 2022) (RZBE-_—F—AZ+N\HEZMT) 4/4
Professor Lee Kwok On Matthew ZETHIE 5/5
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen TREEA 5/5

The Chairman also met with the INEDs without the presence of other
directors on 30 November 2022.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To strengthen the functions of the Board, there are several Board
Committees namely, the Audit Committee, the Investment Committee,
the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Risk
Management Committee formed under the Board, with each performing
different functions.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
DEERRE ()

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 24 April 1999. During the
reporting period, the Committee comprises of four INEDs, namely, Mr.
Ting Leung Huel Stephen, Ms. Chan Yuen Shan Clara, Mr. Ha Shu Tong and
Professor Lee Kwok On Matthew. Mr. Ting is currently the chairman of the

Audit Committee.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include:

to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the external auditor, and any questions of its resignation of

dismissal;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance

with applicable standards;

to develop and implement policy on engaging an external auditor to

supply non-audit services;

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the Company’s

relations with external auditor;

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
annual report and accounts, half-year report and to review significant

financial reporting judgments contained in them;

to review the Company’s financial controls, risk management and

internal control systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control systems with
management to ensure that management has performed its duty to

have an effective risk management and internal control systems;

to review the financial and accounting policies and practices of the

Group; and

to review the external auditor's management letter, any material
queries raised by the auditor to management about accounting
records, financial accounts or systems of control and management’s

responses.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERRE (R)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The Audit Committee shall meet (in person or through electronic means of
communication) at least twice every year. Attendance of each director at
the meeting is set out below:

EREEE (B)

ERZBEBFARTRD
FEBREFAEATN)
BEREIIMT

mRE#E(RE
CREZEHFEGHEZ

Number of meetings
attended/eligible

to attend
HESBERE
] R E

INEDs: BYFHTES:
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen TREEA 2/2

Ms. Chan Yuen Shan Clara R 1o 3Hf} 22 =+

(appointed on 28 January 2022) (RZZ_—F—A=-+\BEZEF) 2/2
Mr. Ha Shu Tong (retired on 1 June 2022) ERREERE (RS __FA—HEMF) 1/1
Professor Lee Kwok On Matthew e e 2/2

During the year, the Audit Committee, among other matters, reviewed and
provided supervision over the Group's financial reporting processes, risk
management and internal control systems, reviewed interim and annual
results of the Group and met with the internal and external auditors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 22 September 2004.
During the reporting period, the Committee comprises of four INEDs,
namely, Ms. Chan Yuen Shan Clara, Professor Lee Kwok On Matthew, Mr. Ha
Shu Tong and Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen and two executive directors
namely, Ir. Ng Cheung Shing and Mr. Leung King San Sunny. Professor Lee is
currently the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include:

to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all directors and senior management remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy;

to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;

to determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior management
and the terms of their service contracts;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED) FHEESE (8)
to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non- . MIERTEFZHeRESTSREES

executive directors;

to consider and approve the grant of shares and share options to . RIEAR NI RENET 8 R AR T &l
eligible participants pursuant to the share award scheme and share ZREMEMEGEREERDERN RER
option scheme of the Company; T
to review and approve compensation payable to executive directors . B RERRTEZERSREEAER
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or HERSRIEBE R B MBS 2 8EE -
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms NRZEEERS BN —3 5REE
and is otherwise fair and not excessive; and HENER— BETELATFEERT
Bia% Rk
to ensure that no director or any of its associates is involved in . BROEWESIEAMABRBEATTBLH
deciding his own remunerations. EEERS ZHM -
The Remuneration Committee shall meet (in person or through electronic THEEeBF AR —RXeE FHHH
means of communication) at least once every year. Attendance of each FBREBEFBATRN) SEFHESH
director at the meeting is set out below: BERFHINOT :

Number of meetings
attended/eligible

to attend
HESBERE
a H R E
Executive directors: HTESE:
Ir. Ng Cheung Shing REBLAETZAM 2/2
Mr. Leung King San Sunny BT E 2/2
INEDs: BYFHTES:
Ms. Chan Yuen Shan Clara ek 15 3 22+
(appointed on 28 January 2022) (RZZE_—_F—A=-+/\BHEZT) 2/2
Mr. Ha Shu Tong (retired on 1 June 2022) BERREE(RZEZZFA—HEMF) 0/0
Professor Lee Kwok On Matthew e € 2/2
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen TREEA 2/2
During the year, the work performed by the Remuneration Committee FA - FHZEETCITIEREERIAEE
included the review of the Group’s remuneration policy for its executive CHOTEENSREEETHNER EEFES
directors and senior management, determined their levels of remuneration, ZEBKTE RMESSREBEHEBLIFRITE
make recommendations to the Board on the INED's remuneration and EHMEREARERIBR G EBRTEEE
approved the purchase of shares pursuant to the share award scheme. f&1n o
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERRE (R)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management
Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG code, the remuneration of senior

management by band for the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out
below:

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000

Further particulars in relation to directors'remuneration and the five highest
paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the
Listing Rules are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 22 September 2004. During
the reporting period, the Committee comprises of four INEDs, namely, Ms.
Chan Yuen Shan Clara, Professor Lee Kwok On Matthew, Mr. Ha Shu Tong
and Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen and two executive directors namely, Ir.
Ng Cheung Shing and Mr. Leung King San Sunny. Professor Lee is currently
the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include:

to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships;

FMEES (H)

EEREREERE 2 FHMH
BREBECEERTRBEISKETAMG B2
T _HF+ A=t HULEFERREEEMX
B FMMBERHIIMT -

Number of Individuals
A

1,000,001 78 7T & 1,500,000 78 7T 3
2,000,001 7 7T £ 2,500,000 78 7T 2

R EMARAIM 6 BTREZESHIMER
HEREHHER ZFBENBEMEs k-
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

to review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, and review the
measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing the
Board Diversity Policy, and monitor the progress on achieving the
objectives, and make disclosure of its review results in the Corporate
Governance Report annually;

to assess the independence of INEDs and to ensure at least one-third
of the Board should be INEDs; in that the Nomination Committee
should always have in mind the factors set out in the Listing Rules;

where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as an
INED at the general meeting, the Nomination Committee shall set out
in the circular to shareholders of the Company and/or explanatory
statement accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting:

the process used for identifying the individual and why the
Board believes the individual should be elected and the
reasons why it considers the individual to be independent;

ii. if the proposed INED will be holding their seventh (or more)
listed company directorship, why the Board believes the
individual would still be able to devote sufficient time to the
Board;

ii.  the perspectives, skills and experience that the individual can
bring to the Board; and

iv.  how the individual contributes to diversity of the Board;

to determine the policy for nomination of directors. The policy for
the nomination of directors of the Nomination Committee shall be
disclosed in the annual report of the Company; and

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of directors and succession planning for directors, in
particular the Chairman and the CEO.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

REZEE (A)

BRNEEEREZTERE (MER) &
BAEFEREFENEZITLBEMH
ENAGTEREMEREEAREFED
EERRESAWBERT A

AHZBM FFITE S 2B M R ERE D
A TEFTRBIUFRTES  REZR
EeRFEARE LMARAMHESE

EEFSIEARRAS LIEE RS
EMBERUATRABIIFNTEER 1=
HEZBEARBRRNE B EMBEMORE
B, SRR KR FTFIBAAT S

REVEZBALIHNRE BEFE
RREEEZZALTNERARE
RRZBALTBBEILALTHRRA

i MREEBIUIFRTERTHLES
EHR(EUE) EMRANES &
EgAREZBALTDARARS
RERHESFENREA

i. BMBAATAREFEHRMENE
AR REERER &

iv. EREANTHA{EEESE
1t

ils)3
il

KB %t

ETEFRABR -RELZBEFILAB
MEERABERER AR B FRAME
K

REFEERENEE UREF (LR
REFRIBAR) BEHHAEFER
i -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERRE (R)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The Nomination Committee shall meet (in person or through electronic
means of communication) at least once every year. Attendance of each
director at the meeting is set out below:

REZEE (A)

REZBEBFARTRI —REEZ (RaH
FHEBETRAIRN)  BEFLFRERZ
BRI

Number of meetings
attended/eligible

to attend
HESBRE
] H R E

Executive directors: BITES:
Ir. Ng Cheung Shing RERBEETLRRM 2/2
Mr. Leung King San Sunny REFTAE 2/2
INEDs: BYFHTES:
Ms. Chan Yuen Shan Clara ek 150 3} 22 &=

(appointed on 28 January 2022) (R—BE-_—F—F -1+ N\BEZMT) 2/2
Mr. Ha Shu Tong (retired on 1 June 2022) EREEE(RZE-__FA—BEM) 0/0
Professor Lee Kwok On Matthew R 2/2
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen TREEA 2/2

During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the diversity,
structure, size and composition of the Board, assessed the independence of
INEDs and made recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
reappointment of directors and succession planning for chief executive of
the Company.

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The Investment Committee was established on 17 May 2012. During the
reporting period, the Committee comprises of an executive director, Ir. Ng
Cheung Shing and two INEDs, Mr. Ha Shu Tong and Professor Lee Kwok On
Matthew. Ir. Ng is currently the chairman of the Investment Committee.

The Committee is responsible for, inter alia, identifying investment
opportunities, reviewing investment proposals and making investment
decisions; monitoring the performance of investments; reviewing the
soundness of existing investment portfolio; devising investment guidelines
and strategies for approval of the Board; and executing investment
guidelines approved by the Board. The investment strategy of the Company
is to exercise prudent treasury investment and management involving
diversification of low to moderate risk investments with a view to counter
the depreciating value of cash and to generate stable income to support
existing business operations.

FA - REEZEQCRIESINSITN BB -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

During the year, the Investment Committee executed the investment
guidelines approved by the Board, reported the performance of
investments and reviewed the investment strategies with all directors in the
Board meeting.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee was established on 17 August 2016.
During the reporting period, the Committee comprises of three executive
directors namely, Mr. Leung King San Sunny, Mr. Cheung Wai Lam and Mr.
Ng Kwok Keung and two INEDs, namely, Ms. Chan Yuen Shan Clara and Mr.
Ha Shu Tong. Mr. Leung is currently the chairman of the Risk Management
Committee.

The principal duties of the Risk Management Committee include:

to review the Group's risk management (“RM”) and internal control
("IC") strategies, policies and guidelines and submit them to the Audit
Committee for approval;

to review the Group's risk framework and approved risk policies,
standards and limits within the overall appetite and tolerance
approved by the Board;

to review the Group's processes for determining risk appetite
tolerance, monitoring compliance with approved risk tolerance levels
and policies and the resultant action in respect of policy breaches;

to review the Group's compliance policies and submit them to the
Board and/or Audit Committee for approval;

to review the Group’s key risks and submit to the Audit Committee
for approval half-yearly;

to report to the Audit Committee that, to the best of the Risk
Management Committee’s belief, the disclosures made in the annual
report on its activities, the risk governance and related sections are
fair, balanced and understandable;

to consider issues raised by external auditors, the Audit Committee
or any member of the Board who has lodged a request for a meeting;
and
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERRE (R)

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

to liaise with the chairman of the Audit Committee to determine
on a case by case basis which Risk Management Committee takes
responsibility for undertaking deep dive reviews and keeping the
Audit Committee updated on any relevant findings from reviews
requested.

The Risk Management Committee shall meet (in person or through
electronic means of communication) at least twice every year. Attendance
of each director at the meeting is set out below:

EREEREESE (&)

MEBEZZEEERUABESEFTHRAR
EEZEeRERT ZER UMD R
waf  BRABFZZ B @B MEFIARME
o

RREEZBe8FARTRIMAERE (R
GHELEBEFRASN) JEELES
& IERESIT

Number of meetings
attended/eligible

to attend
HESERE
Al R E
Executive directors: HITES
Mr. Leung King San Sunny REFEE 2/2
Mr. Cheung Wai Lam SRIEFR I A 2/2
Mr. Ng Kwok Keung R B8 %4 2/2
INED: BYFHTES:
Ms. Chan Yuen Shan Clara ok 150 3 22 4
(appointed on 28 January 2022) (R—BE-_—F—F -1+ N\BEZT) 2/2
Mr. Ha Shu Tong (retired on 1 June 2022) ERREE(RZEZZFA—HEMT) /1

During the year, the Risk Management Committee reviewed the Group’s
risk framework and key risks, RM and IC reports and submitted them to the
Audit Committee for approval.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

INEDS

During the year under review, the Board at all times met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three INEDs with
one INED possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each INED of
his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on
the contents of such confirmation, the Company still considers all of the
INEDs to be independent.

The INEDs bring a wide range of business and financial expertise,
experiences and independent judgment to the Board. Through active
participation in Board meetings, taking the lead in managing issues
involving potential conflict of interests and serving on Board Committees, all
INEDs make various contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

INED WHO HAS SERVED FOR MORE THAN NINE
YEARS

Professor Lee Kwok On Matthew and Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen have
served as INEDs for more than nine years. The future appointment of these
two INEDs without the approval by way of passing a separate resolution of
the shareholders is regarded as a deviation from Code Provision B.2.3 of the
CG Code.

To comply with this CG Code Provision, all these two INEDs had retired
at the previous annual general meeting of the Company and offered
themselves for re-election.

The Board is of the opinion that all these two directors remain independent
notwithstanding the length of their services and believes that their valuable
knowledge and experience in the Group’s business and their general
business acumen continue to generate significant contribution to the
Board, the Company and the shareholders as a whole. The Company’s
circular to be despatched to shareholders of the Company in April 2023 will
contain the biographical information of Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen and
the detailed reasons behind the Board's recommendation of his continuing
appointment as an INED.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERRE (R)

INED WHO HAS SERVED AS DIRECTORS FOR
MORE THAN SEVEN LISTED COMPANIES

The CG code provision B.3.4(b) stipulates that where the Board proposes
to elect or re-elect an INED (who will be holding their seventh (or more)
directorship, the Board should explain why such individual would still be
able to devote sufficient time to the board in the relevant shareholders’
circular.

Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen has served as directors for more than seven
listed companies. He has maintained his profession in various directorships
of listed companies he served, and has actively participated in the Board
meetings and various committees held by the Company in the past, and so
his time committed for his director’s duties is not affected. The Board agreed
that he has devote sufficient time to perform his director’s duties.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for dealings in securities of the
Company by the directors. Based on a specific enquiry of the Company’s
directors, the directors have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code throughout the year.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Group adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) and is
disclosed as below.

The Dividend Policy is to allow its shareholders to participate in the
Company'’s profits whilst to retain adequate reserves for future growth.
The Company may consider whether to pay dividends, if any, twice a year,
which are the interim dividend and final dividend. The Board may declare
special dividends in addition to such dividends as it considers appropriate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

DIVIDEND POLICY (CONTINUED)

Factors for consideration
In determining/recommending the frequency, amount and form of any

dividend in any financial year/period, the Board shall consider the following
factors:

the actual and expected financial results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”);

economic conditions and other internal or external factors that may
have an impact on the business or financial performance and position
of the Group;

the Group’s business strategies, including future cash commitments
and investment needs to sustain the long-term growth aspect of the
business;

the current and future operations, liquidity position and capital
requirements of the Group; and

any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The Board may, based on the above criteria, declare interim dividend (as
it considers appropriate) and recommend final dividend (subject to the
approval by the shareholders in a general meeting). The Company considers
that the dividend payout ratio may vary from year to year and there is no
assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any given
period.

Subject to the Bye-laws and applicable laws and regulations, dividends may
be paid in cash or be satisfied wholly or partly in the form of allotment of
shares of the Company. The Board may also consider the issuance of bonus
shares on a basis permitted by the applicable laws and regulations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERRE (R)

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS'
RIGHTS

Information of the Company and the Group are delivered to its shareholders
through a number of channels, which includes annual report, interim report,
announcements and circulars. The latest information of the Company and
the Group together with the published documents are also available on the
Company’s website.

The Company's annual general meeting provides a useful platform for direct
communication between the Board and shareholders. Separate resolutions
are proposed on each substantially separate issue at the general meetings.

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to
appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if
they are unable to attend the meetings.

The process of the Company’s general meeting will be monitored and
reviewed on a regular basis, and, if necessary, changes will be made to
ensure that shareholders’' needs are best served.

The annual general meeting in 2022 (“the AGM") was held on 1 June 2022.
All directors and the Company’s external auditor attended the AGM (in
person or through electronic means of communication).

According to Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the "Act”)
and Bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws of the Company, shareholders holding
in aggregate not less than 10% of the paid-up capital of the Company
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the
Company, to request a special general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition, and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition.

Any number of shareholders representing not less than 5% of the total
voting rights of the Company on the date of the requisition or not less than
100 shareholders of the Company are entitled to put forward a proposal for
consideration at a general meeting of the Company. Shareholders should
follow the requirements and procedures as set out in Section 79 of the Act
for putting forward such proposal at a general meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS'
RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

In relation to the shareholders communication, the shareholders can
contact the Company Secretary or the Senior Vice President of Corporate
Development and Communications by email to InvestorRelation@ctil.com
or by mail to Level 10, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road, Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Save as disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 28 April 2022, there
was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during the year
of review.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group and have adopted the accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and complied with the requirements of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (which include all Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

During the reporting year, the management has provided such explanation
and information to the Board as necessary to enable the Board to make
an informed assessment of the financial information and position of the
Group put forward to the Board for approval. The directors are not aware
of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s independent auditors are
set out in the Independent Auditors’'Report on pages 113 to 121.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
DEERRE ()

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal controls of the Company, including
material financial, operational and compliance controls, risk management
functions and particularly the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programs and budget of the accounting and financial
reporting function. The Board, assisted by the Audit Committee and the
Risk Management Committee, is required to assess the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems on an ongoing basis.
Appropriate policies and control procedures have been designed and
established to ensure that assets are safeguarded against improper use or
disposal, relevant rules and regulations are adhered to and complied with,
reliable financial and accounting records are maintained in accordance with
relevant accounting standards and regulatory reporting requirements, and
key risks that may impact on the Group's performance are appropriately
identified and managed. These control procedures are designed to manage,
rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and
such procedures can only provide reasonable, and not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or losses.

Effective risk management is a fundamental part of the Group’s business
strategy. Recognising and managing risk is central to the business and to
protect the shareholders’interests and value. The Company operates within
overall guidelines and specific parameters set by the Board. Each transaction
is comprehensively analysed to understand the risks involved. Responsibility
for managing risks lies initially with the business functions concerned,
working within the overall strategy and risk tolerance established by the
Board, in conjunction with the Audit Committee and the Risk Management
Committee.

The Board meets quarterly, or more often if necessary, to review the
Group's operations and financial performance. The Board also reviews
the risks to the assets and operations of the Company, and acts upon any
comments from the internal and external auditors. The Board considers the
economic environment and the industry risk in assessing business risk. The
management also meets at least monthly to review the operations of the
Group and discuss any identified issues.
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ERERERE (R)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONTINUED)

Key risks, control measures and management actions are continually
identified, reviewed and monitored by the management as part of the
Group's enterprise wide risk management framework. The internal auditor
assists and guides the management in the formulation of risk policies
and processes to effectively identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks (including Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) risks). The
management has established a risk identification and management process.
The risk profiles are reported to the Risk Management Committee, the Audit
Committee and the Board on a regular basis to highlight changes in the risk
assessment, quantitative and qualitative factors affecting the inherent risks
and effectiveness of respective controls. The ownership of these risks lies
with the respective business functions with stewardship residing with the
Board. Action plans to manage the risks are continually being monitored
and refined by the management and the Board. The internal auditor
conducts audits to review the risk management framework and processes
and assess the effectiveness of the internal controls of the Group, including
material financial, operational and compliance controls. Any material
noncompliance or lapses in internal controls together with corrective
measures are reported to the Risk Management Committee and the Audit
Committee.

In performing its audit of the financial statements, the external auditors
perform tests over operating effectiveness of certain controls that they
intend to rely on which are relevant to the Group’s preparation of its
financial statements. The external auditors report any significant deficiencies
in such internal controls to the Risk Management Committee and the Audit
Committee.

In addition to the review of risk management and internal controls
undertaken within the Company, from time to time, the Board and/or the
management will engage professional third parties to assess and comment
on the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal
controls and, where appropriate, recommendations will be adopted and
enhancements to the risk management and internal controls will be made.

Based on the framework established and the reviews conducted by the
internal and external auditors, the Board opines, with the concurrence of the
Audit Committee, that there are adequate and effective risk management
and internal control systems in place within the Group in addressing
material financial, operational, compliance and information technology
control risks in its current business environment.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONTINUED)

Risk management framework
The Group has established an effective risk governance and management

framework in line with the requirements set out by the Listing Rules and
other regulations. This framework was built around a structure that enables
the Board and the management to discharge their risk management-related
responsibilities with appropriate delegation as well as checks and balances.
These responsibilities included defining risk appetite in accordance with
the Group’s business strategies and objectives, formulating risk policies that
govern the execution of those strategies, and establishing procedures and
limits for the approval, control, monitoring and remedy of risks.

The members of the Risk Management Committee positioned at the highest
level of the Group’s risk governance structure under the Board. Members
included three executive directors and an INED. The Risk Management
Committee had direct involvements in formulating the Group’s risk appetite,
and determined the levels of risk that the Group is willing to undertake
with reference to its financial capacity, strategic direction, prevailing market
conditions and regulatory requirements.

The Risk Management Committee will continuously ensure the Group'’s
risk appetite is realistically reflected in the policies and procedures that
the management adopted in executing its business functions. The Risk
Management Committee will regularly review the Group’s risk management
framework and ensure that all important risk-related tasks are performed
according to established policies and with appropriate resources.

Inside information
Regarding procedures and internal controls for the handling and

dissemination of inside information, the Company:

is aware of its obligations under the SFO and the Listing Rules and
the overriding principle that inside information should be announced
immediately if it is the subject of a decision;
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONTINUED)

Inside information (continued)
ii. conducts its affairs with close regard to the applicable laws and

regulations prevailing in Hong Kong;

ii.  hasincluded in the Code of Conduct a strict prohibition on the
unauthorised use of non-public or inside information;

iv.  has established a policy and implemented guidelines for monitoring,
reporting and disseminating inside information to our shareholders,
investors, analysts and media. These policies and guidelines also
identify who are the Company’s authorised spokespersons and their
responsibilities for communications with stakeholders; and

V. has communicated to all relevant staff regarding the implementation
of the policy and the relevant trainings are also provided.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Ernst & Young has been re-appointed as the independent auditors of
the Company by shareholders at the last annual general meeting. The
remuneration in respect of services provided by Ernst & Young to the Group
in 2022 is summarised as follows:
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BB =

TXEFMELEERRER LEREBEX
CEEAARABUZEM R ==
B KEIMEBMAAEERERE 2 H
Bt ati T

HK$’000
FTEx

Auditing services EIZRB 1,460
Non-auditing services (which included agreed upon procedures and FEZRE (BIEHE
other professional services) BT REAMEERS) 176
Total B 1,636
COMPANY SECRETARY AREWE

The company secretary, Mr. Ng Kwok Keung, was appointed as the
Company Secretary of the Company on 18 May 2007 and is a full time
employee of the Group. Mr. Ng is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has confirmed that he
has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional trainings during the
reporting year.
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RIS - HERERHE

MESSAGE FROM THE BOARD

C&T is a software and services company that has made a firm commitment
to sustainability in the field of information technology. Our sustainability
goals align with C&T's goals. Top management must regularly assess risks,
including those related to environmental, social, and governance factors,
and consider both quantitative and qualitative factors that affect the risks
and the effectiveness of controls. We have an established ESG governance
mechanism that defines the Board's supervisory role, the top management’s
guiding role and the ESG Working Group’s implementation role in ESG
performance and risk management. For further details, please refer to
the session of ESG governance structure, commitment and strategy. The
ownership of ESG-related risks lies with the responding business functions
with stewardship residing with the Board. Internal auditors are responsible
for assessing and reviewing the effectiveness of the internal controls at
financial, operational and compliance levels. Thorough and objective
assessment leads the company to focus on key aspects for management,
operations, and sustainability.

Environmental Conservation
Governments worldwide are taking action to address climate change,

leading to a growing awareness of environmental conservation globally.
At the 2022 United Nations Climate Change Conference, countries that
support the Paris Agreement demonstrated their commitment to limit
global temperature rise to 1.5 degrees Celsius. Carbon neutrality has
become a key point for governments and businesses alike. C&T has joined
the Green Council to support UN Sustainable Development Goal 13
and combat climate change. Collaboration is essential to environmental
conservation. To reduce environmental impact, eco-friendly products are
given priority during each step of the selection process while maintaining a
mindful approach towards the environment.

Nurturing Talent
The growth of a business is reliant on its talented workforce. C&T believes in

nurturing the talents of our employees by providing training programmes
and overseas training opportunities. Our employees have attended
approximately 860 hours of training with financial support of the company.
At C&T, we prioritise team development because we recognise that the
skills our employees acquire contribute to improved service quality, higher
client satisfaction, and greater innovation in our products.
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RiR - HgRER®RE(E)

MESSAGE FROM THE BOARD (CONTINUED)

Community Contribution
Recognised as a caring company since 2015, C&T upholds its role in

corporate social responsibility (“CSR"). The company donates to support
various charitable events, including those run by The Community Chest of
Hong Kong, Children Chiropractic Foundation and Hong Kong Federation
of Handicapped Youth. Apart from providing financial aid, our company
also encourages volunteer work and charitable activities as a means to
contribute to the betterment of the society where we operate our business.

The company has made continuous progress over the past years in our
business growth, staff development, CSR efforts and environmental
conservation. We foresee these efforts bringing new opportunities and
adding value to existing partners and stakeholders with the support of
our best-of-breed software products, effective IT solutions and quality
services. We have been reviewing our strategy from time to time to seize
the opportunity and embrace the positive impact of digitalisation in Hong
Kong, with the goal of building a greener, more resilient, and smarter
world. The Board will continue the company’s ESG commitment as we have
been striving to create a better world for the stakeholders and the next
generation.

Our staff, customers, suppliers, business partners, and other stakeholders
have played an essential role in our sustainability journey during the
reporting period, and the Board would like to extend its deepest
appreciation for their effort and contribution.

REPORTING STANDARD AND PRINCIPLES

The Company (collectively mentioned as “the company’, “C&T" or “we")
is pleased to present the Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG")
Report ("ESG Report”) for the year ended 31 December 2022 which
summarises the ESG policies, initiatives and performance of the Group as
well as its commitment in achieving environmental, social and governance
sustainability.
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RiR - HERER®RE (E)

REPORTING SCOPE AND BOUNDARY

This ESG report has been prepared in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (“the Guide”), Appendix 27 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and in compliance with the mandatory
disclosure requirements and “comply or explain” provisions thereof.

To fulfill the requirement of the Guide, the Company have commissioned
an independent advisor to engage our stakeholders to perform materiality
assessment. The information disclosed in this report represents the
management performance of the most relevant and material issues of
our business, as identified by our key stakeholders. We endeavored to
incorporate materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency in the
presentation of the information, as required by the Stock Exchange.
Materiality Materiality was assessed based on the results obtained
from stakeholder engagement. The threshold for related
ESG topics was reviewed and confirmed by the Board
and the top management to ensure that they were
sufficiently important to our stakeholders.

Quantitative Where applicable, we compared year-to-year data
and discussed its implications. In the reporting of
emissions and energy consumption, relevant standards,
methodologies, assumptions, and conversion factors
are disclosed.

Balance This report provided an accurate, objective and
fair description of the Company’s sustainability
performance.

This report adopted consistent methodologies to allow
a fair comparison of our performance over time. Where
applicable, we disclosed the changes to the methods or
key performance indicators (KPIs) used.

Consistency
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BRI - 2 REREHE (A)

REPORTING SCOPE AND BOUNDARY
(CONTINUED)

This report details our ESG governance structure, commitment and
strategy, management approach and performance during the period from
1 January to 31 December 2022 (the “reporting period”). The content of
the report covers our core business in solutions and integration services,
application software business in Hong Kong and Mainland China and
excludes investment sector. The report is published annually to maintain
ESG transparency. It is published on the Stock Exchange’s website
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s website (http://www.ctil.com).

In the long run, we commit to enrich our ESG information disclosure in
order to enhance the transparency in our sustainability performance.

We sincerely welcome your feedback on our ESG report and our ESG
performance. Please contact us by any of the following means to share your
comments:

Address:
Level 10, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2503-8000
Fax: (852) 2503-8100
Email: info@ctil.com

Website: http://www.ctil.com
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RiR - HERER®RE (E)

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT

A comprehensive stakeholder engagement exercise was conducted in
order to understand the perceptions and expectations of our stakeholders
with regard to our ESG management approach and performance. During
the process, we communicated with key internal stakeholders that we
identified to have a significant impact to our business. Stakeholders were
given the opportunity to share their views on ESG matters that are most
pertinent to them through the administration of surveys. We incorporated
their feedback into the process of identifying and prioritising the material
topics, which acts as the foundation of the formulation of long-term ESG
strategies as well as a strong reference to this report.

Process of stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment:

FHESHEREEMTM

BPEETE2ENFNESEFMG LT 8BS
MEHRE HEREATENRENEER
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Identify the relevant ESG
issues making reference
with the Guide and
Sustainability Accounting
Standards Board (SASB)

Materiality Map
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Develop the survey
and invite the key
stakeholders to complete
the survey
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Conduct materiality
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the ESG issues based
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT (CONTINUED)

Material topics identified by our stakeholders are:

Subject area

FEHE

Employment and

Material topics

EERE

Talent development

FHE2REREEMTME ()

BN EMERNEZZER -

Related session(s) in this report

REENEFAEE

Developing talent

labour practices AABEE AT #ER

BENMSTIER Employee engagement, rights and benefits Fostering employee engagement
BTI2H  EMNREF ReEEELEE
Employee health and safety Promoting employee health and well-being
BEREREZSE RTHE 8 @ R R ARAL
Labour practices Being an employer of choice
BILER PR B EE

Operating practices Product and service quality Continuous improvement in quality service

ZE B EmkREER BE RGO E DU
Customer privacy and data security Protecting IP rights, data privacy and
EFBILEEELZE cybersecurity

Resources consumption efficiency

CWEVEEELES

REMBER  EHILRBERRAKL2

Our efforts in improving environmental

performance
BABNAERRERR
Corporate Anti-corruption, business ethics and compliance Upholding ethical conduct
governance to regulations RFFERRST
BEER RE)S - BERTNETER
Contribution to Community service engagement Our contribution to community
community S B E R ML= ER
Bt E
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT (CONTINUED)

We also communicate with our stakeholders on an on-going basis through

different communication channels, the table below shows our main
channels with our key stakeholders.

Stakeholders

KOE

Key of communication

BEEE

FHE2RREEZMNME ()

&l

BAPTEBTRABBRESERFNHEER
TRETEBERFNENTIERE -

Communication channels
BBERE

Employees C&T understands the needs of employees through Staff intranet portal, corporate news, promotion
(== different channels and handles their opinions and videos, posters, training, performance appraisal,
recommendations. meetings and emails
Mt E R TRRETREENTELRERAE BIANBE XHE SE8XH & HIl-
B - REFE  SEKREH
Suppliers C&T continuously reviews performance of suppliers/ Product/service terms and conditions, code of
e service providers and ensures quality of products/ conduct, contracts, after-sales service (customer
services. inquiries or complaints), meetings and emails
Rl ESREER RESHERORELE Eo/ REGERRES  BFF8 - 6408
REM,/ BREEE - “RB (RPERIIRF) SEHNRER
Clients C&T collects customer feedback through various Negotiation of contracts, satisfaction survey, customer
Y platforms to ensure customer opinions are handled in  service hotline, meetings and emails
a timely manner. EEEN - MEERE BPRERE €@\
MEERTRTAREEPRENBREEE KEH
BEPEBR -
Investors C&T ensures timely disclosure and compliance of Notices, announcements, circulars, annual and interim
KEE listing rules and other related rules and regulations. reports, annual general meeting and face-to-face

RIBEREOR N B 3 B8 S8 <7 ET AR R R H A B B
MBI FOEIR

meetings/calls with investors
BE D B FERPHEE  RERBSF
ReREREERTSMH, BEBE
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ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE, COMMITMENT
AND STRATEGY

Governance structure
The Board, which has overall responsibility for the Company’s ESG strategy

and performance progress, is committed to ensuring that our business
operates responsibly and acts in the best interests of our stakeholders and
shareholders. Ms. Chan Yuen Shan Clara, an independent non-executive
director of the Group, chairs the ESG Working Group, which is delegated
the day-to-day management of ESG aspects by the Board. The ESG Working
Group oversees our ESG performance, leads long-term ESG strategic
development, and reports to the Board. Our ESG performance is reviewed
and evaluated annually, which will be disclosed in our annual ESG report.

To ensure appropriate and effective ESG risk management and internal
control systems are in place, the Board also delegates its responsibility
to evaluate and determine key risks (including ESG related risks) to the
Audit Committee and the Risk Management Committee. After completing
the review, the committees provide the Board with their findings and
recommendations for the Board's consideration and approval.

To enhance the sustainability capability of the Board and our ESG Working
Group, training was arranged to ensure the Board and ESG Working Group
were aware of the latest corporate governance regulations and updates on
ESG.

Further information about our risk management, internal controls and
corporate governance can be found in the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” of this annual report.

Commitment and strategy
As a corporate citizen, we consider ESG compliance as a fundamental

operation while striving to create value for our people, environment, and
community. The Board will conduct periodical review of strategies and
areas for improvement. Nurturing Talent, Environmental Conservation,
Community Contribution and Supply Chain Management are the four pillars
guiding our business excellence.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE - gRERRE ()

ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE, COMMITMENT RIE - HEREREE  RERXK
AND STRATEGY (CONTINUED) B (%)

The Group realises the emerging importance of sustainability worldwide. AEEEHINEHRABBEERNEZE -BEA
Aligning with the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) HBRESE TFEE - KEEL RERME M
that address the global challenges with respect to poverty, inequality, THIFRZ2HABOBSEHERREE
climate change, environmental degradation, peace and justice, our focus on ZMENEXTZEEMNEETANESI T AE
four primary goals is based on the four pillars. The ESG Working Group will B IRIR g REATIENMAKHEERRE -
keep monitoring the ESG targets and report to the Board regularly while the HEkEREE YTHRNEESER M=
Board will provide opinions on the target progress. EeRBEKBEREERERER -

Nurturing Talent

BEAL
SDG 8 DecentWork  Targets BE
and Economic Growth - To maintain our employer-employee relationship - ERETHBYEERCRERANEST
AHERREAEES: with our staff in strict compliance with or beyond BB TEFEERER:
BEEIENEEER the employment rules and regulations;
DECENT WORK AND - Todevelop and retain talents prospering - BERBEATUEBDRREE: R
ECONOMIC GROWTH company growth and
i"/' - Tostrive for a decent and safety work - EERFRZEHIIERSE-
environment.
Approach 7t
- To provide regular training, development - REEHSEI BRAZKEINIENTES
programmes and training sponsorship to our
staff:

e}

To implement occupational safety and health - B ELRE RERERE &

\

measures; and
- Toorganise team building and staff activities. - BpEBREERETE-
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RiR - HgRER®RE(E)

ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE, COMMITMENT
AND STRATEGY (CONTINUED)

Environmental Conservation

BRERE

SDG 13 Climate Targets

Action - To raise awareness about environmental
ARERREZ13: sustainability among our staff;
RRTH - To promote the 5Rs (Refuse-Reduce-Reuse-

Repurpose-Recycle) concept in office; and

- To combat climate change in terms of energy
conservation and emission reduction.

Approach
To enhance existing recycling programmes and
facilities in office;

- To provide non-disposable utensils to staff;

- To organise seminars and workshops regarding
environmental sustainability;

1 CLIMATE
ACTION

3 2

- To increase greenery covers in office, to
encourage staff to adopt a plant-based diet
at least one day per week to combat climate
change, and to encourage and bring awareness
about a vegetarian diet;

- To maintain a comfortable temperature range of
24-26°C in office;

- To refine business procedures and our products
to achieve paperless office; and

- To support or collaborate with organisations
which promote environmental protection.

Community Contribution

ERHE

SDG 17 Partnerships  Targets

for the Goals - To be a community care company; and
WHEERREEZ17: - Toraise awareness among the staff about caring
REBZEERNUE for the community and the underprivileged.
B Approach

17 PARTNERSHIPS -
FOR THE GOALS . ™
- To make donation to charities; and

@ ]

To provide internship programmes for university

graduates.
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RiR - HERER®RE (E)

ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE, COMMITMENT
AND STRATEGY (CONTINUED)

Supply Chain Management

HEEEE

SDG 12 Responsible Targets
Consumptionand - To source from sustainable supplier; and

Production - To raise awareness among the staff about
AFEZRAE sustainable use of resources.

12: BEMEEEN Approach

HE - To establish sustainable procurement guidelines

for our staff; and
To regularly review and adopt up-to-date

12 RESPONSIBLE

CONSUMPTION
AND PRODUCTION -

O

supplier code of conducts.

- WAUREHERRE: R
- RREIHERUFKENMORA-

%
— RETHEARERBES &

- EHEERRASHNHERTRER -

DECENT WORK AND
ECONOMIC GROWTH

o

OURTALENT

Being an employer of choice
Investing in our ability to attract, train, retain, and motivate talented

professionals is a crucial strategy for our success and growth. By providing
competitive remuneration packages for our employees, we hope to attract
high potential candidates in the market and motivate our employees.
The remuneration package of employees is also regularly reviewed and
necessary adjustments are made to conform to the market standard.

We are keen to provide remuneration packages beyond the requirements
of the Employment Ordinance; hence, full-paid sick leave, maternity leave,
and paternity leave are provided to local staff. Upholding our work-life
balance culture and continuous learning advocation, C&T offers special
paid leave such as birthday leave, marriage leave, compassionate leave, and
graduation and examination time off. Medical insurance and education
subsidy are also available to our staff.

EME AT
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BiE g2 RERME(E)

OUR TALENT (CONTINUED)

Being an employer of choice (continued)
Our Employee Handbooks set forth conduct and attitude expectations

for employees, and provide detailed information about employment
terms, benefits, and development policies. These documents are regularly
reviewed and updated to reflect changes in labour regulations. Feedback
from employees on our policies and their job duties and work environment
is welcome.

We have a formal grievance procedure in place that aims to settle employee
grievances within the shortest possible time, with the objective of rendering
fairness and justice to all parties concerned. Employee may present their
grievance either verbally or in writing to the Company’s Human Resources
Department, who is responsible for assisting the employee to solve the
grievance. All grievances are treated confidentially.

We strictly abide by the labour regulations of where we operate and
prohibit the employment of child and forced labour and we are also
committed to promoting a transparent and fair recruitment process.

During our recruitment and staff promotion process, we provide equal
opportunity for all people regardless of sex, marital status, family status or
disability. Our judgment is based on their qualifications, experience, skills,
potential and performance. Performance appraisal is offered to employees
on an annual basis. The purpose of our performance appraisal is not solely
to evaluate employees’ abilities, it also provides the opportunities for them
to discuss their concerns and ideas with management.

We acknowledge our responsibilities to actively promote a diversified
working environment that is free from discrimination. It is believed that the
potential of our employees will be fully enabled when they are given equal
opportunities in terms of career development and promotion.

In 2022, we complied with all relevant laws and regulations, including
the Employment Ordinance, Minimum Wage Ordinance, Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, Sex Discrimination Ordinance, Disability Discrimination
Ordinance, Family Status Discrimination Ordinance, Inland Revenue
Ordinance, and the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance of Hong
Kong, as well as the Labour Law and Employment Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China.
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OUR TALENT (CONTINUED)

Diversity and inclusiveness
Employee profiles in 2021 and 2022 of our operations in Hong Kong and

Mainland China, breakdown by gender, age group, employment type,
employee category and geographical location are as below.

Year ended 31 December

Our workforce EE A

By gender el kil
Female 4

Male Bt

By age group RERARE D
Below 30 305K AT

30-39 30-39 5%

40-49 40-49 3%,

50 or above 503 A =

By employment type RERBERES
Full-time 2l

Part-time FRE

By employee category REEERE S
Top SE

Middle ARk

General — AR AR

By geographical location & it &= &

Hong Kong BB
Mainland China A B (A

BMHAA (8)

Z{tEEERM
CECFRIBZFEFBERTERNMES
BEBRIEDNT  ZMHER - FEHA7 - ERFE
A EEERILEE S -

BHE+-_A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
—E-F —E-—F
373 380
128 133
245 247
112 125
122 116
93 99
46 40
361 367
12 13

8 9

15 20
350 351
222 245
151 135
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OUR TALENT (CONTINUED)

Employee turnover rates in 2021 and 2022 of our operations in Hong Kong
and Mainland China, breakdown by gender, age group and geographical
location are as below.

Year ended 31 December

Overall turnover rate' BRRkLx
By gender &1 Bl &l 5
Female pegis

Male B

By age group REHR AR B 5
Below 30 30 A T

30-39 30-3975%

40-49 40-49 3%,

50 or above 50788k A

BMHAA (8)

TR FRIFFHRERPERNMERS
BERKERNEHMT  ZHER - FhE R &it

(B3

N o=

HE+-_A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
—E-— —E-—F
27% 31%

22% 26%

29% 34%

51% 49%

16% 33%

16% 6%

17% 30%

|

By geographical location ZithEE 5
Hong Kong BB
Mainland China R B AT 4

1 The turnover rate = the total number of leaver who either leave voluntarily, retire,
or is dismissed in the specified category/the total number of employees of the

corresponding category as at the year end date.
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OUR TALENT (CONTINUED)

Developing talent
We are committed to developing a capable team. As a company providing

IT solutions, the skills and knowledge of our employees are closely linked
to the quality of what we deliver, client satisfaction and sustainability of our
business. Under our training programme, employees are regularly provided
with opportunities to attend formal training programmes that benefit their
career developments, including overseas training opportunities.

To incentivise our employees to take role-related training and qualification
assessments organised by external parties, we offer financial sponsorship as
stated in our "Education Subsidy Policy".

(1) Structured orientation training is provided to new joiners which
covers an introduction to our values, business operations and
employee rights;

(2)  Appropriate in-house and external trainings are organised to ensure
satisfactory job performance of our employees; and

(3)  Provide education subsidy to encourage employees to take external
courses or professional examinations for career development.

During the reporting year, we cooperated with a professional training
institute to organise internal training workshops to nominated staff on
presentation and negotiation skills. We also continue support our staff
to take job related examinations such as accounting and cloud security.
We have provided over HK$153,000 of financial sponsorship during the
reporting year. The Group will periodically organise briefings to all directors
aimed at enhancing and updating their understanding and proficiency with
respect to their duties and obligations, such as those pertaining to ESG and
corporate governance.
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OURTALENT (CONTINUED)
Developing talent (continued)

Total training hours completed during the year by our employees are
summarised as below.

31 December 2022

Staff Training BT

By gender R B &l 5
Female 7

Male St

By employee category REEEAE S
Top =%

Middle &R

General — B AR

31 December 2021

Staff Training 8 T EI

By gender &1 Bl El 5
Female Z %

Male St

By employee category REEERE D
Top =%

Middle ARk

General —REBR

1 The percentage of employees trained = the total number of employees trained by
specified category/the total number of employees of the corresponding category
as at the year end date.

2 The average training hours per employee = the total training hours by specified
category/the total number of employees of the corresponding category as at the
year end date.
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Percentage
of employees

trained’
BEZIEIH
EEFS

39%
37%

100%
47%
36%

—_E-_—F+=ZA=

Percentage
of employees

trained’
EZEIH
EEBS "

8%
4%

44%
15%
4%

Average
training hours
per employee?

BEREEWN
F 955 31 B 2

3.18
1.85

2.25
2.13
2.31

+—8

Average
training hours
per employee?

BEEEMN
4955 8l B 2

0.71
2.54

3.00
1.93
1.87

1 EZBRJINEEBD =R EHRNZI R
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OUR TALENT (CONTINUED)

Developing talent (continued)
C&T aspires to achieve a sustainable growth that could bring enlightenment

and a positive impact to young people. To cultivate potential talents in the
IT industry, we conduct mentorship programs and give advice on career
planning to future generations.

Fostering employee engagement
C&T is committed to adopting employee-oriented initiatives to maintain

and boost employee morale. We encourage two-way communication
and embrace feedback through regular review meetings and employee
surveys. Certain family-friendly employment practices include flexible work
arrangements, organising recreational activities for employees and their
family members, and setting up breastfeeding support facilities for working
mothers.

The Company actively promotes a work environment that fosters
inclusivity among employees through inter-departmental gatherings and
team-building activities. A variety of staff benefits are provided, such as
transportation subsidies, corporate discounts, local expo and funfair tickets,
etc. Additionally, to express gratitude for their dedication over the years,
long service awards are presented to employees who have been with the
company for 5,10, 15, and 20 years.

Engaging employees can contribute to higher productivity and more
profitability. It is in our best interest to keep employees engaged through
efficient communication. Continuing from the practise started in 2020, the
“Regular Customer Highlights” functions as a means to introduce our new
customer acquisitions from different business units. In addition, internal
communication was improved by supplying regular updates of our success
stories, corporate news and promotion videos to employees. Through
different internal channels, we established better communication to
provide first-hand market news to our staff.
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OUR TALENT (CONTINUED)

Promoting employee health and well-being
C&T values the health and well-being of employees and considers that as

one of its foremost priorities. Building a healthy and harmonious working
environment is essential to attract, retain and motivate talents. During the
reporting period, a comprehensive “Occupational Safety and Health (“OSH")
Policy” was formulated according to the Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance Chapter 509 and broadcasted to all our employees through
intranet, email announcement, poster on notice board and staff orientation
programmes.

In 2022, we focused on the following areas when executing the OSH
initiatives:

1. Enhance staff awareness of safety and health hazards at work;

2. Promote proper workstation ergonomics;

3. Improve staff's mental health for enhanced working efficiency; and
4. Advocate work-life balance.

A specialised team is designated to coordinate and centralise efforts to
ensure proper implementation of the OSH initiatives and to conduct
regular safety inspections. Fire-safety training is provided to employees,
showcasing the escape routes and other necessary precautions in a fire
accident. To effectively communicate health information with employees,
we disseminated tips on healthy dieting, stretching exercises, and mental
health management on the staff intranet.

A healthy workplace not only supports the physical well-being of employees
but also provides a pleasant environment for enhanced collaboration and
productivity. Thus, staff-caring activities are essential to motivate employees
in C&T.

In 2022, we organised a series of employee engagement and sustainability
workshops that attracted over 50 staff members to join:

Compressed Flowers Alcohol Containers Decoration Workshop
(OSH-related)

Left-Over Leather Mini Cow-Boy Hat Production Workshop
(Environment-related)

Preserved Flowers Accessory Production Workshop
(Environment-related)
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OUR TALENT (CONTINUED)

Promoting employee health and well-being (continued)
Apart from small-scale workshops, we organised signature festival
celebrations to generate more positivity in the office. These activities
provide stress relief and allow employees to enjoy moments of fun amidst
their busy work schedules. To promote healthy eating habits, “Wellness
Fruit Corners” are arranged, where a variety of carefully selected fruits are
regularly distributed to our employees.

Our health and safety performance was deemed satisfactory during the
reporting year, with zero employee fatalities recorded during current and
the past three years from 2020 to 2022. No work-related injuries were
reported during the reporting year. Moving forward, we remain committed
to maintaining a safe and healthy working environment for all our

employees.

While the COVID-19 pandemic continues, a series of responsive measures
are in place at C&T to minimise the potential health risk to our staff:

1. Distribute Rapid Antigen Test kits;
2. Provide alcohol-based hand sanitisers in the office area;

3 Offer alcohol pads to staff for cleaning personal workstation, phone
set and keyboard;

4. Rearrange tables and chairs in breakout area and meeting rooms to
minimise face-to-face interaction;

5. Conduct frequent cleaning especially for common high-touch areas;

6. Lift, toilet and office areas are coated with Nano antivirus coating;

7. Prepare thermometer for staff use at reception;
8. Open side doors to maintain ventilation;
9. Arrange large-scale disinfection and carpet cleaning services;

10.  Require all visitors to submit a Health Declaration Form and scan the
“LeaveHomeSafe” mobile application when entering the office;

11. Reduce beverages provided to guests; and

12. Encourage COVID-19 vaccination with extra leave granted.
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OUR RESPONSIBILITIES

Continuous improvement in quality service
Service quality and customer satisfaction are closely related. Satisfaction is a

likely outcome when customers perceive they have received superior quality
service. Therefore, a commitment has been made to promoting a continual
improvement process in our products, services, and implementation
process. During the reporting period, a series of PMO (Project Management
Office) objectives were set and proved to be instrumental in improving our
project management workflows in terms of standardisation and efficiency.
We can expect repeated success by standardising processes and materials
for sizable project implementations. Continued project governance through
PMO and Jira provides better project delivery monitoring and management
that will play a vital role in business optimisation. In order to drive project
efficiency, emphasis has been put on these factors:

Well-informed project teams — understanding mission, goals, scope
and milestones;

Clearly defined roles leading to accountability, ownership and quality;

Increased customer buy-in;

Conflict resolution and early roadblocking;
Steering committee meetings;

Reviews of key risks and issues; and
Alignment with business strategies.

Our customer service hotline handles the client’s enquiries and complaints
during the business operation period. In the event of receiving a complaint,
the Company will promptly launch an investigation, respond to the client,
and create an improvement plan based on the findings of the concluded
complaint case. During the reporting period, a series of customer
satisfaction survey has been completed to identify areas for improvement
and get ideas for our next generation products and services.

Hot-fix patches will be released to address related product installations in
the event of critical issues or regulatory changes for our application software
products. Additionally, online updates will be available in various app stores
for Software as a Service (“SaaS”") or mobile applications.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

BMNEE

BERBNSEIGE
REEEEBEMEELESAE EEFAR
SRERERSEE  Ersg R ’%‘ ° I
BABNREESCERMNER  RELERE
BRE - RBMEHRAR - BRMET—RINEBER
MAZEER FERH ZFEBRERELM
MEDEEHERMNEE EETERELD
FABHER - RMMITAEIAR KA EBIELE(L
T2 7 A RHERIS R B A D) © 3B 38 PMO M Jira ¥
BERBRVEHHERMEREANINT
B EELEEBLERINEENER - SHED
BHEME  HABRERUERE

HBBEBRD TRIER - TRER  BIE
CEPSEREL

TR IE TR - EE R A S A
BRAERAKE
RAEFRA

ORI N R EAR R

BEZEESH
BETERRLEE: K

[ P

HANEFPREAREREBLEHRENES
BN c MRWEIREF - AR BB LENR
ML BEEP URECD THENKRFER
M P EERGIEREF S  RIREHHE - HA
EXK—EREFMEERAE LB KE®D
BEAT —RERMRBKE

MEERARARHERNEAZELEEEE -
HPgRMmREEERBNMEEEBERLTE
AN B EESEAEAEERRM RS
FonB A A RMAR L EH -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RiR - HERER®RE (E)

OUR RESPONSIBILITIES (CONTINUED)

Protecting IP rights, data privacy and cybersecurity
Our employees are committed and compelled to maintain a high standard

of integrity and ethics, as set out in the Group’s Code of Business Conduct
Policy. This policy establishes basic principles to guide our behaviours and
practices when conducting business, ensuring compliance with local laws
and regulations.

The Group has a strong compliance culture and are committed to adhering
to data privacy laws and regulations to safeguard customers’ data and
sensitive information. Guidelines on data collection, usage and retention
are clearly set out in the policies and standard procedures in our Privacy
Statement and Personal Information Collection Statement.

The Employee Handbook outlines the Group’s policies on intellectual
property, including compliance with relevant copyright laws, the use
of computer software for business purposes, and security precautions
for accessing the Company network. Employees are expected to act in
accordance with these information security measures as set out in the
handbook.

The policy requires our employees to respect and protect intellectual
property rights in our day-to-day operations. This includes the careful
handling and usage of trade secrets, patents, trademarks and copyrights,
as well as business, marketing and service plans, engineering ideas, design
and databases. Data is protected by a number of physical, electronic and
procedural safeguards that are in line with the regulatory requirements.

We acknowledge our responsibility in safeguarding the data privacy
of our customers. The Group is committed to ensuring that customer
information is handled safely and securely by implementing dedicated
customer data protection measures. Access to C&T's network is restricted
to registered devices, with password authentication required for logging
into the Company’s systems. To safeguard data confidentiality, preventive
measures such as regular security assessments and network maintenance
are conducted routinely.
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12 RESPONSIBLE
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AND PRODUCTION
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Supply chain management
As an IT services provider, C&T mainly procure services from qualified

suppliers and subcontractors. Our policy requires outsourced activities to
comply with the same security requirements as in-house activities. If there
are needs to engage new suppliers or subcontractors, sufficient background
and quality assessment will be conducted to ensure quality of work
delivered to customers. In the reporting period, 30 suppliers underwent
performance evaluations. These evaluations are conducted regularly by the
project team to ensure that the quality of the goods and services provided
by the suppliers or subcontractors remains at an acceptable level, and that
there are no significant environmental or social risks identified.

The Group has formulated the procurement policy and procedures to
standardise the process of supplier selection, and also minimise potential
risks throughout the supply chain.

At C&T, we primarily depend on local suppliers and service providers to
reduce the carbon emissions resulting from transportation. Furthermore,
during the selection process, we prioritise suppliers who offer eco-friendly
products and services to minimise the impact on the environment.

Supplier integrity is of great importance to us. Therefore, we only
collaborate with suppliers and partners who have good track records
and haven't violated any relevant regulations or business ethics. We
have a zero-tolerance policy towards bribery and corruption, and strictly
prohibit suppliers from obtaining procurement contracts or cooperative
relationships through any form of pay-to-play or gifts.

Despite the significant disruptions caused by the pandemic to the global
supply chain, being an IT services provider with self-developed core
software and services, the impact to our daily operations was considered
not material during the reporting period.
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OUR RESPONSIBILITIES (CONTINUED)
Supply chain management (continued)
Number of vendors by geographical region

During the reporting year, the number of major vendors* by geographical
region is as follows:

RAWEE (&)
HrERERE ()
RHERS W HEREYE

RIEFE LRSS EEHER HE W
T~

Geographical region

Hong Kong BH

RER
HiBEKR, &

Mainland China
Other countries/regions

* Vendors with more than HK$ 10,000 purchases during the reporting period.

Upholding ethical conduct
Our “Code of Business Conduct Policy” sets out our operating principles

to mitigate the risk of bribery and corruption. We have a zero-tolerance
policy towards any corrupt practices. The policy provides guidance on the
appropriate practice when dealing with our suppliers, contractors, business
partners and other external parties. Our expectations on the conduct
of employees have been well stated in the Employee Handbooks. Anti-
corruption training sessions have been provided to directors and our staff
and attendance is mandatory. During the year, anti-corruption training was
arranged with Independent Commission Against Corruption (ICAC) to our
staff. All directors also attained anti-corruption training from the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors.

Under the Group's Whistleblowing Policy, we offer anonymous
whistleblowing channels for our employees and stakeholders to report any
suspected case of misconduct. All reports will be brought to our internal
auditor for investigation, which is overseen by C&T's Audit Committee.

Our anti-corruption related policies are crafted according to Prevention
of Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong, the Criminal Law and the Anti-Money
Laundering Law of the People’s Republic of China. Our compliance with
these pertinent laws and regulations has resulted in no confirmed incidents
of corruption in our operations during 2022.

In terms of data breaches and cyberattacks, the Group takes measures
for external and internal network access layers, server security, daily
management and monitoring. In addition, we frequently disseminated
information security advice to all personnel via internal email. This included
guidance on protecting mobile devices, thwarting phishing scams, and
securely conducting online meetings.
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OUR RESPONSIBILITIES (CONTINUED)

Upholding ethical conduct (continued)
We design information security efforts to protect our intellectual property

and ensure the safe collection and usage of personal data. We register
our trademarks and domain names in relevant jurisdictions to protect the
intellectual property of the Group and make our expectations clear to our
employees in the Employee Handbook and employee contract, which
requires all employees to treat customer data in strict confidence.

To illustrate, our security measures include:

Firewalls at both external and internal network access points, with
four layers of access control for intranet access server traffic and
distinct security isolation zones to prevent exposure of high-risk ports
and control traffic behavior between zones.

|dentification of attack characteristics of complete protocol data in
traffic, enabling detection and blocking of malicious activity, thus
protecting our business systems.

Implementation of anti-virus and server security systems on servers to
intercept viruses and intranet attacks.

Regular auxiliary management and monitoring of database access
traffic, security system’s security log files, equipment operations of
production business systems, mail security gateways, etc., to conduct
audits and analyses for prompt identification and elimination of
corresponding security risks.

Encryption of data transmission in our business systems to ensure
network transmission processes are secure.

During year 2022, we have coordinated with the Privacy Commissioner for
Personal Data for a seminar, to ensure C&T managers and personal data
processors understand the principles and guidelines on Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance.

In 2022, we complied with all relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact to us, including Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance, and no
incident of information leakage reported during the reporting year.
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AND PRODUCTION

OUR ENVIRONMENT

Our relationship with the environment
At C&T, we believe in establishing a foundation of corporate citizenship

that emphasises balance between business, community, and environment.
As we conduct our operations, we strive to minimise our impact on the
environment while promoting environmental sustainability through our
solutions. The Environmental Policy that documents our actions to conserve
the environment is communicated with employees and along the value
chain. In addition to complying with the relevant legislation and regulatory
requirements, the policy offers guidance for our management and staff to
follow in daily operations. This policy is available to all personnel in C&T and
is reviewed regularly.

Our operation does not involve air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, water consumption, as well as generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste in significant quantities. Also, the use
of packaging material to the finished products is not related to our business.

In 2022, we complied with all applicable environmental regulations
including Air Pollution Control Ordinance and Waste Disposal Ordinance.

Climate change
Due to global climate change, our business is inevitably being affected on

different occasions. The management is aware of the direct and indirect
impact of this risk and acknowledges the necessity to take appropriate
measures in building our climate resilience and adaptive capacity.

We have identified climate change-related risks which have impacted or
may affect to our business as below:
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OUR ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED) BMHRE (&)
Climate change (continued) RIZE1L ()
Physical Risks ERE g
(1) Urban heat island effect causing more hot days and nights (1) BHREMNEEHNABERE %
- Higher probability of heat-related illness and lower working — BHROMEEN TERERE
efficiency and productivity; and EIFE: &
~  Increasing energy costs for air-conditioning in office and server — PWRERMBHEENZEFERKA
room, worsening air pollution levels. NERIG I - Bz ﬁ/’i7r<7k$?‘§-\f|:
Actions taken or considered BRI E BRIV ITE
- Maintaining comfortable temperature in range of 24-26°C in — BRAENERERT2UECRRK
office (except server room); B (RREERIN
- Replacing and cleaning air filters in air-conditioning - TEHEBRRERERNZERBE -
periodically to enhance energy efficiency; AR = BE IR
- Enhancing staff awareness of heat stress related illness; — REeBEIYEZE Eﬁﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁ“ ;
—  Reorganising work schedule; and — ENTHI(ERR:
—  Using level 1 energy label equipment in office. - EmAEFEAEE ﬁ& ERIZE R R
1o
(2)  Anincrease in the occurrence of extreme weather events (e.g. super (2)  FEim KR E A (R E R BEE A R
typhoons, along with hot days and nights) M R EE %
- Resulting operation delay, lowering productivity; — EBEURERE - BRETEES
- Reducing revenues; — AR
- Increasing operational cost; — BRI
- Damaging facilities (for example: server disruption due to - ﬁ)fii?é e (A - BINMEE - B E
power failure, window damage, flooding). SR MAEK R AREEFE) o

- Arranging work-from-home or flexible working hours for staff - ZZ?iFE\IEZKI{’F_JZﬁ/EE'JIT’FE—ir
to minimise the effect of disturbance in operations; M- UEERIHEBOTELE

- Equipping with a backup power supply to maintain the — REERER UEETERER
operation of servers when it encounters a disruption; and RAIREEEETT &

- Monitoring window safety regularly. - THEAEFPZZE-
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OUR ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED)

Climate change (continued)
Physical Risks (continued)

G

More natural disasters (e.g. flooding, storm surge etc.)

- Suspending operations;
- Damaging facilities; and
- Collapse of the buildings.

Actions taken or considered

- Establishing a business continuity plan;

- Following government's and international’s guidelines of

climate change in the industry closely; and

- Joining in industry forums or seminars to understand industry

norms and new technologies actively.

BMHR

RIE (48)

Rt (&)
ERER (&)

(B) FZEARLE (LK - EZHE)

Impact 4
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BN XA RS
ZOBRIBNEEBRT e HERR
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Fﬁ//\ﬁuuﬁﬂi _ZﬁﬂnTA ﬁ
BEYS SN

+r

Transition Risks

(1)

Policy and regulatory (e.g. local carbon emission targets)

Impact

- Posting difficulties in operations; and

- Increasing operational cost to fulfil stringent carbon emission
requirements either by hardware replacement or by

technology applications.

Actions taken or considered

- Setting up carbon emissions targets and reduction plans;
- Conducting comprehensive carbon audits and setting up

carbon emission profiles;
- Replacing low energy-efficient devices; and

- Procuring energy efficient or environmental friendly products

or services.
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OUR ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED)

Climate change (continued)

Transition Risks (continued)

(2)  Market and Reputation (e.g. stakeholders’expectation on the Group’s
climate change commitments)

BRANERE (&)

RIRE 1t ()
AR ()

@) THERER(WFFEEHANEERIREE

HREEHEIE)

Impact 2

- Becoming less qualified on tendering;
- Becoming less competitive among peers; and
- Losing reputations and clients’trust.

- EREEREE:
- HERITFHBEFOTE: R
- REBBMEFEE-

Actions taken or considered EENHZEFRNANITE

- Participating in charters, programmes or recognitions or/and
even awards to demonstrate commitments; and

- Communicating with stakeholders to understand their needs
and expectations constantly.

- 2HTENEARTRREE
R - UEBRAGE R
- FEEFNEER TREENF

C&T consistently implements various measures that encourage employees
to conserve resources and reduce wastage to promote green operations.

Providing environmental solutions for customers
Our solution offerings follow closely the Environmental Policy of the

Company. From design to implementation, we are dedicated to realising
our corporate’s vision “To build a better world with Information Technology”
and inspiring our clients to adopt IT to protecting our environment.

Global warming affects all industries as customers seek technology
solutions that assist them in meeting their sustainability goals. Turning our
attention to the impact of consumption on our environment, the traditional
procurement and tendering process uses a massive quantity of paper.
During the reporting period, several major public organisations serving
essential industries in Hong Kong engaged our ProSmart EPM to transform
a paper-heavy process into an infinitely more environmentally friendly one
with the expected amount of paper saved in the millions of pages per year.
Providing customers with reliable, efficient systems that also align with their
conservation goals will be key to ensuring the relevance of our products.
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OUR ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED)

Our efforts in improving environmental performance
Achieving environmental sustainability is one of the future directions

in C&T. Apart from establishing environmental guidelines and facilities,
we emphasise initiating a green mindset among our employees. We
pursue greater environmental consciousness in the workplace through
diverse sustainability programmes. Up-to-date green trends and topics
are introduced via staff intranet and posters on notice boards. Employees
are also encouraged to participate in different local and international
environmental advocacies.

Recycling points are positioned in the office to facilitate waste management
in the working environment. In addition to basic recyclables, festive items
such as desk calendars, mooncake tins and red packets are also collected.
The C&T Library Corner adds value to old and unwanted books under
the self-serve give-and-take nature. Recycled and reusable materials
were chosen for seasonal decorations. C&T strived to be environmentally
conscious by adding green elements to all corporate events. Whenever
possible, electronic publicity materials were used in service and activity
promotion to avoid paper consumption.

C&T endeavours to sustain its business operations with the best green
practices to reduce environmental consequences and improve quality
of life. Through years of active engagement in environmental protection
practices, C&T is committed to building a sustainable future. Our
determination to promote environmental well-being is reflected in the
strategies for energy conservation, greenhouse gas (GHG) emission
reduction, waste minimisation, and green purchasing.

In 2022, C&T commenced its sustainability journey with three environmental
campaigns: Toys Donation, Meat Free - Plastic Free and iRecycle
Sustainability Programme.

Employee participation in green initiatives was initiated by the Toy Donation
Activity. The economic downturn brought on by the pandemic has
impacted many families, resulting in job losses, depleted household savings,
and early retirements, making toys unaffordable or a luxury. However,
toys are essential for positive physical and psychological development in
children, and fond memories of childhood often revolve around playtime.
Donating toys brings happiness to other kids and offers them support.
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OUR ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED)

Our efforts in improving environmental performance

(continued)
The aim of the Meat Free - Plastic Free Programme is to encourage a shift in

the dietary habits of employees by gradually introducing and increasing the
frequency of vegetarian meals. However, due to the pandemic, there has
been a rise in the number of people opting for takeaway food instead of
dining out at restaurants. The second aspect of the campaign encourages
employees to reduce their consumption of plastic and waste by adopting
the use of reusable utensils and containers in their daily routines.

The iRecycle Sustainability Programme, developed in partnership
with Baguio iRecycle Limited, endeavors to promote environmental
consciousness in the workplace, with a specific focus on waste management
and recycling. The programme consisted of a corporate recycling day and
door-to-door household recycling services to colleagues.

The Group is planning to conduct carbon audit in year 2023, to review the
usage of energy of our offices.

By monitoring various environmental metrics, we can continuously
enhance the environmental performance of our operation. Our tracking
includes electricity consumption, paper usage, and carbon emissions. The
information presented in the subsequent sections is valuable for assessing
our environmental performance and devising improvement measures.

BMPNERR (&)
BEMBOIRERRKRE (B)

fﬁﬁ EBIFEEESMEIHERREE
BHEIAWEINRR - EREIBZE  EEHN
EEDEW?FEE/X%@MME@JE’]% & B &
EHEMEBEIERATIERERATEANZEEMN
Nen AR R EEY) o

>}

BB B O WA IR A RS HHH) B B4 AT R A B
Ritd SERETHESANREER L E
HEEEMEDY - ZEEE - ECEEK
B &R F R EFIRE B BRTS

FE_FT_=F#

IE&H TR AR
EMRERERBR

REHE
BN

i

BBENSRREEE  RANUTERESE
BRBEN - HFERBEENBR  MRE
FMBREEN - ERERAEEH R 2N ERER
AHEBRMNRERBLGEREREIFTER
EEE-

Year ended 31 December

BET-_A=T—HILLFE

Office in Hong Kong EBRAE
Electricity consumption (kwWh)' SEFE (TR 278871 291,235 ~4.25%
Electricity consumption intensity BRERE

(kWh/m? floor area) (FEB,FI3AKERE) 150 157 ~4.46%
Carbon emission (Scope 2 only)? TREERR (1B 15 E 2)2

(tonnes CO,-€) (R —S(ciEE 190 207 -8.21%
Carbon intensity R EE (Rt EE

(tonnes CO,-e/m? floor area) FHKEE) 0.10 0.11 -9.09%
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RiR - HERER®RE (E)

OUR ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED)

Our efforts in improving environmental performance
(continued)

BHE+T-_A=+—HIFE

Year ended 31 December

BEMHRE (&)
BEMBOIRERRKRE (B)

REIA A E?
BIRFE(TEE)!
(FEB,F7AKERE)
BRHERR (B 45 4EE 2)¢

(R —S(CHE &
EEREE (RS tikE 2
FI7KETE)

Office in Mainland China3

Electricity consumption (kWh)'!

Electricity consumption intensity
(kwWh/m? floor area)

Carbon emission (Scope 2 only)*
(tonnes CO-e)

Carbon intensity*
(tonnes CO -e/m? floor area)

1 Electricity consumption report included electricity consumed by office central air-
conditioning, lighting and other electronic devices.

2 We are accounting for Scope 2 carbon emission (indirect emission from
consumption of purchased electricity) only. Our operation involves insignificant
direct emission from stationary and mobile consumption. According to the
Sustainability Reports published by the Hongkong Electric Company, the carbon
footprint per kWh of electricity sold in 2021 was 0.71kg and 2022 was 0.68kg.

3 Included offices in Shanghai, Beijing, Shenzhen and Nanjing.

4 For carbon emissions accounting of year 2022 of the China operation, we used the
electricity emission factor published by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment
of the People’s Republic of China that is 0.581 tCO2/MWh. This reflects the latest
appropriate emission factors recommended by the mainland government.
Accordingly, carbon emission and intensity figures in 2021 were restated to keep
the calculation reference of both years aligned.

C&T believes that delivering energy saving messages to our employees is
critical to minimising electricity consumption.

159,398 171,994 —7.32%
86 95 -9.5%

93 100 -7.00%

0.05 0.06 -16.67%

1 ENERBENRBERIEPRER BAR
HinEFREHTEFRENED

2 BETASERER(EREEEENMES
WEEER  -BRANEKLESRXARES
HEFMEANVEEEEMR -BREFEEEAR
AREAMHAHERRERE  —T-—FR=F
TR ETRERENNKORET S B AN
FRK068TF 5 °

3 BERLE bR RIEERZBAE -

4 HRPBE S - —FORERGTE - HPIEAS
EAREMBARREBRAMGOE DHEREE
Blos81 AME Gtk BB/ ERT A
MBFEBNSMEENERESR -Blt =%
T FOREREREMEESRTHEES R
HMEFHNTELEE K-

MEEEREME TEEHEES - HRd
AE8LEEZ-

RBMESKEEAR AT —T - _FFRH
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RiR - HgRER®RE(E)

OUR ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED)

Our efforts in improving environmental performance

(continued)
With our continuous efforts in reducing electricity usage, the Company has

concluded a slight decrease in electricity consumption in 2022. Our energy-
saving measures include but are not limited to the following:

Implementing a time zoning system to turn off non-essential lights
after business hours;

Installing timers for long-working appliances such as water
dispensers;

Devising an automatic screen-off system for office computers after
idling for a while;

Allowing remote on/off control of office computers remotely during
work-from-home arrangements to avoid over-night power-on;

Adopting video conferencing among our office and subsidiaries to
minimise business travel;

Applying window films and curtains to reduce the amount of solar
heat;

Adopting online interviews to minimise unnecessary traveling;

Using office equipment that carries “Grade 1 Energy Label”; and

Deploying T5 fluorescent tubes or LED lighting in the office.
Water consumption may not be a significant concern in our operation, but
we have implemented measures to reduce unnecessary usage. To raise
awareness of resource conservation, we have posted friendly reminders for
staff. Additionally, we took further actions during the reporting period such

as installing water-saving devices and regularly examining the water pipes
in our office to prevent water wastage.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

HFHRE (8)
BMBHREBRARRE (F)
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRI - 4B REREE (&)

OUR ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED)

Our efforts in improving environmental performance
(continued)

Paper usage

Year ended 31 December HE+T-_A=+—HLFE

ﬂ

Total paper consumption (in tonnes) Rk EFEE (AMERT)
Intensity (tonnes/m?) BE (R k)

In the reporting year, to accomplish a paperless office, C&T initiated the
adoption of electronic platforms for internal procedures such as expense
claims, leave applications, intranet and emails for information sharing and
communication, and an e-performance system for the appraisal process.
Apart from paper reduction, measures are taken to reduce waste:

Installing a Centralised Management System (CMS) to all copiers for

better control of printing usage and minimise paper consumption;

Defaulting doubled-sided printing settings;

Collecting single-sided used papers for internal use;

Collecting used envelopes for internal reuse purposes;

Adopting e-application forms in the recruitment process;

Purchasing in bulk quantity of office supplies to minimise packaging
materials;

Locating recycling bins in office utility areas for waste separation;
Suspending the provision of bottled water, single-use stirring rods,
and paper cups to guests and staff;

Using rechargeable batteries in office appliances; and

Upcycling plastic or glass bottles as planters.

BEMHRE (&)
BEMBOIRERRKRE (B)

HKERHAE
2022 2021 Change
—E-Z —E-—F HE
14 17 ~17.6%
0.0004 0.0005 -20%
RBEFE AEREKLHR  BBHABE
NBRAPHRAETFE  WBARE - KR
s AREH %&ﬁLE’]WHﬁ BRETE

- URARZEZETFHEFEMRL

PR AR ZHh - BEEVE THEBER A RE -
BRI 2 RSP EIE R (CMS)
L/(;iiﬁ%im wFIENRE E—Kﬁﬁfi‘@ﬂzd\
AROREFE
BAARH EETH 51 ED 3%
W s B A B R AR EDE S
WEABMOEHRNBEEER
EREBRPHRAEFHBERE
REFRBROAR  WEEHLBEME

EPRAENKBIEFZREOWSE  NEETT
RE¥) 5 4R

EEREAMB TREMEK  —RHEE
PR IR F R R AR AE

ERARBERERAITEEM
BB BRARBERER -
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RiR - HgRER®RE(E)

OUR ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED)

Our green procurement practices
Our dedication to the environment is evident in our procurement practices.

As part of our operational support, we procure electronic and paper
products that have an environmental impact throughout their life cycles.
In response, we have developed a Green Procurement Policy that governs
our purchasing practices in day-to-day operations. In addition to our regular
practices in green procurement, certain criteria were added when choosing
suppliers, such as product environmental certification, fair trade label and
sustainability statement.

As a way of saving cost, the policy also encourages our staff to purchase
products with less packing and greater durability.

‘I PARTNERSHIPS

FOR THE GOALS

Our contribution to community
C&T is devoted to developing an inclusive and caring society focusing on

the human health and the environmental areas. Our target beneficiaries are
children in poverty, underprivileged families and the physically impaired.
As set out below, employees were encouraged to participate in different

voluntary services and charitable activities.

BRANERE (&)

BMANZEeRBER

BPNRBESR A ERRREHIREROESR - 3L
MBEETMARERERRBEER - Mit
FEmEREEMBRPEHRBENTE -
t RPEFTZASRBRR - RERMRXA
FEETHNEERR ERERBEEMRZIN
BFEEHREREREENTETHRE  fla
BRREMRE A FESERMAFERRESR -

REERE BRNTZBEEBERIBER
FAMEm®R -

R FIY + E R E AR
BEBRNERARERMENLE BEAA
BERFRBRAAHA -BEEIRREEME.
BEREREMBEAL - WA THAH
RMEBMEELEEARTRE REEE
(e

Organisers Contribution
TS =0
28 January 2022 Children’s Thalassaemia Foundation Cookie Charity Sale Charity product purchase
—F=-= WHEEMRELS O A BEREE®
—A=+\H
28 February 2022 The Community Chest of Hong Kong Skip Lunch Day Donation
—T-CF YN kA Eilih=y= B
—AZ=+NHRH
14 April 2022 Oxfam Hong Kong Oxfam Rice Event Donation
—B-CF L LMK R IF R B®
mMA+mA RiTE)
7 July 2022 Médecins Sans Frontieres Hong Kong (MSF) ~ MSF Day Donation
—E-=F ToEEAE EEAELH BXK
+hA+tH
11 August 2022 Orbis Orbis Mooncake Charity product purchase
ZECF B HR Charity Sale BEEEEMD
NA+—H B IREE
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BEMHRE (&)
BMETENER (&)

OUR ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED)

Our contribution to community (continued)

Organisers Contribution

TS Bt
17 August 2022 The Community Chest of Hong Kong Mooncake Charity Sale  Charity product purchase
T fF EN YN DR BEEEE®D
NA++tH
30 August 2022 Fu Hong Society Fu Hong Society Donation
T F KEe Flag Day B
NA=+AH KEgBEMER
13 October 2022 Orbis Orbis World Sight Day ~ Donation
—E-fF B HR BELHE ARER  8BXK
+A+=H
16 October 2022 Hong Kong Federation of Handicapped fERETT Donation, participated in the virtual and
—ZEF Youth physical walkathon to experience the
+A+RH BEREEESFHe life of the disabled

B 2EERKEMRS - AER
RS ATHAETR

25 November Children’s Thalassaemia Foundation Dress Red for Donation
2022 HMPEEMRERS Thalassaemia =L
—F- HEREREAIKHE
+—A=+HAA
27 November The Community Chest of Hong Kong Green Low Carbon Day  Donation
2022 ERERRT gt iviq=! B
T
+—A=++A8
2 December 2022 The Community Chest of Hong Kong Love Teeth Day Donation
—E-— EN YN N B

+=—A=H

RBMESKEEAR AT —T - _FFRH
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BiE g2 RERME(E)

OUR ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED) BPNIRE (&)
Awards and recognition RIFRAA
The Group has obtained and held the following major awards and ABEEBE &Hﬁlx/\TI RIERFES

certifications:

Year Organisers Awards

F40 EX 3 1 R1E

Since 2015 The Hong Kong Council of Social Service Caring Company

B —hFie BETERGHME SR B 1

Since 2015 The Hong Kong General Chamber of Small  Partner Employer Award

BT —hFR and Medium Business KEBER
FEPPNAMRERS

Since 2017 Federation of Hong Kong Industries Industry Cares

BTt Fi EEIXRg IERBEDL

Since 2018 Environmental Campaign Committee EnergywiSe Certificate

BT \Fie REEPEES EigEEE

Since 2018 Environmental Campaign Committee Wastewi$e Certificate

g 5’=@ }\ﬁfﬂ L‘iiﬁ i%b /\E ﬂﬁ:ma

Since 2018 Hong Kong Productivity Council Hong Kong Green Organisation

BT \Fie EREENRER BB EKE

Since 2019 Hong Kong Productivity Council Happy Company

B-ZE-NFiE BEEEENRER FO TIEM

Since 2019 Environment Bureau and The Electrical and  Energy Saving Charter and 4Ts Charter

B hFR8 Mechanical Services Department g ERATAE
RERMMEIRE

Since 2020 Department of Health and Advisory I\/lental Health Workplace Charter

BT -ZTFiE Committee on Mental Health FEERBSOE
BRRERKEHREGHAZES

Since 2021 Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency Business Resilience and Community Contribution Awards

BT -4 EEmERER MPERFFARE

Since 2021 Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency Anti-Epidemic Hygiene Measures Certification Scheme

BT —Fi BEEmERER BETRIE MRS
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ENVIRONMENTAL SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RiR - HERER®RE (E)

OUR ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED) BANERE (&)
Awards and recognition (continued) RIERAT (&)

Year Organisers Awards

F4 EHE 3]

Since 2021 Green Council Green Council Corporate Membership — Bronze Membership

BT i RIREES rEREEFE-RESE

2020 & 2022 Occupational Safety & Health Council Joyful workplace Occupational Health Award

—EFFR BEZ2EER w0 E @ 2B TR

—F-—

2022 SocietyNext Foundation INNOESG Prize

—T—-— MHEARES INNOESG 2

2022 The Hong Kong General Chamber of Small  Partner Employer Award

—T—-= and Medium Business [EEBSRBIES | =TT 3

FET b RERS

Future Directions KRR T @

C&T is committed to furthering business excellence through dedicated RHEE BN 3 R s b R 3R I ?iA& &R 77 H HY
efforts in ESG. In 2023, the Group will focus on two key areas: enhancing T BEBRREUEK —T_=F K&
employee education and engagement to raise awareness on sustainability BEPRMEREESE : NREEHE RS
and improving the sustainability performance of our office assets and HE DIERYAHREERNOEHRHZEHM
facilities. Through diverse initiatives and business solutions, we aim to make MAZEENREBBOAUFERE - BMELS
a meaningful contribution to building a sustainable society. BETIEHNEREREBAIR  REXRUFHER

EoEELER -

RBMESKEEAR AT —T - _FFRH
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RE - gREARE ()

HKEX ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX

BRI
EE]

N ?‘ig};i%q/ﬁ

&4l

ESGAspects RIE  HEBREABREEE Disclosedin T ZH& [Remarks &
A.Environmental A 3R3E
Aspect Al: Emissions [BE A1 : HEIRYD

Al

General Information on: Our relationship with the
Disclosure (@)  the policies; and environment
— AR EE ()  compliance with relevant laws and regulations BMERBHER
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.
BRARE R FoRZE RPN - MK R eV EEs
BENEEBREYVNELSN
@ BER: Kk
(b) BFHBETABERZENBBEELRN
BB R o
KPIAT. The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Not material C&T's operation does not
RAsRAE )&TETT Pemun s fa AR HE i EUE - TEKX involve emission to air and

discharge to water and land
in significant quantities.
Therefore, these figures are
not disclosed.
MR E L ERIEP U E
MZE5R KR KEHE
FCOE o BRIk F AP 3 A 45
BRABUR -

KPI'A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) Our efforts in improving
RS 45 I HZ | greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where environmental performance
A12 appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production BN ERRKRR

volume, per facility).

B (BE) RepRhEE (BE2) AZREHRE

(W@E.ﬁrg) EER) BRE(NWABEESU &

ERMEETE) °
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE - gRERRE ()

HKEX ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX (CONTINUED) BMXRE e RERBERES
ol (&)
ESGAspects RIE  HEBRERBREEE Disclosedin T ZH& [Remarks &
KPI'AT.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, Not material C&T's operation does not
RE2 45 IEHZ | where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production | TNE A involve hazardous waste
A13 volume, per facility). generation in significant
FFEAEEREEDES (UHEHE) kK (ER) & quantities. Therefore, this
E(MASEESMN BHERETE) - figure is not disclosed.
MR L ERIEP U E
EXREBEEY - At
B R R 2 B -
KPIAT4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, Not material C&T's operation does not
RASR 45 IEHZE | where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production | TNE X involve non-hazardous waste
Al4 volume, per facility). generation in significant
FrEAEEREEYEE (UEE) R (EA) = quantities. Therefore, this
EMAEEEEN -  §ERBTE) ° figure is not disclosed.
RIS TS & E BRI &
EEREREZEY - At
B R FR L BUR o
KPI'A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to | Climate change

RA SR A R AR
A15

achieve them.
WA L ERE B R R A ESEH B IZME
BUH) B -

TR

KPIA1.6
PR AE MR IR
A16

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, and a description of reduction
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

MR RAEERESEEMN L RiEAAE]
SNHVRRE R R RAED G W B RIS o

ESG governance structure,

commitment and strategy,

our relationship with the
environment, climate
change and our efforts in
improving environmental
performance

RE g hEAHRRE

AYERRES - RAIER
BORRE  RIRZLR
BB HERERR

MR EEER AR

T FFIR
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RE  HERERBRE(E)

HKEX ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX (CONTINUED)

B FRRIR -
=5l (#)

HERER

&4 5

ESG Aspects

R-HERERBEEA

Disclosed in

B

Remarks

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EBmEA2 : BRER

A2.5

produced.
KPR BEEMHEEE (LANEGHE
BEEBMMLE -

3) & (aniEm)

General Policies on the efficient use of resources, including Our environment
Disclosure energy, water and other raw materials. HMIHIRE
—MRiREE BRERER (BIEER K REMERMED BBUR
KPI'A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. | Our efforts in improving
RASR 45 I HZ | electricity, gas or oil) in total (KWh in '000s) and intensity | environmental performance
A2.1 (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). BB RERRERE
REAEISNEER HEEER (T - [aoh)
BREUTHETREFAHE) REE (MAEGESE
7 - BIERBAHE) -
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of | Not material C&T's operation does not
RASEAE WIEHZ | production volume, per facility). TEKX involve consumption of
A22 BFEKEREE (MAEBESSEM BIERETHE) ° water in significant quantities.
Therefore, this figure is not
disclosed.
RIS EBEEWTEEE R
EXKER o F kL F I &
WA IR
KPIA2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and ESG governance structure,
BSR4 MIEIE | steps taken to achieve them. commitment and strategy
A23 B FEI LB REAMGE B ERABERBHAE |and climate change
1R P ERER ) 22 B8 - BE g REREE -
R R R R RAIRE (b
KPIA2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing Not material C&T's operation does not
RS 45 UIEHZ | water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set | TNE X involve consumption of
A24 and steps taken to achieve them. water in significant quantities.
Wl SKEUEROR Fal AT EE - U RTE] S Therefore, this indicator is not
WAKIRZEERAELBHEE EMENAZE - disclosed.
MEEBLETEMEEK
SKEIR o BP0
WEZIER -
KPI' A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in | Not material As an IT services provider, C&T
BAH2AE WFEHZ [ tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit TEX does not produce any finished

products. For quantities of
paper consumed, please refer
to “Our efforts in improving
environmental performance”.
EREMEHR RGeS
M~ EEEAKm &
FAAMEENRRE
F2HRMABNHER
RERBR] -
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RE - gRERRE ()

HKEX ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX (CONTINUED)

B X IR
ol (4&)

RIE - HERE

AR EEL

ESG Aspects

R HERERBRSEER

Disclosed in

B

Remarks

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

JETE A3 :

RELRAER

A3.1

taken to manage them.
Bl EKTHEHRRELRABERNERNTE
KRMEBEAZENTE -

General Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on | Our relationship with the As an IT services provider, we

Disclosure the environment and natural resources. environment consider our operation not

— R E BUREITAEIRR R RARERERERNTZENBOR - | RPIEIRIBENEER impacting the environmental
and natural resources
significantly.
EREARERG AL rER -
BB RARBEEHR
B RARRE R MIERK &=
KB o

KPI'A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on Not material As an IT services provider, we

RASEAE MFETZ [ the environment and natural resources and the actions | NE X consider our operation not

impacting the environmental
and natural resources
significantly.
T’Eﬁﬁ%ﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁi‘%ﬁ%ﬁ :
BB RARBEEHIR
iﬁ&?&%éﬁﬁﬂz?ﬁ%ﬁii
N2

Aspect A4: Climate Change

BEA: TIREE

WM EENAIEeHBITAEEFENERTIE
HEEE REHTE -

General Policies on identification and mitigation of significant Climate change
Disclosure climate-related issues which have impacted, and those | S 15 &4t
—MEE which may impact, the issuer.
BRI NEHER RIS HEITAELFENE
ARIRHEBEENBR -
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues Climate change
BAHR4E SRIE1Z [ which have impacted, and those which may impact, the | & 1& &b
A4.1 issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.

MR EEER AR

T FFIR
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RE - gREARE ()

HKEX ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX (CONTINUED) BIFRE HERERHKREES
#5| (8§)

ESGAspects RIE  HEBREABREEE Disclosedin T ZH& [Remarks &

B.Social B.it&

Aspect B1: Employment B B1 : {E1E

General Information on: Our talent
Disclosure @  the policies; and BT AA
— AR EE (b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations

that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.
BHEHMREE BELES  TERE - RE-
FEME St RIBEAREMEFSREFR

@ BER: Rk
(b) BIFHBETABERZENEBEZLRD
BYE R} o
KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for Diversity and inclusiveness
BAHEAE WIEHZ | example, full- or part-time), age group and geographical | % Joib B2 6 A 1E
B1.1 region.

RIS - EEEDR (2B FRE) - FiRER &
WwEE S HEEAR -

KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and Diversity and inclusiveness
RABEAE WIEHZ | geographical region. Zb e A
B1.2 RMR - FhAR R RE S HEERARLLE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE - gRERRE ()

HKEX ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX (CONTINUED) BIFRE HERERKREES
#5| ()
ESGAspects RIE  HEBRERBREEE Disclosedin T ZH& [Remarks &

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

EmB2: REEEZ S

General Information on: Promoting employee health
Disclosure (@)  the policies; and and well-being
— BB (b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations RFE B R RABAL
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.
BRRHZ2ITERERMREEEROBELRE
=R
@ HB=E:R
() BFHETABERTZENHBERLSRH
BEH -
KPIB2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in Promoting employee health
RAHR4E SRIEAZ [ each of the past three years including the reporting year. | and well-being
B2.1 BE=F (BEREFR)BFRAITHOAZR [RAESRERIEN
L& o
KPIB2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Promoting employee health
BARENGEER (ATEEARIIERS - and well-being
B2.2 RTHE B2 B K As L
KPIB2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures | Promoting employee health
FAHAEWIEIZ | adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored. | and well-being
B23 R PT SR B ERRE L 2 - AR (R ESREELEN

TTRERTTEA -

Aspect B3: Development and Training & B3 : & K53

General Policies on improving employees'knowledge and skills | Developing talent
Disclosure for discharging duties at work. Description of training AT EERE
— M HE R activities.
BERRAEEBIT IEBRBE NN Z R HEE -
R Z RS ©
KPIB3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and Developing talent
BAHEAE WFETE | employee category (e.g. senior management, middle AT EERE
B3.1 management).
RUER REEEFIE S (MERERE  PRERE
B)NXIEERADL
KPIB3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by | Developing talent
RAHR4E RIEIZ [ gender and employee category. AT &R
B3.2 RURINEERERE D BREETKXINF

IR 8

MR EEER AR

T FFIR
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RE - gREARE ()

HKEX ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX (CONTINUED)

B FTRIR -
=5l (#)

HERER

&4l

ESG Aspects

R-HERERBEEA

Disclosed in

B

Remarks

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

[ETE B4 : 4 T %8

General Information on: Being an employer of choice | As an IT services provider, we
Disclosure (@  the policies; and RAEBEEE mainly employ talents who
— M H TR (b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations have specific qualifications
that have a significant impact on the issuer and work experience. We
relating to preventing child and forced labour. consider the risk in engaging
B IEET RAEH 25 TH) child and forced labor is very
@ BE:K low.
() BFHBETABERZENRBEELRHN REMB SRS ER -
B - BT ERRABREE
FE N AR TR SR AT -
HARBERETI ARG
BTHRRIFFEER -
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices | Low risk See remark for KPI B4 “General
R 4E SRIE1Z | to avoid child and forced labour. 1K = B Disclosure”
B4.1 it BB ERAR S E T REHST - RERERIERER — K
B et o
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices Low risk See remark for KPI B4 “General
BASR4E TIETE [ when discovered. 1K = B Disclosure”
B4.2 IR R R IE R B R A B ISR TR 25 REERIEER — K

WEE B -

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

JEmBs : fEEERE

PR AR IR IR
B5.1

minm s D HEHmEAE -

General Policies on managing environmental and social risks of | Supply chain management
Disclosure the supply chain. e

— R BT R SR IR IR Mt g AR R

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Supply chain management

R E R

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, | Supply chain management
BAHEAE WIEAZ | number of suppliers where the practices are being HEEERE
B5.2 implemented, how they are implemented and
monitored.
B A ERHED - mERTTEEED
WHEREE  ALRBBENRTRERTE -
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RiR - HERER®RE (E)

HKEX ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX (CONTINUED)

B X T IR
?ﬂ%@

CHERE

AR EEL

monitored.

it EREHERREEZBRERER KRB
B AREBERITRERITE -

ESGAspects RIE  HEBRERBREEE Disclosedin T ZH& [Remarks &
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental | Supply chain management
BAH2 A5 WHEHZ | and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are | £t i §& & 12
B5.3 implemented and monitored.
A B E R R S AR IRIE Mt g
BB - ARMEBRITRERTE -
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote Supply chain management
BAIRE IR | environmentally preferable products and services when | £ fi& # & 12
B54 selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and

Aspect Bé: Product Responsibility

[EMB6 : EMmEIT

General
Disclosure

—RWE

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling

and privacy matters relating to products and services

provided and methods of redress.

BRRHERNBRBNREREZ S B &

ERAMBEEARER T AN

@ BX:K

(b) BEFHBETABERZENEEERZERD
B -

Continuous improvement in
quality service

BERBGHESE

KPI B6.1
FAR A BT
B6.1

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health reasons.
EESCEXAEMBETRLEBEEFIERMA
ER =R

Not applicable
N E A

As an IT services provider,
C&T does not produce any
tangible products, and the
software products in general
do not exert any control

over hardwares that can
pose safety and healthy
consequence. This indicator is
therefore not applicable.
TEREMBI R HER -
RN EE A ER -
HEMHER RIS
AREER R B Eﬁﬁ)ﬂ?%ﬁ’a
E’JﬁEFFLﬂEHT i o

I EZ IR °

MR EEER AR

T FFIR

93



94
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RE - gREARE ()

HKEX ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX (CONTINUED)

BRXARE  HERERKREES

=5l (#)

REEERTTE

ESGAspects RIE  HEBREABREEE Disclosedin T ZH& [Remarks &

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints Continuous improvement in | Number of written products

BAH2AE WHEHZ | received and how they are dealt with. quality service and service related

B6.2 BEEANERRBRBHIRFEE AREBE L - |BERBOFESCE complaints is 1
BEREMANEDRRE
BIRFER 1

KPIB6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and Protecting IP rights, data

BASEAE WIEHZ | protecting intellectual property rights. privacy and cybersecurity

B6.3 T it £ 4 B TR AR PE RN EERE A ARV B A - REMBERE - BRI

ERk#EgL s

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall Continuous improvement in

RABEAE RIER | procedures. quality service

B6.4 B ERTERERE@BYPIRT BERBOFELICE

KPIB6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy Protecting IP rights, data

BRI 1R | policies, and how they are implemented and monitored. | privacy and cybersecurity

B6.5 HUEEE ERRERFLBECE - ARAEENT |REDBERE - BRI

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

[BHEB7 - RE)T

General
Disclosure

—REE

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money

laundering.

BRI R HEFRAERERN

@ BR: R

(b) BIFHBETABERTZENEBREEZLRD
WEF -

Upholding ethical conduct
REFBRET

KPI B7.1
FRSE A IR IR
B7.1

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.
REMERANHETASIHEERLIEEENE
HERARMEVEE RFARER -

i3

Upholding ethical conduct
REFBRET
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HKEX ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX (CONTINUED)

BT FTRIR -
=5l (#)

HERE

A EE S

ESGAspects RIE  HEBRERBREEE Disclosedin T ZH& [Remarks &
KPIB7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing | Upholding ethical conduct
BAHR4E MIE1Z [ procedures, and how they are implemented and RIFEEBRST
B7.2 monitored.
by e e R BT - U AT RER
FIE o
KPIB7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to Upholding ethical conduct
BA S 45 WIEAZ | directors and staff. B EIRF
B73 HmEERE TRHENRERE -

Aspect B8 Community Investment

BHBS : iRk &

General Policies on community engagement to understand the | Our contribution to
Disclosure needs of the communities where the issuer operates community
—REE and to ensure its activities take into consideration the | B P9 %1 44 [ £9 & Bk
communities’interests.
BN R2ERTREEMEMRFEMER
HEBEDHEERBERMRHBER
KPIB8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, Our contribution to
BB A MIBIZE | environmental concerns, labour needs, health, culture, | community
B3.1 sport). BMEEEAOER
HIERER (HE (RIRHE STHERK BER -
Ak EE) o
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus | Our contribution to
R B BIER |area. community
B8.2 EEIHBEMPBER(MeELRRE) BMETEROER

MR EEER AR

T FFIR
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements of
the Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the
financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year under review and
a discussion on the Group's future business development and important
events affecting the Company occurred during the year ended 31
December 2022 are provided in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement”
of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year ended 31 December
2022 using financial performance indicators is provided in the section
headed “Chairman’s Statement” of this report and other key performance
indicators are set out below.

Strategies

R BREE
Net cash flows from operating activities in 2022: HK$60.6 million (2021:
HKS$56.4 million)

RIZBZ _FHREEBFRE
T —F 56408 H7T)

Maintain the Group’s liquidity for future development

REAEENESRBIEAERKER

EECEREFTERENANFERERHZ
CEC CF+ A=+ B FEZEEZY
TR o

FEXK

ARABZEIBEXEBRREER -ETENER
AZEIBEBHBERMHEREM T - AKE
ZEIBEBUHERFALBERES) -

EH O

REAREENEBERE ANREHEAEER
REBERINBE T - —F+_A=+—
BIEFERAZREMBARRBREENERES
FEVRT R - BENAFR 2 [ ERmMmE] —& -

ERAMBRAESRHAKERBE T ——
ToA=T-BLEFEANKAETHDTH
RAFHRZ [EFBE] - MEMRERERER
EUE= 9SNNS

Key Performance Indicators (“KPls"”)

BER(HERE

BIERD

SIHEREFE 606085 (=

Cash and cash equivalents as of 31 December 2022: HK$309.8 million
(31 December 2021: HK$298.4 million)
RIBZZF+_A=+—HANRERERARLEE : 3.0%8E

BAT( 22—+ _-_A=1+—R1:

Enrich and enhance the Group's product portfolio

LEMRAAEENERES

Keep the Group’s staff turnover rate with no material adverse
change

BRAAEBE T RARRIEEANTTED

29841878 7T)

Number of new product/module/features launched: 9 (2021: 11)

FrEm,/ RE e BEMEE 9 (ZF=—F :11)

Staff turnover rate, representing number of resigned and terminated
staff during the year divided by number of staff of the Group as at
the year end date, in 2022: 27% (2021: 31%)

RIFE-_FHETRAR(TVIRFRBBLBERE T AR

URFEARNEEE T ARGHE
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (@)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, businesses and
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties. The key
risks and uncertainties identified by the Group are discussed in this section.
There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those shown
below, which are not known to the Group or which may not be material
now but which could become material in the future. Furthermore, risks can
never be eliminated completely due to inherent limitations in measures
taken to address them. Also, risks may be accepted for strategic reasons or if
it is deemed not cost-effective to mitigate them.

Strategic Risk
The business strategy may require the Group to develop its business both

organically and through new business combinations, strategic investments
and acquisitions. If market conditions change or for any other reasons, the
Group may decide to delay, modify or forgo some aspects of its growth
strategies.

Business Risk
The Group constantly faces the challenge of gauging and responding

promptly to market changes within the industry it operates in. Any failure
to interpret market trends properly and adapt its strategy to such changes
accordingly may have a material adverse effect on the Group'’s business,
financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

The Group has been looking into different kinds of business and investment
opportunities to broaden the revenue sources of the Group in order to
manage the associated risk and to create greater value for the shareholders.

The Board meets quarterly, or more often if necessary, to review the
Group’s operations and financial performance. The Board also considers the
economic environment and the industry risk in assessing the strategic risk as
well as the business risk. The management meets at least monthly to review
the business developments of the Group and keeps the Board informed on
any issues identified.

TERBRREFAHABER

AEBEWPTBHMRR  KEEE  EBRASA
REXTRERNMTHAAEEMTZE - AEEM
a8 Al 1) 3 2 AL B N A B BA R =R AN B R m
BRItz 5 kg FEAKEBRALR R
W AEREAEEHERKEFEARNE Mt ER K
THBEE - o EREYHEREENES
Rl B EET2HE - BF - AR

RS IE R SRR - X ER R KRR

THAEERS  HTESEZAR -

R g R B

EHREE KB BARIERARER A O - WG
BREMBBUERANRENEGER - 0ITHR
S ANEMIMNERE  AEELEEFLT
R EENES T HAIERRE -

R

ARER Bl B AL 1T 0 T 5 8 D BB 4
R i A T HT PR o REEEMMRET 58
LUHRRKREERK A e AREER
IR - REXERAIRBRERTNEE -

AEB-—ESRITABRENEBRREKRSE
BRAAKEZWARIR  LEERBRR NG
BREEE=EE-

Exe BT O RERNEATEREAT
MWAFER  ABHARE 2L RMBERR -
AR R R M EERARE EEQNEE
BRERZERTERAR EEENEEBANE
RO MR AREZ ZHER T WET
BE:SIE G

RBMESKEEAR AT —T - _FFRH
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (@)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(CONTINUED)

Operational Risk
Operational risk is the risk of financial loss or reputational damage resulting

from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems.
Responsibility for managing operational risks in the Group rests with every
function at both divisional and departmental levels.

Key functions in the Group are guided by standard operating procedures,
limits of authority and a reporting framework. The Group will continuously
identify and assess key operational exposures and report such risk issues
to the Board and/or senior management as early as possible so that
appropriate risk responses can be taken.

Technology Obsolescence
The Group's operations depend on its ability to innovate and the successful

deployment of continuously evolving technologies, particularly its response
to technological and industry developments, as well as its ability to foresee
and/or rapidly adapt to the emergence of disruptive technologies. The
Group cannot be certain that technologies will be developed in time to
meet changing market conditions, that they will perform according to
expectations or that they will achieve commercial acceptance. The Group
has made relentless efforts in producing and delivering premium products
and high quality services. Looking forward, the Company will continue with
its research and innovation to enrich and enhance its products portfolio.

Manpower and Retention Risk
The Group's success and ability to grow depends largely on its ability to

attract, train, retain, and motivate highly skilled and qualified managerial,
sales, marketing, administrative, operating, and technical personnel. The
loss of key personnel, or the inability to find additional qualified personnel,
could materially and adversely affect the Group’s prospects and results of
operations.

The Group recognises the employees as one of our most valuable assets
and will keep on providing competitive remuneration package to motivate
the employees and to attract any suitable candidates in the market. The
Group also regularly reviews the remuneration package of employees and
makes necessary adjustments to conform to the market standard.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (@)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial Risk
In the course of its business activities, the Group is exposed to various

financial risks, including market, liquidity and credit risks. The currency
environment and interest rates cycles may significantly affect the Group’s
financial condition and results of operations.

The Group’s earnings and capital or its ability to meet its business objectives
may be adversely affected by movements in foreign exchange rates,
interest rates and equity prices. In particular, any depreciation in the Group’s
functional currency may affect its net profit margin. The Group closely
monitors the relative foreign exchange positions of its assets and liabilities
and allocates its holdings of different currencies accordingly in order to
minimise foreign currency risk.

The Group may also be subject to liquidity risk if it is unable to obtain
adequate funding to finance its operations. In managing liquidity risk, the
Group monitors its cash flows and maintains an adequate level of cash and
credit facilities to enable it to finance its operations and reduce the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows.

The Group is also subject to exposure to credit risk from its customers. New
customers are subject to credit evaluation while the Group continues to
monitor its existing customers, especially those with repayment issues. Cash
is deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

The financial risk management policies and practices of the Group are
shown in note 36 to the financial statements.

Hazard Risk

The Group's business had been, to a certain extent, affected by the
recent global outbreaks of COVID-19. The global epidemic has resulted
in lockdowns and disruptions of transportations in various countries and
regions as well as a downward pressure in the global economy. In the event
that the outbreak of COVID-19 is not contained in Hong Kong, China or
globally in the near future, the economic activity across many industries in
the PRC, Hong Kong or worldwide, can be further adversely affected, which
could in turn have negative impact on the overall economy in the PRC,
Hong Kong and worldwide. Any economic downturn may adversely affect
the customer sentiment, weakening the demands for our products, and
in turn result in the reduction or even cessation of purchase orders for our
products, or delay in payment by our customers.

Further details are provided in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement”
of this annual report.

FTERBREFTHABEE (&)

51 7% [ B
REBESHBIESR  AEEZ A 5ER
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (@)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(CONTINUED)

Climate Risk
Climate risk is firstly classified as the Group’s material risk since 2021 and

was further evaluated from the impact of physical risk and transition risk.
The Board and the management were involved in managing such risk with
objective to reduce the impact from climate change.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group has established procedures in place to ensure that its operations
comply with applicable laws, rules and regulations. The Board is responsible
to monitor the Group’s policies and practices for achieving compliance with
legal and other regulatory requirements, and such policies and practices
are regularly reviewed. Any changes in the applicable laws, rules and
regulations are brought to the attention of relevant employees and relevant
operating units whenever necessary.

As far as the Board is aware, the Group has in all material respects complied
with laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group's
business and operations.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

Employees are valuable assets to the Group. The Group provides equal
employment opportunity and competitive remuneration packages to
attract and retain employees. In addition, the Group subsidises employees
to attend job-related training courses to enhance their career progression
and provides occupational health and safety information to employees to
raise their awareness. The Group prides itself on providing a safe, effective
and congenial work environment and it values the health and well-being
of its staff. Adequate arrangements, training and guidelines have been
implemented to ensure its working environment is healthy and safe. The
Group provides communications on health and safety matters and other
programmes to employees in order to raise their awareness of such issues
and enhance their related behaviour.

To suppliers and customers, the Group values mutually beneficial long
standing relationships with them by providing high quality services to
customers and developing mutual trust with suppliers.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (@)

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS (CONTINUED)

Details of the Group’s trade receivables and trade payables are set out in
notes 19 and 24 to the financial statements, respectively.

There was no material dispute between the Group and its business partners.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group does not operate in an environmentally sensitive business
and is predominantly service-oriented. However, the Group is committed
to the long term sustainability of the environment and communities in
which it operates. As a supporter of environmental protection, the Group
endeavours to comply with laws and regulations regarding environmental
protection and adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use of
resources, energy saving and waste reduction. The Group also strives for a
greener future by eco-friendly practices in various aspects of our operations.
Efficient and effective use of energy and resources are encouraged in the
operation and management level of the Group. “Green Guidelines and
News" are formulated and launched on a continuous basis via intranet or
email to promote the concept of "Reduce, Reuse and Recycle”and to arouse
the employee’s awareness of the importance of environmental protection.

Further details are provided in the section headed “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report” of this annual report.

DONATIONS

The Group's charitable donations during the year amounted to HK$9,000.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the Group’s
financial position at that date are set out in the financial statements on
pages 122 to 253.

An interim dividend of 6.5 HK cents per ordinary share was paid on 19
September 2022. The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend
of 7.5 HK cents per ordinary share and a special dividend of 5 HK cents per
ordinary share in respect of the year to shareholders on the Register of
Members of the Company on 12 June 2023.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (@)

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements, is set out on pages 255 to 256. This summary does not form
part of the audited financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND AWARDED
SHARES

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital, share options and
awarded restricted shares of the Company during the year are set out in
notes 27, 28 and 29 to the financial statements, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or
the laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the Company is
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year, the trustee of the Company’s restricted share award
scheme had, pursuant to the terms of the rules and trust deed of such
scheme, purchased from the market a total of 506,000 shares of the
Company being the awarded restricted shares. The total amount paid to
acquire these shares during the year was approximately HK$1,250,000.

Except as disclosed above, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, amounted to HK$110,335,000, of which HK$30,882,000 has
been proposed as final and special dividends for the year. In addition, the
Company's share premium account, in the amount of HK$53,104,000, may
be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for 40.9% of the total sales for the year and sales to the largest
customer included therein amounted to 30.8%. Purchases from the Group's
five largest suppliers accounted for 40.2% of the total value of external
supplies purchased and services consumed for the year and purchases from
the largest supplier included therein amounted to 17.8%.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group’'s five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors:
Ir. Ng Cheung Shing (Chairman)

Mr. Cheung Wai Lam
Mr. Leung King San Sunny
Mr. Ng Kwok Keung

INEDs:
Ms. Chan Yuen Shan Clara (appointed on 28 January 2022)

Mr. Ha Shu Tong (retired on 1 June 2022)

Professor Lee Kwok On Matthew

Mr. Poon Siu Hoi Casey (appointed on 20 March 2023)
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 20 March
2023 in relation to the retirement of Professor Lee Kwok On Matthew as an
INED. Professor Lee has notified the Company that he will retire and will not
offer himself for re-election as an INED at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

In accordance with bye-law 83(2) & 84 of the Company’s bye-laws, Ir. Ng
Cheung Shing, Mr. Leung King San Sunny, Mr. Poon Siu Hoi Casey and Mr.
Ting Leung Huel Stephen will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

All INEDs of the Company renewed their appointments with the Company
for specific terms of three years but are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the provisions of the Bye-laws.

The Company has received confirmations of independence from Ms. Chan
Yuen Shan Clara, Professor Lee Kwok On Matthew, Mr. Poon Siu Hoi Casey
and Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen, and as at the date of this report still
considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 19 to 22 of the annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors'fees are subject to shareholders'approval at general meetings.
Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s board of directors
with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the
results of the Group. In addition, the directors’ remuneration is reviewed by
the Remuneration Committee annually.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, every director shall be entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets and profits of the Company against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them may
incur in or sustain or about the execution of the duties of their office or
otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the Group throughout
the year.
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DIRECTORS’INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No director nor a connected entity of a director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, or any
of the Company’s subsidiaries was a party during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year and up to the date of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests of the directors in the share capital
and underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFQ"), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

EERNRG  REHEHzER

FR ZESHESZAETHERLARANL
/NSRS O NN VAR R RN SETE
MEBEAZRS RHIAKNTERIEE
BHE R -

BEEAEN

RERNRBEERFHREBRIL  HETLHFE
EREBARRE2HRERMERLY EBHE
B RITHER

EER R RAABBR D 2 i R A
A

NRZE-—F+_A=+—80 FBEZRNAR
AR EMREEE (E& LEFLBEKRN ([F
EREE KRG BXVELD) 2 A K& AE RS
BEARDBIBREESF B EEHE 352068
EEFBEZECMPLS Bk EmETAZ
FETEHF R HINEETASTHEARAR AR
R FT 2 e T

RAFEBRZHER

Number of shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

FERH#E 5o RERNE

Directly

Beneficially
owned

=R
BRER

Name of director

Percentage of
the Company's
issued share

Through
Controlled
corporation capital
AR

g c) ERITRAE
REREATF BAL

Ir. Ng Cheung Shing RRBEETIRM (@) 6,454,000 114,614,000 121,068,000 4853
Mr. Cheung Wai Lam REREE 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 040
Mr. Leung King San Sunny & #1504 1,030,000 - 1,030,000 041
Mr. Ng Kwok Keung REREE 200,000 - 200,000 0.08

8,684,000 114,614,000 123,298,000 4942
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN BEENROREBERD 2EZR K

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED) 2 (&)
Long positions in shares of an associated corporation: R—EHEBEEIERGZHFR
Number of shares Percentage of
BRAHE the associated
Name of Relationship Directly Through  corporation’s
Associated with the Classof  beneficially controlled issued
Name of director corporation company shares owned corporation share capital
Iz EE
B EE BHARAT HiE 7B ERITRA
BN 7B 2% % 13 %8 5 BERER ZEHAT Bok
Ir.Ng Cheung Shing Computer And Company's Non-voting 1,750,000 3,250,000 N/A
SRBAETRM Technologies subsidiary deferred (Note Ffi 5 (b)) TEA
International ERRlZ BEREEERL
Limited iog=FNG]
R Z R BR A A
Notes: M5
@@  The 114,614,000 shares were held by Chao Lien Technologies Limited (“Chao Lien”), @  CS. BV Limited 2 2 & B R RBHEHRER AR
a wholly-owned subsidiary of C.S. (BVI) Limited. Ir. Ng Cheung Shing was entitled to ([E® ) F5B 114614000 D - RREFLETR
exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at general EmﬁT‘EE/\C S. (BV) Limited Z IR R A& _E1T{E sk i% 4
meetings of C.S. (BVI) Limited, which in turn was entitled to exercise or control the TE=D 22— A E 2185 - ™ CS. (BVI) Limited
exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at general meetings of Chao Lien. BIERNBERRERE LITFEREFTE=92
Accordingly, Ir. Ng Cheung Shing was deemed, under the SFO, to be interested in — A ERFEE Bt REZHFRBAE G
all shares held by Chao Lien. REBLTEIRERMERARBHASEZRAR
ek B R o
(b)  The 3,250,000 non-voting deferred shares were held by Chao Lien. (b)  7%3,250,000 % EALE ZIEIBELER D MBHIFHE -
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the directors had f‘f% EXBEBREN RZTEZF+ZA=+—
registered an interest or a short position in the shares or underlying shares CHEESERAA T s CE MR A B 2 IR
of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to f SEERNT HEERBESLPERIE
be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified 352MFZB T EREE - IR EMBITAESEITE
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for FRGNFEEFAUSITAEGRRAIRBRAZ
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers. REZRSRAE o
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DIRECTORS’RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections “Share option scheme” and “Restricted
share award scheme” below, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company granted to any director or their respective spouses or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company,
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operated a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
primary purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Further details of
the Scheme are disclosed in note 28 to the financial statements.

No share option of the Company was granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed during the year.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted a restricted share award scheme (the "Award
Scheme”) on 22 May 2008 and renewed the Award Scheme on 31 May
2017 (the “Renewed Date”"). Pursuant to the Award Scheme, shares of
the Company (the "Awarded Shares”) are granted to eligible employees
(including directors) of the Group until the 10" anniversary from the
Renewed Date. The Company shall also pay cash to the appointed trustee
company for its acquisition and holding upon trust of the Awarded Shares
for the benefit of these employees and directors. The Awarded Shares will
then be transferred to these employees and directors upon vesting. The
aggregate number of shares to be awarded under the Award Scheme
throughout its duration shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company from time to time or such other percentage as notified to
them by the Board (provided that the overall limit on the number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under any other incentive or share option schemes
and under the Award Scheme must not exceed 30% of the shares of the
Company in issue from time to time).

Details of the Award Scheme and the shares awarded thereunder are set
out in note 29 to the financial statements.
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RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME BRI R0 =R B s & ()
(CONTINUED)

The following table illustrates the number of and movements of the TREJIEBE_ZT_—_F+_A=1T—HILF
Awarded Shares under the Award Scheme for the year ended 31 December ENZ R EIE T RZE RN BB RE#E) -
2022.

Number of Unvested Awarded Shares

AERRAROHA
Weighted
At Awarded Vested Forfeited At average
Name of category 1 January during during during 31December Vesting period of fair value
of participant 2022 theyear theyear theyear 2022 Award date Awarded Shares per share
SRENRA gt S gt it BRmE
il bkl -A-A ERERE EREER FRERN t=A=1-H REZRAS RRRORES THATE
HK$
BT
Directors
g2
Ir.Ng Cheung Shing 100000 - (50,000 - 50,000 14May 2018 30 April 20190 30 April 2023 248
RRBLETEM 05 ‘E—H¢EH_+EI
EATEA ZRZZEMAZTH
Ir.Ng Cheung Shing - 150000 - - 150000 6 June 2022 30 June 2023 to 30 June 2025 224
RRBLETED Ik S ZEIZERACTAZ
AARA ZECRERACTA
Mr. Cheung Wai Lam 100000 - (50,000 - 50,000 14May 2018 30 April 2019 o 30 April 2023 183
RERLE “I-)\E “E-NEMAZTRE
TATHmA ZECCEMAZTH
Mr.Ng Kwok Keung 100,000 - (50,000 - 50000 14 May 2018 30 April 2019 o 30 April 2023 243
REBEE “3-E “E-WEWMA=1EE
AATEA ZEIZEMAZTH
Mr.Ng Kwok Keung - 150000 - - 150000 6June 2022 30 June 2023 to 30 June2025 224
RE®RE i St ZBZERR=THE
~ARA S Sy B o
Sub-total
15t 300000 300000 (150000) - 430000
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EEgREE)
RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME BREIR 5 RE & ()
(CONTINUED)
Number of Unvested Awarded Shares
ABRRBRGHUE
Weighted
At Awarded Vested Forfeited At average
Name of category 1January during during during 31 December Vesting period of fair value
of participant 2022 theyear theyear the year 2022 Award date Awarded Shares per share
BEENE RZBZZ St b2 SHmE
il kbl -A-H ERERR ERERE EmERE t=A=t-H RIEZBAH RRRGEEY YHAYE
HK$
BT
Other employees
AR
In aggregate 530000 - (240,000) (110,000) 180,000 14 May 2018 30 April 2019 o 30 April 2023 243
ait —F-05 ZZ-NEMAZTRE
AATIA S 1)
In aggregate 252,000 - (84000) (80,000) 88,000 4 July 2019 30 June 2020t0 30 June 2024 3N
ait “E-hE “EI5ERA-TAE
tAmA ik g =
In aggregate - 870,000 - - 870,000 6 June 2022 30 June 2023 to 30 June 2025 224
At i St ZECZERRZTHE
~ARA “ECRERAZTH
Sub-total
NGt 782,000 870000 (324000 (190,000) 1138000
Total
it 1,082,000 1,170000 (474000) (190000 1588000
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FTERRREMAL (EFADT
EEYFETBRAR)RROREMA
ARG S

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ (NOT BEING A DIRECTOR OR CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OF THE COMPANY) INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

RZEBE-_—F+_A=+—H U TALXRQF
AR EREBEES M EIRFIFE336IER T
GEZHERZEMAGARAREZITRARE

As at 31 December 2022, the following interests of more than 5% of the
issued share capital and share options of the Company were recorded in
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to

section 336 of the SFO.

Long positions:

Name of shareholder
of the Company

ARERREEER

Capacity and nature of interest

SORERME

A% 50 DA 2 #ERS -

HR:

Percentage of
The Company’s
Issued share
capital

L NG

it ERTRA
EEREE Ok

Number of
ordinary
shares held

Number of
share options
held

i
BREHE

Chao Lien Technologies Limited @) Directly beneficially owned 114,614,000 45.94 -
BEHRERAF BERERHER
CS. (BVI) Limited @ Through a controlled corporation 114,614,000 4594 -
EBELHIAT
Puttney Investment Limited (‘PIL") (b) Directly beneficially owned 29,148,938 1168 -
BEEERH
Hutchison International Limited (‘HIL") (b) Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 1168 -
BRREHRA
Hutchison Whampoa Limited ("HWL") (b) Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.68 -
MEEHARRA ([FE]) BBREHILA
Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (‘CKH") (b) Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.68 -
RICEERERAR ([RE]) BBREHIDNA
CKHutchison Holdings Limited ("CKHH") (b) Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.68 -
RINZEEFARAR ([RM)) BBREHILNA
Hui Yau Man Directly beneficially owned 26,782,000 10.73 -
X ERERAA
Webb David Michael Directly beneficially owned 5,564,665 223 -
BERERER
(@] Through a controlled corporation 9,397,335 377 -
BBEAHAT
ANNUAL REPORT 2022 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ (NOT BEING A DIRECTOR OR CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OF THE COMPANY) INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED)

Long positions: (continued)
Notes:

(a) The interest was also disclosed as an interest of Ir. Ng Cheung Shing in the section
"Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares” of this
report.

(b) PIL is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HIL, which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of HWL. CKH is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CKHH and subsidiaries of CKH are
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of more than one-third of the voting
power at the general meetings of HWL. By virtue of the SFO, CKHH, CKH, HWL and
HIL were deemed to be interested in the 29,148,938 shares of the Company held by
PIL.

() The 9,397,335 shares were held by Preferable Situation Assets Limited ("PSAL"). PSAL
was 100% directly owned by Mr. Webb David Michael and accordingly, Mr. Webb
David Michael is deemed to be interested in the said shares held by PSAL.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, no person, other than
the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the section
"Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares’
above, had registered an interest or a short position in the shares or

"

underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, there was no connected transaction nor continuing
connected transactions which need to be disclosed pursuant to Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the contingent liabilities of the Company and the Group are set
out in note 32 to the financial statements.

FTERRREMAL (XHFERF
EERFETBRAR)RROKEM
ARG ()

waE: (&
GEE

@  REZTRARSE[ESNRO RAERN ZEa
RRRI—EBARBERRRBEETIRMZ #E -

b)) PLAHLZZEMWBRAR HLAAMEZZ2EN
BRAl -REARMZZEMNBAR mMEEZ
MBARBEAMEZRERG EHAITHERE
FIBB =92 — IR - RBEHFRPE K -
R RIE - ME R HILEAR VER PILET 5 29,148,938
RA AR B P B RER -

(© 9,397,335 % % 17 £ Preferable Situation Assets Limited
(['PSAL ]) # F ° PSAL B3 Webb David Michael 5& 4 &
BHEEE s - At - Webb David Michael 5t &
HWRABRPSALE A 2 Ll fn B i o

BREABEEN R _F+_-_A=1+—
B FRERSEN EXTESERBD MR R D
ZREGENORR I — B2 A RRERIN - BRELM
ALTRAR B AR D A RIEE S
NEERDIZE 336 IRA TRk 2 R ZXR -

HEXZREFERERS
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RBMESKEEAR AT —T - _FFRH

111



112

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (@)

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in the report, there is no other material subsequent event
undertaken by the Company or by the Group after 31 December 2022 and
up to the date of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the corporate governance of the Group are set out in the section
headed “Corporate Governance Report”in this annual report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditors of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Ir. Ng Cheung Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2023

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

REALNRERE

BEAAGBAHAUBZERNTRESAM
PARREBRS ARFEEITHRALEZLE
5%MHARALTHESE -

WEHEB2EER
BMAREFMPEEEIN RZZE-__F+=A4
Tt BEREBEEARFRBEL AR HA
SEBEETEMEAREEE-

SRER
FHASEMNDEEANFBIHNARNFFRIE
EERWME]—F o

B E AR

LZXEEEEHABER  MARB KR ERE
Hx%ﬂiﬁ/\ikae—lﬁﬁ%’r CEEEAAN
N AL ELED o

RREFS

2

RRBEAETEM

BB —FT-_=F=A-1H



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B RHENHRE

EY =i

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
COMPUTER AND TECHNOLOGIES HOLDINGS LTD
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Computer And
Technologies Holdings Limited (the [ Company ]) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 122 to 253, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BNBAGEEERAAZERR

(REFRZEZME L BERAA)
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RN e B AZ 5 122 & 253 B Fr & BI B &
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
By RBE®RE ()

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BZBERE ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

HEFZER

Revenue from contracts with customers

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recognised
certain contract revenue from the provision of application
services over time, generally using the input methods, by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
services. Input methods recognise revenue on the basis of the
Group's efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a performance
obligation relative to the total expected inputs to the
satisfaction of that performance obligation. The determination
of the progress towards complete satisfaction of the services
involves significant management judgements and estimates,
including various factors affecting the total expected inputs to
the complete satisfaction of the services.

We focus on this matter due to the significance of such revenue
and the significant accounting judgements and estimates
required in estimating the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the services.

The related disclosures about significant accounting judgements
and estimates are included in note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

AEBM BT NNEERRELRSEE

Our related key audited procedures included, amongst others, the
following:

We obtained an understanding and performed testing of the
Group's controls over its process to recognise contract revenue
from the provision of application services, including the
measurement of the progress towards complete satisfaction of
application services. We selected a sample of relevant contracts
entered into during the year to obtain understanding of their
key contract terms, such as contract price, scope of services
and deliverables. We checked to their project status reports
and related supporting documents showing, for example, costs
incurred to date relative to the total expected costs to the
complete satisation of the services to evaluate the measure of
progress used by management for revenue recognition.

Apart from the above, we assessed the significant judgements
and estimates made by management through the examination
of a sample of project documentation, including, inter alia, the
total expected inputs, by checking to relevant internal records
and/or the invoices or quotations provided by subcontractors/
other suppliers, and discussion of the status of those projects in
progress and relevant factors affecting the total expected inputs
to the complete satisfaction of the services with management.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
By RBE®RE ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) FEAEEXEE(EF)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ARz ETNNEERRELRSEE

Key audit matter

HEFEXER

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Impairment assessment of goodwill

As set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group had goodwill (the “Goodwill”) acquired through
business combinations with a total carrying amount of
approximately HK$133 million allocated to cash-generating
units (the “CGUs") of various application services. The Goodwiill
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that its carrying amount may
be impaired.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the CGU to which the goodwill relates and whether the
recoverable amount of that CGU is less than its carrying amount.
For the year under review, the recoverable amount of each of
the CGUs has been determined based on the CGU’s value in use
calculation using cash flow projections specific to the CGU and
applying a discount rate which reflects specific risks associated
with the CGU.
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We evaluated management’s impairment assessments of the
Goodwill and the key audit procedures we performed included,
inter alia, the following:

assessing the key assumptions and estimates used in
management’s respective value in use calculations using
discounted cash flow projections, including, inter alia,
budgeted/forecasted revenues and margins, growth rates
and discounted rates;

obtaining an understanding of the current and expected
future developments of the respective CGUs and factors
that might affect key assumptions and estimates of the
cash flow projections and discount rates applied;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
By RBE®RE ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) FEEXEE(E)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

AR 2 E T NARERRERSE

REEREE

The impairment testing of goodwill required management to
make certain significant accounting estimates and assumptions
that would affect the reported amount of goodwill and related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

We focus on this matter due to the magnitude of the total
balance involved and the significant judgements and estimates
required in determining the recoverable amounts of the CGUs.

The related disclosures about significant accounting judgements
and estimates and impairment testing of goodwill are included
in notes 3 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.
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involving our internal valuation specialists to assist us
in evaluating the methodology used and certain key
assumptions and estimates made by management in
their goodwill impairment assessments, including, inter
alia, the specific discount rate and long-term growth rates
applicable to the respective CGUs;

evaluating management’s assessments about reasonable
possible changes in certain key assumptions and
estimates, as appropriate; and

assessing the adequacy of related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
By RBE®RE ()

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
By RBE®RE ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
alsor

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
By RBE®RE ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
By RBE®RE ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Yat Fai, Peter.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

20 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mERER

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #{Z—Z - —F+—-A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
—E—-= —E-—
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAT
REVENUE PN 5 268,719 265,504
Cost of sales and services SHE K AR TS A A (123,719) (113,073)
Gross profit EF 145,000 152,431
Other income and gains, net Hqth Ug A K U 25 5 58 5 13,642 5,367
Foreign exchange differences, net VE W 2 R ER 866 (403)
Fair value gains/(losses), net: AEEWE, S (ER) F58
Financial assets at fair value through BATELERARY
profit or loss MG ERE (2,332) 163
Investment properties wEYE (80) 500
Selling and distribution expenses SHE K9 $H R X (32,153) (33,068)
General and administrative expenses, net — MR R AT S R (62,490) (60,626)
Finance cost & A 7 (397) (245)
Other expenses HiAx (10,624) (6,492)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RRBE A % A 6 51,432 57,627
Income tax expense FrEHiA X 10 (4,467) (4,634)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR N E BB F 46,965 52,993
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: LT AL HEA
Owners of the parent ISYNEIEZZEPN 47,011 53,844
Non-controlling interests FE 2 ) 1 2 (46) (851)
46,965 52,993
2022 2021
—=-= —E-—F
HK cents HK cents
A B
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLETO &2 FEERKREESG
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE ERER
PARENT 12
Basic HIAR 19.02 2176
Diluted e 18.94 2167
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEERER

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #{Z—ZF - —F+—-A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
—=E_— —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 7N B A 46,965 52,993
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hip 2 EH KA
Other comprehensive income that may be REEERE - M2 EIR AR REER
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods: D EEEHK :
Exchange differences on translation of foreign BREBIINEBREE ZERZH
operations (4,141) 1,535
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR AEEEHBALRE
THE YEAR 42,824 54,528
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: BT AL
Owners of the parent ISSNEIEZ =N 42,870 55,379
Non-controlling interests FE 12 ) 1 2 (46) (851)
42,824 54,528

g ZmEEERA A —EB-FER



124

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e R R

31 DECEMBER 2022 —ZE——#+—-A=+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Right-of-use assets

Goodwill

Other intangible assets

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss — debt investment

Deposits

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade receivables

Contract assets

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

Tax recoverable
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss — listed equity investments
Pledged bank deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables, other payables and accruals

Contract liabilities
Lease liabilities
Tax payable

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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18

21

20

22

23
23

24
25
15(b)

2022 2021
—ZE=-= T —
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET TAT
1,250 1,212
66,710 66,790
10,815 18,142
135,001 135,001
45,734 56,358
2,100 2,100
2,020 2419
2,205 2,061
265,835 284,083
16 36
50,916 45,601
25,301 25,628
15,897 15,041
5,527 3,772
4,205 7,546
1,020 1,193
309,773 298,397
412,655 397,214
69,160 63,718
54,190 54,222
7,415 7,923
8,469 7,428
139,234 133,291
273,421 263,923
539,256 548,006




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

e MR R (E)

31 DECEMBER 2022 —E -~ +_A=+—H

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables

Contract liabilities

Lease liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners of the parent

Issued capital
Share premium account

Shares held under the restricted share award

scheme
Other reserves

Proposed final and special dividends

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Ir. Ng Cheung Shing & & 5 £ £ T2 ff

Director 2%

FRBEE
Hfth & BR
BHAR
HEAE
ELERIAR R
FRBAERE
BEFE

R
BATRERAEGER
BEBITHRA

P04t 18 AR

RIB A IR I (0 52 B =t 8175
B2

H it f# e

R R 3 5 Rl A B

FEFE I MR T
ks

2022 2021
—=E_— —E-—F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FERT FHET
24 39 -
25 1,407 1,850
15(b) 4,612 10,325
26 10,107 12,202
16,165 24,377
523,091 523,629
27 24,949 24,949
27 53,104 53,104
27 (6,204) 6,011)
418,918 422919
11 30,882 27,180
521,649 522,141
1,442 1,488
523,091 523,629

Mr. Leung King San, Sunny 2 5 5t &£

Director 2%

MR EER AR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEnBER

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #{Z—ZF - —F+—-A=+—HILFE

Attributable ers of the parent

Shares held

Share

lssued  premium  share award ent  Goodwil ! Retained

apital  accoun scheme profits

Bhf
HKS000
Th7

Non-
controlling

intel

FEERItE

At T January 2021 24949 53104 (4.480) 5673 (7.227) 746 (583) 411336 29,702 513220 2339 515559
Profit for the year REERT - - - - - - - 53844 - 53844 (851) 52993
Othercomprehensiveincome ~ AEFEMAHEMA :
for the year:
Exchange differences on BEBNERREL L
translation of foreign ERER
operations = = = = = = 1535 = = 1535 = 1535
Total comprehensive income AEE2ERAEE
for the year - - - - - - 1535 53844 - 55379 851) 54528
Purchase of shares held underthe B E AR 1R (3 B3t 2l
restricted share award scheme ~ JE FIRER 29 - - (2,707) B - - - - - (,707) = (2,707)
Vesting of shares held under the R {3 $2 @1zt &5 T
restricted shareaward scheme RN 8 29 - - 1176 (1,176) - - - - - - - -
Share award arrangements R REIZH 29 - - - 838 - - - - - 838 - 838
Final 2020 dividend declared ER-F-ERERGRE = = = = = = = @ ) - 4
Interim 2021 dividend “I2-FhlRE 11 - - - - - - - (48) - (148%) - (148)
Proposed final 2021 dividend BE-Z--FRERE n - - - - - - - (27,80) 27,180 - - -
At31 December 2021 RZBZ-%+2R
==Ff 24949 53104 (6,011) 5335 (7227) 746 952 43113 27,180 522,141 1488 523629
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
mEERSBR (R

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #{Z—ZF - —F+—-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent
BAREE AR
Other reserves
HibfE

Shares held
under the
Share  restricted Share-based

Proposed
Exchange final and Non-
controlling Total
capital  account scheme reserve reserve funds reserve profits  dividends Total interests equity
REARH
REGER
FHEEZ  REAR ESARE RERAR FiRRM
BRTRA ROERE Rt fif HERE HRES BE  RERT  %ARR a7 B ERAE
Notes HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
i3 Tén TEn Tz TEnr TEx TEx TEx TEr TEx TR TEn TEn
(note30)  (note30)
(Wik3o)  (HfsE30)

Issued  premium shareaward  payment  Goodwill  Reserve fluctuation  Retained special

At January 2022 R-E-—%-F-H 24,949 53,104 (6,011) 5,335 (7,227) 746 952 423113 27,180 522,141 1,488 523,629
Profit for the year AEEER - - - - - - - 47 - 47 (46) 46,965
Other comprehensiveincome ~~ AFFEMEENA :

for the year.

Exchange differences on BEBNEBREL L

translation of foreign ERES
operations - - - - - (4141) - - (4141) (4,141)

Total comprehensive income AEER2ERALE

for the year - - - - - @4141) 4701 42,870 (46) 42,824
Purchase of shares held underthe B8 AR R (7 225t 2l

restricted share award scheme 8 Fik {7 b - - (1,250) - - - - - - (1,250) = (1,250)
Vesting of shares held under the R I {3 $2 1zt &I T

restricted shareaward scheme [R5 8 29 - - 1,057 (1,057) - - - - - - - -
Share award arrangements R REIZH 29 - - - 1,177 - - - - - 1177 - 1177
Final 2021 dividend declared ER-E--FRERE - - = = = = = @) (7180  (27223) - (1m)
Interim 2022 dividend 11 - - - - - - - (16,066) - (16,066) - (16,066)
Proposed final and special

2022 dividends KAkE 11 - - - - - - - (30882 30882 - - -
At 31 December 2022 i

== 24,949 53,104 (6,204) 5,455 (7,227) 746 (3,189) 423133 30,882 521,649 1,442 523,091

B _FER

MR EER AR
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YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #;,

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERTRER

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance cost
Bank interest income
Dividend income from listed investments at
fair value through profit or loss
Gain on disposal of items of property, plant
and equipment, net
Fair value losses/(gains), net:
Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss
Investment properties
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of
trade receivables, net
Amortisation of other intangible assets
Equity-settled share-based payment expense
Gain on lease modifications

Decrease/(increase) in inventories
Increase in trade receivables
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables,
other payables and accruals
Decrease in contract liabilities

Cash generated from operations
Hong Kong profits tax refunded/(paid), net

Overseas taxes paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

2T

FH—RA=+—HIFE

REZHREB2HERE
B 35 A it A
R
MGER
RITH B WA
BT ELEEARZ
ETIRERS KA
HEWE  BFER&RBERE
ZWasF AR
RFEER () F 8
BRFELBEmARLZ
MBEE
REME
ME  BERRBZITE

EREEEZNE

FEWE 5 RFURE,
(B ERE) F8]

H{th 2 E B B3R
PrigiE B AR AR
HEER] 2 ¥zt

FER L,/ ()

FENS R 5B A
TEATHOR « 5 B A AU
B, (HB90)
SWEERL /(M)
BB SER - HAEA R
RAEE SR, (R4
AHBERD
MEEBFERS
RE/ (B4#) SBEFEH
P8

B 408 MBI
MEEFDFBZRLRE
8

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

2022 2021
—ZE=-= T —
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET TAT
51,432 57,627
397 245
(5,950) (2,508)
(421) (505)
(1) (12
2,332 (163)
80 (500)
862 1413
8,064 6,125
837 (123)
10,624 6,492
1,177 838
- (574)
69,433 68,355
20 (29)
(6,061) (1,015)
(457) 2,582
327 (5,380)
5,481 (3,400)
(475) (4,945)
68,268 56,168
(7,559) 247
(71) (64)
60,638 56,351




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
RERERER(E)

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #{Z—ZF - —F+—-A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
—=E_— —E-—F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHExT T T
Net cash flows from operating activities KEEBFB RS RE
R 60,638 56,351
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETFEHFIEB2RERE
Bank interest received B UERTT A& 5,950 2,508
Dividends received from listed investments at 1A FELBZE AR Z
fair value through profit or loss FHREREKA 421 505
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEYHE BERZEEE
equipment (939) (641)
Additions to other intangible assets REHMEREE - (1,894)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEYE - BERZBIAEE
plant and equipment FriS A 1 15
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair &R A FELLIBZE AR Z
value through profit or loss - listed equity S EEMBHIE—
investments ERAEE 1,009 -
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits 2 &R ITERR D (38 I0) 173 (527)
Decrease/(increase) in non-pledged bank Wk s R EIHR A B R = (8 A
deposits with original maturity of more than ZEEBRITETORLD
three months when acquired (3% n) 83,096 (113,979)
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities & /EEFTE, (FTA) 231
EmEFHE 89,711 (114,013)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEFE B RERE
Purchases of shares held under the restricted & & A R $I A% 1D SEB) 51 2l
share award scheme ERNI S (1,250) (2,707)
Principal portion of lease payments HENKHASE D (6,948) (7/432)
Dividends paid BRI E (43,289) (44,589)
Interest paid ERFE (397) (245)
Net cash flows used in financing activities MEEBFACRERE
et (51,884) (54,973)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) INCASHAND RE&ERZERBESEEZ
CASH EQUIVALENTS B, GRd) #88 98,465 (112,635)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F ¥ 2R & RERIIRSEE 116,497 227,711
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net MER BT 2 B FRR (3,993) 1,421
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZEASREAREEE
AT END OF YEAR 210,969 116,497

MR EER AR

B _FER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
RERERER(E)

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #{Z—ZF - —F+—-A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
—=E_C- —E-—F

HK$000 HK$'000
FEx THET

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND BERERBEEELR

CASH EQUIVALENTS 2
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the HREMBIKARMTZ

consolidated statement of financial position HekERBEEE 309,773 298,397
Non-pledged bank deposits with original W B RS R BB B iR 8 = (& A

maturity of more than three months when Z B IRIRITIE K

acquired (98,804) (181,900)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the FEReERERMATZ

consolidated statement of cash flows HekEFRBEEEE 210,969 116,497

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR R MY

31 DECEMBER 2022 — - —#+—-HA=+—H

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the
Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is
located at Level 10, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal
activities:

provision of enterprise applications software and e-business
services for enterprises including the provision of enterprise
applications software (including Software as a Services (“SaaS")
product offering) with implementation and ongoing support
services; the Government Electronic Trading Services (“GETS"),
cloud services and other related value-added services;

provision of information technology (“IT") solutions
implementation and application software development
(including SaaS product offering); provision of IT and related
operation/infrastructure outsourcing services; and provision
of IT systems and network infrastructure with related design,
implementation and ongoing support services; and

property and treasury investments.

NREH

BMEBASREEAERARIIRARER
MERZz2EBRAR  HEMHSEEMLRN
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda ° AN A &) & B & £ i B 7
B EIE BB 1005 BUE B 2 B 1042 o

FAAEEREATERERR

AEH¥RHCERBEHELE TS
BRE BREREHFEERLEE
TIEREOCEEBEMS (P BE
B AR TS (T BN AR TS ) 2= M 4
fE)  BURE T8 5 R ([GETS]) »
i RS & b B RE I (E RS ¢

REEMB R TERBER]) BRT
REELRERRNMER (A EEH
TFRNAR TS 2 fn (1) : IRELE AR
RABREE ER RN IR
REHERAMRERLEEERR
Mo WIAEBRG BEERFEX
RS &

MERBBIRE -

Bt X EE BB A A —EB-FER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 - —F+_-A=+—H

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 1. DEIER(E)
Information about subsidiaries MBARZESR

ARBEEMBARZFHBOT

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of incorporation/

Issued ordinary/

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

registration and
business

E3) A 31D

BEMH

registered share
capital
BRITEE/
R A

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

FRARERFESZED L

2022 2021
———

—_—

Principal activities

FEXRH

Computer And Technologies British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1,000 100 100 Investment holding
(BVI) Limited Hong Kong A% 1,000% T REER
REREREE/BE
Computer And Technologies Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 100 100 Provision of IT solutions
International Limited 5 Non-voting deferred © development and
B 2R AR DA HK$5,000,000 implementation services,
TEk2ET investment holding and
ERERELO treasury investments
5,000,000 7T REZAMBRBRTRER
Bl - REERK
EBRE
Computer And Technologies PRC/Mainland China Registered and paid up 100 100 Sale of computer networks
International Trading (Shanghai) FR B /h B At capital US$200,000 and system platforms
Company Limited © At R E R A HEERBRRZARTA
RBAGERERE S (LE) 2000003 7
BRARE
Computer And Technologies PRC/Mainland China Registered and paid up 100 100 Provision of system and network
(Shanghai) Company Limited © R /s Bl fa it capital US$3,500,000 integration services
LEMBERRRBERAFO AR B YR R RGN B SR
3,500,000 7T
Computer & Technologies British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 100 100 Investment holding and treasury
Investment Limited Hong Kong LREk1ET investments
RERELEE/BE REBRKEBRE
C&T (Guangzhou) Investment Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100 Property holding
Limited Ei TER2BT REME

B (BN REBRAA

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 —E -~ +_A=+—H

NAER (&)
MR Z2EF (&)

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 1.

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Place of incorporation/
registration and

Issued ordinary/

registered share Percentage of equity

business capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
HEMRYL/EME BEROTEE/
EEBE R ARREERAEZASIL FEXR
2022 2021
—E-C
C&T (Hong Kong) Investment British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 100 100 Property holding
Limited Hong Kong TRERIET BEME
KBERAHE/BE
Computer And Technologies Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100 100 Provision of IT solutions
Solutions Limited /8 EBA% 1000078 7T development and
R EERA A implementation services
REZAMBBRRTRER
REBRS
Computer And Technologies PRC/Mainland China Registered and paid up 100 100 Provision of IT solutions
Solutions (Shenzhen) Company =,/ B R capital US$1,128,000 development and
Limited © At R ERRA implementation services
g ORI BR AR 1,128,000 7T REZAMBBRRATRER
REHRS
Computer And Technologies Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100 100 Provision of human resources
Resources Limited B LA 10,0008 7T management
R ERERBRAA REANERER
Computer And Technologies Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100 100 Provision of enterprise
Software (Hong Kong) Limited &7 E 1B 1000057 applications software and
ME R G al (F8) AR AR related operation
REECFEHEARARE
B
Global e-Business Services (BVl)  British Virgin Islands/ Class A USS1,600 100 100 Investment holding

Limited

Hong Kong
RERLRB/BA

Class B US$400
AZE1600ETT
BAE4003E T

MR EER AR

RERK

—T— —FFIR



134

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 - —F+_-A=+—H

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 1. DEIER(E)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) MEBATZER (&)

Place of incorporation/  Issued ordinary/

registration and registered share Percentage of equity
business capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
HEMRYL/ERE ERATER/
EEBE AR ARREERFTEZESE ETEXRHK
2022 2021
—g==f —2-—F
Global e-Business Services Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,010,000 100 100 Provision of enterprise
BRETHERBERAR &S LB 10100007 7T applications software services

REEFEMERRSE

Global e-Trading Services Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2,501,000 100 100 Provision of e-business related
HESRBEARAT G T3 0% 2,501,00075 7 services, including government
electronic trading services

REETEIEARE &

ERREFE SRS
IPL Research Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$3,000,000 100 100 Provision of enterprise
G Non-voting deferred applications software and
HK$300,000 related operation outsourcing
4% 3,000,000/ 7T services and investment
BRFBELO holding
3000007 7T REtEFRNERARIERE

ESNHIRBIARIRE R

Platinum China Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100 100 Trading of computer software
BB L 3mAx 10,0007 T licences, provision of

training, implementation
and maintenance of software
services, and investment
holding

BEESHMSAE  _E
B Bk gER
BARREER

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 —E -~ +_A=+—H

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Platinum Software Systems
(Shanghai) Company Limited ®

HeR4 R (LE)
BRARO

Sanyo Extended System Services
Limited
—HRRESGERAR

Sanyo Extended Data Systems
Limited
—HRRERBRAR

LEBRRHFARAR

Place of incorporation/
registration and
business

ML ERR

EEBE

PRC/Mainland China
B/ R E A

Hong Kong
Ei

Hong Kong
e

PRC/Mainland China
RE /RN,

Issued ordinary/
registered share
capital
BRTEE/
AR

Registered and paid up
capital US$200,000

e B AR
2000003 7T

Ordinary HK$1,000,000
38 0% 1,00000075 7

Ordinary HK$180,000
L@ 180000 7T

Registered and paid up
capital US$450,000

R B AR
4500003 7T

1. REERGAE)
MR Z2EF (&)

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

ARREERAEZADL

2022 2021
—E-C

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

MR EER AR

Principal activities

FEXHK

Trading of computer software
licences, provision of training
and implementation,
maintenance and support
services

BEEBMYMSAE  RE
FIRBmAREZERS
RIR

Provision of computer support
and programming services,
and investment holding

REER IR LR RHR
BARRERKR

Provision of computer support
and programming services

REERSIE LR R
R

Provision of enterprise
applications software and
related operation outsourcing
services

RECRERRM LEEE
EIMIRRTS

—T— —FFIR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 - —F+_-A=+—H

1.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

HBEt(CRMR) AR A

CISC Limited ©

Place of incorporation/
registration and

Issued ordinary/
registered share
capital
BRTEE/
AR

business

AL ERR

EEME

Macau Ordinary MOP25,000

RF T AR 25,0008 T

Hong Kong

The subsidiary is registered as a Sino-foreign equity joint venture under PRC
law.

The subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under
PRC law.

The non-voting deferred shares, which are not held by the Group, carry no
rights to dividends or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general
meeting. In the winding-up of the subsidiaries, the holders of the deferred
shares carry the rights to receive a return of capital after the holders of the
ordinary shares have received a sum of HK$1,000,000,000 per ordinary share.

In prior year, CISC Limited, a Hong Kong incorporated company, was
accounted for as a subsidiary of the Group even though the Group had only
40% equity in this company.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

Ordinary HK$3,652,950
e L BAY 36529507 T

1. 2AFEH(HE)
MR zE R (&)

Percentage of equity

attributable to the Company

FRARARERAREREDL
2022

—F——

— =

100

80

Principal activities

TEXEH
2021
—E-—fF
100 Provision of enterprise
applications software and
related operation
RECEERRM RARE
&

40 Provision of products, solutions
and consulting services on
cyber intelligence, and cyber
security

RUEBEEDENBERLH
Em BR7RRBAR
%

ZHB AR DRE D BAEZEMATIINEG
B

FHHI B AR DR BOAREM AN E
A% -

B

ZEVAASEERFAZERERETR
DHEZEERRE ZERN  TEEZS
KB FmBREAEBEREFEFBAS N
REEREZEF - HEARER  BIE
BROFBEANEBERERRFEARTRE
i AZ AR A& ££1,000,000,000 7% TC 14 1A &R

RE—FE - $EARKERRCASC Limited (—
BEBEMAE) EHI0%BRAERS  ZA
RINIE RSB E A RIALR °



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 — - —#+—-HA=+—H

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Except for Computer And Technologies (BVI) Limited, all of the above

subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year
or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group or
are of particular importance to the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars
of excessive length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("“HKFRSs”) (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
investment properties and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss which have been measured at fair value. The financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HKS$") and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial

statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022. A subsidiary
is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e.,, existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

2.1

NREH (&)
MEQR &R (&)

Bk Computer And Technologies (BVI) Limited
S EAFR A T A R B AR R EE R
7@ o

ERENHEERLSEHAREFRNES
BRIEXE BRAKEEEFEEZR
MAXBEAEBEBREEERZARFN
BAR EERRFINEMMBEARZE
HesR\BENITE-

HEHBRRIREABTESAMAE
(BEEMAR )R 2B EMBERSE
HR([BEMBHREEL ) (BEHBEM
BEERBUBRELER TR EA(E
BEEL) RRE)  BEEEREMAZ
SR MKBEE QAR 2 WERE
Primed o %2 SR B mRKIBE LR AE P
mE - ERAFEAEZRENERER
FELESARIHBEEERIN - EFH
BHRERTDAEBT(DET]) 25 B=AM
I PR BERNE R AERELTA -

mEEE
RAVBRREFBEARARENE QA
(W AEEDBE_"ZT_—F+_H
=St BUEFEZBBEHRER HBARAR
ARRAEELAFEEEHNER (&
BUEER) EAKEEB2EREHR
EBMARAFERAREHRZAE
W Bt EBEREHRIEN (XK
EEETRARNATEREHRAEE
BRARN ZEZELR  AAEE
BHEZER IR -

Bt X EE BB A A —EB-FER

137



138

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 —ZE——#+—-A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (continued)
Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights

results in control. When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described above. A change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 — - —#+—-HA=+—H

2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (continued)
If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the

assets (including goodwill and other intangible assets) and liabilities
of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (jii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in
equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(i) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis
as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first time

for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
[llustrative Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 — - —#+—-HA=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that are applicable
to the Group are described below:

(@)

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Amendments to HKFRS 3 replace a reference to the previous
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting (the “Conceptual Framework”) issued
in June 2018 without significantly changing its requirements.
The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its
recognition principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual
Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or a liability.
The exception specifies that, for liabilities and contingent
liabilities that would be within the scope of HKAS 37 or
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred separately rather than
assumed in a business combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3
should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead
of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the amendments
clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition at
the acquisition date. The Group has applied the amendments
prospectively to business combinations that occurred on or
after 1 January 2022. As there were no business combinations
during the year, the amendments did not have any impact on
the financial position and performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an
entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such items, and
the cost of those items as determined by HKAS 2 /nventories,
in profit or loss. The Group has applied the amendments
retrospectively to items of property, plant and equipment
made available for use on or after 1 January 2021. Since there
was no sale of items produced prior to the property, plant and
equipment being available for use, the amendments did not
have any impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 — - —#+—-HA=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(@]

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the
cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that relate
directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract
include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an
allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well
as contract management and supervision costs). General
and administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract
and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the
counterparty under the contract. The Group has applied the
amendments prospectively to contracts for which it has not
yet fulfilled all its obligations at 1 January 2022 and no onerous
contracts were identified. Therefore, the amendments did not
have any impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, Illustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendment that is applicable to the Group are as follows:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that
an entity includes when assessing whether the terms
of a new or modified financial liability are substantially
different from the terms of the original financial liability.
These fees include only those paid or received between
the borrower and the lender, including fees paid
or received by either the borrower or lender on the
other’s behalf. The Group has applied the amendment
prospectively from 1 January 2022. As there was no
modification or exchange of the Group’s financial
liabilities during the year, the amendment did not have
any impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 —ZE——#+—-A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,

that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?

Insurance Contracts'

Insurance Contracts'>

Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and
HKFRS 9 — Comparative Information®

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current (the “2020
Amendments”)%4

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the 2022 Amendments”)?

Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Definition of Accounting Estimates’

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction'

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

& 22 A

23 EEMEERER2BEBIME

AEBYERNUEMHEHRERER TIIER
1B i R AR # 7] MRIER] BB M 55

R -

BT HRE5 2R
F10HRAES
2RI 5 2855
—E——F)
({BFT2A)

B 7S 5k A 2E A
F165% (BT AN)

BB %R %R
FE175E

BB
F175 (

B 5H
F175% (

%:‘/

3d

8|
CHES)
R

ERTA)

= <d ==

BEGRTERFE 15

EHEN)

W&

BEGFERF 1R
CCHEN),

BEGFTERFE 15
REBUBRE
RERIE 5
25k (BRI A)

FREETERAIF 8
SCHEN),

ARG EA
F 125 (BT A)

1B & IR o
NS Fd il
BEHELTE

EREHHER
/fz
REEH

RIBEK

K JE & B 7
HREERZE 175
R EBYHRE
ERE of — H &
BHe

HEESEBTE
ke ([ ==
ZEF(BEIA])

B 22 5 1 FE 7 B
BE(ZZ==
FIEFTA])?

BRI E

B 1daTE S

VRS T T
ER B ERBIE
EHE



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 —E -~ +_A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective date of the
2020 Amendments was deferred to annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024. In addition, as a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and
2022 Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised to align the corresponding
wording with no change in conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October 2020,
HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits
insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning
before 1 January 2023

An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to the
classification overlay set out in this amendment shall apply it on initial
application of HKFRS 17

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be

applicable to the Group is described below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B RS R AR B AL (4

31 DECEMBER 2022 —ZE——#+—-A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28
(2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments require
a full recognition of a gain or loss resulting from a downstream
transaction when the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain
or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor's
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated previous mandatory
effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory
effective date will be determined after the completion of a broader
review of accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that a seller-
lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and
leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise
any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it
retains. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively to
sale and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16 (i.e, 1 January 2019). Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 — - —#+—-HA=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current
or non-current, in particular the determination over whether an
entity has a right to defer settlement of the liabilities for at least
12 months after the reporting period. Classification of a liability is
unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to
defer settlement of the liability. The amendments also clarify the
situations that are considered a settlement of a liability. In 2022, the
HKICPA issued the 2022 Amendments to further clarify that, among
covenants of a liability arising from a loan arrangement, only those
with which an entity must comply on or before the reporting date
affect the classification of that liability as current or non-current. In
addition, the 2022 Amendments require additional disclosures by
an entity that classifies liabilities arising from loan arrangements as
non-current when it has a right to defer settlement of those liabilities
that are subject to the entity complying with future covenants
within 12 months after the reporting period. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024
and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted.
An entity that applies the 2020 Amendments early is required to
apply simultaneously the 2022 Amendments, and vice versa. The
Group is currently assessing the impact of the amendments and
whether existing loan agreements may require revision. Based on a
preliminary assessment, the amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

23 B
A=
[==]

BERER BB

| (&)

1 =F

£}

s

BEAGEERE 15 (BFIRN) HE ESHE
BRBAETEREERAESERARE
SIEMBEE FRE B —EE8
ERAREEERSHEELNREARE
EEE BEMNIEIIERITHEEEERE
BEABENEFNAREEZZE - 2B
MBI BHERBEABENEL RZZT
—F RS FMACER ST _—F
BEIAR  LNE—FEBF  EERZHEAE
WEERZETR  REERBRAHRERHR
RN BETHRESVEZBEDEAR
EsIERB) o AN B CFEFAE
KEERLHEENEBEIBAERDN
ERTEHAEREERNRSHER2EAA
RTZERETRKRZABAMBERAE
B (EHEEINER - ZEBEII R =T
F-A B zRENFEEREER
WHEEMER  EATREER - RTPME
A-ZZE T FEBIANEEVARFER
ZECFBEAR RZIA c AEEIR
EHEZEETNZE  URBEFERH
HEBHEBE] c BB LM ZFB
TR BN = AN B ) B TS R E AR R
BEATE -

!

A\N

Bt X EE BB A A —EB-FER

145



146

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 —ZE——#+—-A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require
entities to disclose their material accounting policy information
rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial statements, it can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users
of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2
provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept of
materiality to accounting policy disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and earlier application is permitted. Since the guidance provided in
the amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory,
an effective date for these amendments is not necessary. The Group
is currently revisiting the accounting policy disclosures to ensure
consistency with the amendments.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes
in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial
statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The
amendments also clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The amendments are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and apply to changes in accounting policies and changes in
accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of that period.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.3

24

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer applies to transactions that
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such
as leases and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are
required to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient
taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences arising from these transactions. The amendments are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions related to leases
and decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect recognised
as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits or other
component of equity as appropriate at that date. In addition, the
amendments shall be applied prospectively to transactions other
than leases and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is
permitted. The Group has applied the initial recognition exception
and did not recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability
for temporary differences for transactions related to leases. Upon
initial application of these amendments, the Group will recognise
a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for deductible and
taxable temporary differences associated with right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities, and recognise the cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance
of retained profits at the beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition

method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

2.3

24

A 3

4

E B R4
WA (&)

(=0

ERGERNE 25 (BFTR) BB )EE
SRTERF 125 T ER I IME R H
HE THERNELEFHERT LA
HBERERNR S  NHERFERE -
.U:If, fﬁa%\/,\ﬁﬁii“%?ﬁiﬁ’]ﬁunﬁ-r%
EERELERBEE (HE T HH) R
wA) MBEHRBRB - RFEITN_-F
= A BRZERENFERSH
AR ERANKT 276 LB RE
MEEREFEREEHEBARS  MERRET
FENE BFER SR B 8 N S m E A B
DA E (WER) - ko ZE
BRI BN EANKREE RFEEEUI
MR 5 AFHERIER - AEBERAE
IRFERBISMER B AR EERBE R H
ERMEERBERIELEN IR E E MR
BHEE RBERZFETER  A5H
RetEMAEEENREEAGHBEN TN
RERHE R EZRERRERBEER
RIERIBAE - W25 A KT LR
MNBERERZFETNRATERRR
HRB G NV ERN AR -

TESTHRME

ERSHREE

EBAGTIABMBEEAR - PTEZERES
MR R B2 R FERT & RAFERAE

SEERCEE  AEEHRWBTRE
BAREZBBERASEBBRERBET
ZHIEAETRAEERNRERRZ AT
BZEN - REXGEHT  AEEEE
B ESIEEWIREEDT A B B EF
BB stEREES 2 R H
(ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%%ﬁ METHABARB

BEDZEEFEILG) - FABEHAMIE

ZH SR IR AP ERE o WHEAE
B AR EE AR STEH -

MR EER AR

147



148

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
The Group determines that it has acquired a business when

the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the

ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any

resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and

subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group'’s
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in

profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are

assigned to those units or groups of units.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 — - —#+—-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of

the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit

retained.

Goodwill previously eliminated against
consolidated reserves

Prior to the adoption of the HKICPA's Statement of Standard
Accounting Practice 30 Business Combinations (“SSAP 30") in 2001,
goodwill arising on acquisition was eliminated against consolidated
reserves in the year of acquisition. On the adoption of HKFRS 3, such
goodwill remains eliminated against consolidated reserves and is not
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when all or part of the
business to which the goodwill relates is disposed of or when a cash-

generating unit to which the goodwill relates becomes impaired.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 —ZE——#+—-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESTBERBE ()
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Fair value measurement ATEE
The Group measures its investment properties, debt investment REBRSHEAREEBIZAFEFTE
and equity investments at fair value at the end of each reporting HEREME BERERERBRERE - 2F
period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset BEEMS2EENAEAIRNEHRFRS
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market FREEEEmMKEEZEEEN N2
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement Bt o A FEFENREBELHEEENEE
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or BEZRINZEERBEBECEEMS K
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the (hEXEmG) S EEXBERZET
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most LG ETZBEET FESI A2
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the MGEAASENEZESE - BENEEZ
most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The ARFEDNFEAMSE2EEEBRZEESE
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions BETEERKSHEAZBRRMTE ' &
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, PR M2 EE IR R ELE Rz
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. =
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account FEMBEEZ AT EFEZERMISRESE
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using FERUERREERARERAZEENER
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market BELETHEAGs RRERAGERZE
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. E 25— 52 B i BREUE B M = 2 82

7] o

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the REBRARSBERAEBEERITNGRE
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure HEB AT E R T E 2 HERDT - # &
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and HEA B RE ASE s REREEARE
minimising the use of unobservable inputs. TAIBERBABB CAERERD °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 — - —#+—-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting

period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, contract
assets, deferred tax assets and investment properties), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is
the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its
fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for
impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset is
allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest

group of cash-generating units.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 —ZE——#+—-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the

period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of

profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family

and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the

Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 — - —#+—-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties (continued)
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies:

i

) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 —ZE——#+—-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for
this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease terms and
20%
Computer equipmentand  20% to 33'/,%

software

Furniture, fixtures and other  18% to 25%
equipment

Motor vehicles 20%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 — - —#+—-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

(continued)
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have

different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year
end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Investment properties
Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including

the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting
period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year
of the retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 — - —#+—-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBEEE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial

recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Customer relationships

Purchased customer relationships are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of 8 to 10 years.

Software

Purchased software is stated at cost less any impairment losses and is
amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 5
to 10 years.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will
be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability
to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these
criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis over the
commercial lives of the underlying products/services not exceeding
five years, commencing from the date when the intangible assets are
available for use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 — - —#+—-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases
The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or

contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract

conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period

of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee
The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach

for all leases, except for short-term leases. The Group recognises lease

liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing

the right to use the underlying assets.

(a)

®)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties
for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 —ZE——#+—-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

(©

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Lease liabilities (continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a
change in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

The Group's lease liabilities are presented separately in the
statement of financial position.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of offices and car parking space (that
is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 — - —#+—-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental
income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee are accounted for as
finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets of the Group are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, and fair value through
profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group's business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out
for “"Revenue recognition” below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 —ZE——#+—-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI") on the principal amount
outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI
are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are
not held within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 — - —#+—-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBEEE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains
and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes equity investments which the Group had
not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised
as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right
of payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 —ZE——#+—-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESTBERBE ()
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Derecognition of financial assets RIFERNKEE
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or WBEE (WMER UBEEEHP —FB
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised Dk —HBEUCHMBEEERERR —5H) *
(ie, removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial SHETHBR TR EER(BIREAER 2
position) when: RE B R RPMIBR)
the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or . BZEEWRREME ZENE E
Bk
the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from . AEEEHERWRREZEER®
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received MELZREN  HERE[EBE] 25
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under MAEEAELESRLERBRAT
a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has ME=HFEHEIAFEURRERE
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or MEE: RQASEEHEEZEE
(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially BRER D BB & B - sk(b) AN &
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control WHREESREZEE BRI D
of the asset. B RE®R  EEERZEE T
4 -
When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows WMEREBEEEEEEEERBIRERE
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it ZRENMSNBEFI L EELH A EER
evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of EMEE LRBEEHEEE 2R RO -
ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained EHETEHEITNMREBEECRAT» Ak
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred R B - JREEeEE S E o HlRE - BIARSE
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred EREEE2AZEREE L RERRZ
asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that BE -RZIBAT @+ NEB TN A5 TR
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred BE -DHEEEEREBAEGEIIARRA
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects SEMRBEFNREETRELEE -

the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the SESEEASEREEREEEL 2R
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying #FEHEEEEDUZEEEZREEE
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that HASBENEREZREHB LR UK
the Group could be required to repay. REEE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 — - —#+—-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets
The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses ("ECLs")

for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss.
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash
flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation
of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 month (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime
ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 —ZE——#+—-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBEEE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account
any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables and
contract assets which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 — - —#+—-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables and contract assets that contain a significant
financing component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as
its accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities of the Group are classified, at initial recognition, as
loans and borrowings, or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 —ZE——#+—-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBEEE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its
fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Group measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher
of: (i) the ECL allowance determined in accordance with the policy as
set out in “Impairment of financial assets”; and (i) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the

liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount

is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Treasury shares
Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by the

Company or the Group (treasury shares) are recognised directly in
equity at cost. No gain or loss is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own
equity instruments.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 — - —#+—-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Shares held under the restricted share award

scheme
Where shares of the Company are purchased from the market for a

restricted share award scheme, the consideration paid, including any
directly attributable incremental costs, is presented as “Shares held
under the restricted share award scheme”and deducted from equity.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case
of finished goods and work in progress, comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash

and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.

Provisions
A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or

constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in the statement of profit
or loss.

24 TESTHBEBE ()

BREARFKROEBEFE 2
)

ERBRFIBD ZRASNTERBEAR
A AR E (BRI EREGE
MACA) T35 4E [R5 A IR HI B {0 22 @) =t
B A RG] AAEETNR -

FE

FRIVEK AR ERFEME T 2 RE
FBIER o BORTIA DN F I B ERETF -
HmMERRNE  KARRERRF
ERTERBEELIZFRAX - J &1 FE
=REAAEEHNBREEZKREERS
ZAEETARAR o

REREFAREEE
MEREHERERME RELFRBEEL
BEEDRFARAS MEHER - RREA
& — R =M B AR BAfE I B 7] B A 58
BREMeHERS  BEENRZFERARTA
ZEHEREMNERE  HRFREKRKEER
RERAEER ¢ BRAKED 2 RITE
o

RERAMBRAEMS RERFRARE
BEBERAEANZRE 2 FHERE MR
THEF(ERERFRAREEERSHEU
REE) °

by
%IL?I$1¢§§KEE*@5£&‘JZT&EEE :
mB&AEASHBERBITABEL A
BREE TR BEERE R SEfE A J? R
B -

WITREEEKN - HRBHRBEITEEIHMS
HeRxEREHR&EE R 2 RERER
e KR REBBEREEEZ
EIFIABER -

MR EER AR

167



168

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 —ZE——#+—-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBEEE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating

to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 — - —#+—-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary

differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 — - —#+—-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBEEE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if

the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants
Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is

reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over
the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are
expensed.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services.

Revenue from the sale of goods and provision of software and GETS
services is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset
is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods and
services.

Revenue from the rendering of solutions and integration services
and application services (other than sale of goods or the provision
of maintenance services) is recognised over time, using an input
method to measure progress towards complete satisfaction of the
service, because the Group'’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced,
or the customers simultaneously received and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group. The input method recognises revenue
based on the proportion of the actual costs incurred relative to the
estimated total costs for satisfaction of the services.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 — - —#+—-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Revenue from the provision of maintenance services is recognised
over the contract/service period on a straight-line basis because
the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group.

Revenue from other sources
Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract assets
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods

or services transferred to the customer. If the Group performs by
transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer
pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is
recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional. Contract
assets are subject to impairment assessment, details of which are
included in the accounting policies for impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e, transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).

24 FTESHBEME (F)

W A #ERR (%)
REFEFEHNHRA ()
RUEERBHBRARTBES LD, RBEA
EGELEER  RESTFREERK
BRASBERENNES

R E E At IR A A
& WA R EI IR B L I #ERR

HA
MEWARRAERA A 2 EAT R MR
ABRAMEREMBTA B FHRERE
HmE A (ER) BRI IR A R KA M
BRESEMBEEZREFE -

R B AFE AR RS R AR B 2 R RS - R
BB S RA R A AN K E RS
SRR SET B RER ©

BHEE

BHEERMAEFEREmAMBMEA
MAENERN - HAREETP X NRE
RIS R B R - BBREFEEE MK
RIEEX - AMEHNEENC RN A Fi
REMFAER - SHNEERETRER
it HBRERYBEEEREN SRR -

BHAME
EHNAERAKREEEABESKIREH
WRIE P REN KB A (ARE
ERB)ER ARBERAKRERETA
A B (B4R B8 &= am X AR 7% B0 12 51l 1 88 T 5%
BER)ERBWA -

Bt X EE BB A A —EB-FER

171



172

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 —ZE——#+—-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBEEE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Contract costs
Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property,

plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil
a contract with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the
following criteria are met:

(@) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will
be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future.

(c)  The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the
statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with
the transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which the
asset relates. Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.

Share-based payments

The Company operates two equity-settled, share-based
compensation schemes including a share option scheme and a
restricted share award scheme for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the Group's operations. Employees of the Group (including directors
of the entities comprising the Group) receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services
in exchange for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value at
the date at which they are granted.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 — - —#+—-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Share-based payments (continued)
The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee

benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit or
loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award,
but without an associated service requirement, are considered to
be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in
the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an
award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification, that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 —ZE——#+—-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBEEE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Share-based payments (continued)
Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it

had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options and unvested shares held
under the restricted share award scheme is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2 in
respect of equity-settled awards and has applied HKFRS 2 only to
equity-settled awards granted after 7 November 2002 that had not
vested by 1 January 2005 and to those granted on or after 1 January
2005.

Other employee benefits
Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their
employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under certain
circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the end of
each reporting period is permitted to be carried forward and utilised
by the respective employees in the following year. An accrual is made
at the end of each reporting period for the expected future cost of
such paid leave earned during the year by the employees and carried
forward.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 — - —#+—-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Other employee benefits (continued)
Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “"MPF Scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the
employee leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting fully,
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central retirement
benefit scheme operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central retirement benefit scheme.
The contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
retirement benefit scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the
Group recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group

incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds, and they are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 — - —#+—-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBEEE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors, excluding those relating
to the Company’s own shares held under the Company’s restricted
share award scheme, are classified as a separate allocation of retained
profits and/or other distributable reserves within the equity section
of the statement of financial position, until they have been approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends
have been approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s bye-laws grant the directors the authority to declare
interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies
These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,

which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in
the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e, translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 — - —#+—-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (continued)
In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related

asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit or
loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates that
approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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ANNUAL REPORT 2022

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgements
In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,

management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group concluded that certain contract revenue from solutions
and integration services and application services is recognised over
time because the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced or
the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group. The fact that another entity would not
need to re-perform the services that the Group has provided to
date demonstrates that the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits of the Group's performance as it performs.

The Group determined that the input method is the best method in
measuring the progress of the services for certain contract revenue
from solutions and integration services and application services
because there is a direct relationship between the Group's effort or
inputs (i.e., actual costs incurred) and the transfer of services to the
customer. The Group recognises revenue on the basis of the actual
costs incurred relative to the estimated total costs to complete the
services.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 — - —#+—-HA=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Judgements (continued)
Property lease classification - Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property and industrial
property leases on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions
of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a
major part of the economic life of the commercial property and
the present value of the minimum lease payments not amounting
to substantially all the fair value of the commercial property, that it
retains substantially all the significant risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of these properties which are leased out and accounts for
the contracts as operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other
assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion that
is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion
that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold separately
or leased out separately under a finance lease, the Group accounts for
the portions separately. If the portions could not be sold separately,
the property is an investment property only if an insignificant portion
is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an individual
property basis to determine whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as an investment property.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 —ZE——#+—-A=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Judgements (continued)
Income taxes

Significant judgement is involved in determining the provision
for income taxes. Determining income tax provision requires
management to make estimates and assumptions and involves
judgement on the tax treatment of certain transactions, assessment
of the probability of tax uncertainties and interpretation of applicable
tax rules. These estimates, assumptions, judgements and assessments
affect the amounts that are reported in these financial statements
and accompanying disclosures. The Group carefully evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly.
The tax treatment of such transactions is reconsidered periodically to
taken into account any changes in tax legislation and/or underlying

assumptions.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are

described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on
an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use
of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use of each relevant cash-generating unit
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash
flows from the cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2022 was
HK$135,001,000 (2021: HK$135,001,000). Further details are given in

note 16 to the financial statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period. Non-
financial assets with finite useful lives are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value of an
asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s
length transaction of similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value in
use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the
expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present

value of those cash flows.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at their fair values. The fair value
at the end of each reporting period was based on a valuation on
these properties conducted by an independent firm of professionally
qualified valuers using property valuation techniques which involve
making assumptions on certain market conditions. Favourable or
unfavourable changes to these assumptions would result in changes
in the fair value of the Group's investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the gain or loss are recognised in the

statement of profit or loss.

Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair value

measurement, are given in note 14 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables and

contract assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables and contract assets. The provision rates are based on days
past due.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust
the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information.
For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic
products) are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can
lead to an increased number of defaults in the sector, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of a customer’s actual default in the future. The
information about the ECLs on the Group's trade receivables and
contract assets is disclosed in notes 19 and 21 to the financial
statements.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises certain contract revenue from solutions and
integration and application services by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the services at the end of the
reporting period. The progress towards complete satisfaction of
the services is generally measured by reference to the actual costs
incurred relative to the estimated total costs to complete the services.
Significant assumptions such as the duration and other project
specific factors are generally required to estimate the total costs to
the complete satisfaction of the services. The estimates are made
based on past experience and knowledge of management and/or
relevant project personnel.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR")
to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a
similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to pay’, which
requires estimation when no observable rates are available (such as
for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing transactions) or when
it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the
lease (for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional
currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such

as market interest rates) when available.

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has three reportable

operating segments as follows:

(@)  the application services segment that primarily engages in the
provision of enterprise applications software and e-business
services for enterprises including the provision of enterprise
applications software (including SaaS product offering) with
implementation and ongoing support services; the GETS, cloud

services and other related value-added services;

(b)  the solutions and integration services segment that primarily
engages in the provision of IT solutions implementation and
application software development (including SaaS product
offering); provision of IT and related operation/infrastructure
outsourcing services; and provision of IT systems and network
infrastructure with related design, implementation and

ongoing support services; and
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(©  the investments segment that primarily engages in various
types of investing activities including, inter alia, property
investment for rental income and/or for capital appreciation
and treasury investment in securities for dividend income and
interest income and/or for capital appreciation.

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance
is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/loss, which is a
measure of adjusted profit/loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss
before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit before
tax except that unallocated interest income, unallocated other
income and gains, net, unallocated foreign exchange differences, net,
corporate and other unallocated depreciation, and corporate and
other unallocated expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, tax recoverable, pledged
bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, and other unallocated head
office and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and

other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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B 7S R 2R BT oE (4

31 DECEMBER 2022 —E -~ +_A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

(a) Operating segments

Segment revenue:

Sales to external customers
(note 5)

Intersegment sales

Otherincome and ains, net

Reconcilation:
Elimination of intersegment sales

Profit hefore tax

Segment results
Reconcilation:
Unallocated interest income:

Unallocated other income and gains, net

Unallocated foreign exchange
differences, net

Corporate and other unallocated
depreciation

Corporate and other unallocated
expenses

Profit before tax

Segment assets

Recondilation:

Corporate and other unallocated
assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities

Recondilation:

Corporate and other unallocated
liabilities

Totalliabilites

* This represents the consolidated revenue of HK$268,719,000 (2021:

4, REFIBER ()
(a) && DI
Solutions and Integration
Application Services Services Investments Total
ERR% S ESELT RE g
202 201 202 201 202 202
—E-C z —E-C B C Z B C

HK$'000 HS000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HS000 HKS'000 HK$1000

TiEn AL T T Fiin T Tin
AHUA
HETHRER
(B3£5) 157,380 166175 109,355 97469 1,984 1860 268719% 265504
NEEEE 948 - 4673 5786 - - 5,621 578
EARb@5E 1,500 1,860 54 1 463 561 2017" 2453'

159,828 168035 114,082 103,267 2,447 20 216357 B8
PEEHENS (5,621) (5,786)
BEEaH 270,736 267957
RS 44,629 55578 24,174 24483 ) 3011 68,726 8172
AAEFEHA 5,950' 2508'
AOREBUAR
hErE 5,675" 406
AARERERFE

866 (403)

EXREMADE
ik (287) (618)
PEREMAAE
A% (29,498) (27439)
Yyl 51,432 57607
PHEE 207,455 217319 70,863 67,729 73,023 6444 351,381 361492
LERAMRIE
BE 327,149 319805
BEBE 678,490 681,297
Gy 92,903 98930 2,80 16738 685 685 121460 116353
PEREMADE
Bf 33,939 4315
AREE 155399 157668

HK$265,504,000) in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

of profit or loss.

These comprise the consolidated other income and gains, net of
HK$13,642,000 (2021: HKS5,367,000) in the consolidated statement

MR EER AR

ERAEEBEERZEAE KA
268,719,000 L (Z T = — F ¢«
265,504,000/ 7C) ©

PRERABERAZEAHEMIK
AR U 2% 7 5 513,642,000 8 T8 (=
——4%F :5367,000/7T) °
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REHIER (E)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Operating segments (continued) (a) &R&E (&)

Solutions and Integration

Application Services Services Investments Total
ERE® BARRREBRE k& 4y
2022 2021 2022 2022 2021 2022 2021
“E-Cf -“E--F CEB-C —g-CE -“B--% CZB-CE "E--F
HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS000
A AL A AL TiEn T Tin T
Other segment information: RbAHEH
Net far value gains/losses) on RENZATEYR
Investment properties /(BR) 38 - - - - (80) 500 (80) 500
Net fair value gains/(losses) onfinanclal -~ RATEEIEE AR
assets at farvalue through ZW%EE“WE
orofitorloss hi/ (EE)FE - (61) - - (2332) 0 (2332) 163
Amartisation of other intangiole assets M?ﬁﬁﬁé%iﬁ 6,494 6492 4130 - - - 10,624 6492
Depreciation i 2473 2981 963 612 - - 3,436 3593
Corporate and other unallocated EEREMAAE
depreciation ik 5490 3945
8,926 7538
Impaiment/(reversal of mpaiment) A BERBER L
oftrade receivables recognised EWE HEH
in the consolidated statement of e/ (BE
profit orloss, net* B FE 799 (1%) 38 7 - - 837 (1)
Capital expenditure™ BAR% 420 2066 240 132 - - 660 219
Corporate and other nallocated capital - ¥ RE A AT E
expenditure™ REx 279 337
939 2535
o Including impairment of trade receivables recognised in the BRERGEEGERMERKREER
consolidated statement of profit or loss attributable to the R o HBREBRTRREKRD
application services segment of HK$1,129,000 (2021: HK$328,000) DB EKE ZEFRED B A
and the solutions and integration services segment of HK$183,000 1,129,000 7T (=& = — 4F : 328,000
(2021: HK$146,000), respectively, and reversal of impairment of trade Br) &183,0008 L (ZE = — 4 :
receivables recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or 14600078 70) * A RRNERE B KT
loss attributable to the application services segment of HK$330,000 BRRKEEARB DI RBERAR
(2021: HK$524,000) and the solutions and integration services &K RIS 7 2B 2 FE U B 5 BR 2R
segment of HK$ 145,000 (2021: HK$73,000), respectively. B E 2 Bl A330,0008 T (=T =—
£ : 524,000 7T) K 145,000 % 7T (=
T —4F 1 73000 7T) °
= Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and e BARZBERNEYE  BEMEE

AR B A AE

equipment and other intangible assets.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REDBER (E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Geographical information (b) i EEHR
(i) Revenue from external customers (i) FREIREEZWA
Hong Kong and other
countries/regions Mainland China Total
BEREMER/HE HERY ag
2022 2021 2022 202 2022 2021
—E-C -“F--% CZE-C z —E-C “E--F
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
THT AL T AL FiEn AL
Segment revenue: ABUA
Sales to external customers HETHREP 215,547 209647 53,172 55857 268,719 265,504
The revenue information is based on the locations of the WABR TS AR FEATE A&
customers. 4E o
(i) Non-current assets (i) FRBEE

2022 2021

—=E_ —E-—F

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FHExT FATT

Hong Kong BA 147,803 160,247

Mainland China F B A 111,707 117,256

259,510 277,503
The non-current asset information above is based on the FHIERBEEER NIREE
locations of the assets and excludes financial instruments FRfEt 251 « & I R 5+ KB

and deferred tax assets. BTARBREMRBEE -

g ZmEEERA A —EB-FER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, BEDWER (B)

(CONTINUED)

(c) Information about a major customer (0 —BFEXFZEHR
Revenue from transactions with an external customer KE—BINABTPRG 2 WAMGER
amounting to 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue: EEBUA10% KA E -
For the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue from a BHE-ZT-_—_F+=-A=+—H
major customer of HK$82,743,000 (2021: $74,337,000) was EFE KRB RBFERFPZK
derived from transactions with the customer reported in the A %82,743,0008 L (ZFE = —F -
application services segment and the solutions and integration 7433700078 7T) - EHEREIIRE 2
services segment. FIRNIER R D EMAFART R RS

RIRE DR E PR S °

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. WA HttW AR WS FEE
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WADITAT -

2022 2021

== —E-—F

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FTET T

Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEHHKA 266,735 263,644

Revenue from other sources REHMRIFERHEA

Gross rental income from investment properties & ¥ % 2 f & WA 4258 K B 75

and interests income from treasury investments & 2 F| B UL A 1,984 1,860

268,719 265,504

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 — - —#+—-HA=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. WA HMKARKZFEEE)
(CONTINUED)
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEFEHHBA
() Disaggregated revenue information (i) DHFBEAER

For the year ended
31 December 2022

Segments

Types of goods or services

Sale of goods and provision of
software and GETS services

Provision of SaaS product
offering, software
implementation and
related services, IT solutions
implementation and related
services

Maintenance services

Total revenue from contracts
with customers

Geographical markets
Hong Kong and others
Mainland China

Total revenue from contracts
with customers

Timing of revenue
recognition

Goods and services transferred
at a pointin time

Services transferred over time

Total revenue from contracts
with customers

BE-Z-_—_%+=AH
=+—HIEFE

?
L

B R S5
HEEmREHRETR
BT E T & 5 k%
RS RBER -
BB i R ARRE AR -
BRBHRR T RE M M
18 B AR 75

e R TS
KEEFPAHMNBUIA

ih &5
EBREAM
HR B i
RKEFZFAELABIA

BRERARKE
RIE—FREEEE m MRS

R — R AEERS
KEEPAKHEEA

Application
Services

P& FA R 3%
HK$'000
FET

Solutions and
Integration
Services
RRFRR
&R R
HK$’000
THET

Total

R
HK$’000
TERT

32,848 10,612 43,460
64,081 52,083 116,164
60,451 46,660 107,111
157,380 109,355 266,735
110,166 103,604 213,770
47,214 5,751 52,965
157,380 109,355 266,735
32,848 10,612 43,460
124,532 98,743 223,275
157,380 109,355 266,735
MR EER AR T FfH
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. WA -HMWARWKESFEE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFESHHWA (F)
(continued)
() Disaggregated revenue information (continued) (i) DHFWAER(E)

Solutions and

Application Integration
Services Services Total
ORI M
& PR A 75 SRR B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THIT THTT THTT
For the year ended BE-Z-—-f+=A
31 December 2021 =+t—HLFE
Segments o

Types of goods or services & 7 =% R 75 48 5
Sale of goods and provision of ~ $5 % & §& K HE 8 K&

software and GETS services BN E T B 5 R15 40,280 2,335 42,615
Provision of SaaS product RS RIS Em

offering, software RHEiEREERE

implementation and BB AT RE R

related services, IT solutions 18 B8 AR TS
implementation and related

services 65,501 41,230 106,731
Maintenance services #HE AR TS 60,394 53,904 114,298
Total revenue from contracts KRB B & £ M AU A

with customers 166,175 97,469 263,644
Geographical markets & %

Hong Kong and others BB REAM 114,724 93,295 208,019
Mainland China B A 51,451 4,174 55,625
Total revenue from contracts KRB B A& £ AU A

with customers 166,175 97,469 263,644
Timing of revenue R A B E

recognition
Goods and services transferred 7 3 — R R 82 & @ I AR 75

ata pointin time 40,280 2,335 42,615
Services transferred over time 1A — E& 5 R /N 4528 AR 7% 125,895 95,134 221,029
Total revenue from contracts KRB B F A LRI A

with customers 166,175 97,469 263,644

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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5.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

(i)

(ii)

Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised
in the current reporting period that were included in the
contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:

Revenue recognised that was included in

5. A

- ELAtb U R W a5 3 58 ()

REEFEHNBA (&)

i

-

RARERVANEED

contract liabilities at the beginning of the ERHERUA
reporting period:

Sale of goods and provision of software and SHE B m RIEEHEH &
GETS services BNETFE 5 R

Provision of Saa$S product offering, software
implementation and related services, IT
solutions implementation and related
services

HERE RS

Maintenance services

Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of goods and provision of software and GETS services

The performance obligation is satisfied upon product/service
delivery, where payment in advance is normally required, and
the balance is generally due within 30 to 60 days from the date
of delivery.

Provision of software implementation (including SaaS product
offering) and related services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are
rendered and payment is generally due within 30 to 60 days
from the date of billing.

RRHE R R E MR -
B i M AR RS
BB SR RENR
K AR AR5

(ii)

DHBAER (8]
TRETHABRSHONAHNER
RARERECERR/BWASHE

2022
—ZE-

2021
T
HKS$'000
FAT

HK$’000
FTEx

2,715 5,898
24,384 21,229
27,123 31,581
54,222 58,708

BHEE
FEARERAOEEHE R
T~

HEEmRIEHEHRKTEFE
SR

BHETRER, RS EIEK
—REEELENR M —KE
I EEE30E60 B REH -

TER BN Bt (B &5 8 FRIAR T
E o (218 ) KA 55 AR 7%

[ #) & 1 BE 12 1t Ak 75 &9 s R 22 K

iR —A B L ERE B LR 30
Z60BREIH -

g ZmEEERA A —EB-FER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 —ZE——#+—-A=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(continued)
(ii) Performance obligations (continued)

Provision of IT solutions implementation and related services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and payment is generally due within 30 days from
the date of billing. A certain percentage of payment is retained
by customers as the Group’s entitlement to the final payment
is conditional on the satisfaction of the service quality by the
customers over a certain period as stipulated in the respective
contracts.

Maintenance services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and payments in advance are normally required
before rendering the services.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as
at 31 December are as follows:

5. A - EbR AR W FHE (&)

REEFEHNBA (B)

(i) BREE(E)
TEHR BRI R T R B R G
R
B4 B ERE R RIS A B =K -
MR —/ 8t ARE B H#E 530 H
AEH - TRFEF2RERENE TH
ALt AN E S &R AR
FEAREFIEEE QTR E T
HEAHRBEERNRERE -

aEIRT
BAEEBERERENRREZEX
M IE IR — AR AN R AR RIS

RtT-ZA=t—BoEEHRTELD
BEECRBITXEBNARET) XS
EBRSBEWT :

2022 2021
—E-C —E - —4F

=

HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Amounts expected to be recognised as revenue: & EEFEHAER AW A :

Within one year —F R
After one year

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations which are expected to be recognised
as revenue after one year relate to maintenance services, of
which the performance obligations are to be satisfied within
three years. All the other amounts of transaction prices
allocated to the remaining performance obligations are
expected to be recognised as revenue within one year. The
amounts disclosed above do not include variable consideration
which is constrained.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

il —F

54,190 54,222
1,407 1,850
55,597 56,072

ENEEHRTENETHNRSER
THRBAHSR —FERERB[BEAY
RER=ZFRERNEERT - P
BEEMESEERTROEENR
SERERAPABR —FAERR
WA b ENSBIE NBHER
PR IR £ RAE -
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5.

193

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. WA -Hi AR WS FEE (&)
(CONTINUED)
2022 2021
—E—— T —F
HK$'000 HKS'000
FHEx T T
Other income and gains, net H WA K W= 588
Bank interest income RITA B A 5,950 2,508
Government subsidies* K7 e B * 5,675 -
Value-added tax refund received I =] 12 (B R R A 738 963
Dividend income from listed investments at fair ~ Z A FELBZFE AR 2 FH
value through profit or loss & R B A 421 505
Gain on disposal of items of property, plantand ~ HE¥E - BERREEE 2
equipment, net W 58 1 12
Gain on lease modifications HEBE < W = 574
Others HAth 857 805
13,642 5,367
& The subsidies were granted under the Employment Support Scheme of the * ZEHBBBBENTRERE (B85

Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the “HKSAR
Government”). There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies,
relating to the subsidies.

TR WRIEEE T - %F
20 B S P T AR I O IR AP SR B = 4

g ZmEEERA A —EB-FER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 - —F+_-A=+—H

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BRTANER

AEBZBBADENEME, GEA) T
(IE-3"=

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Cost of inventories sold
Cost of services provided
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment*®
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Amortisation of other intangible assets**
Gain on disposal of items of property, plant
and equipment, net
Lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities
Gain on lease modifications
Auditor's remuneration
Employee benefit expense (excluding
directors’' remuneration — note 8)"*
Wages, salaries, allowances and
other benefits
Equity-settled share-based payment
expense
Retirement benefit scheme contributions
(defined contribution schemes)***
Less: Amount capitalised in other
intangible assets

Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of
trade receivables, net

Direct operating expenses (including repairs
and maintenance) arising from rental-
earning investment properties

Fair value losses/(gains), net:
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss

Investment properties

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

EHEFEKA
B R AR A A
WE - BERKBZNE

EREEEZHE

Hqth T2 B E 5

HEWE - WER&REHEE
Z W FER

TEEAEHEREL
HE R

MEEFT 2 Yzt

2 BT B

BERNAX (TERES
B —FisEe) -

TE %z RBER
Hp a7

P E AR XX

RAKRTEHET &R
(E BB &)) =
B REMELEEE
PN (e

FEWE HIRFURE,
(BEERE) F 58

ARBES 2 REMEEE
reR (BREELE
&)

NFEER (KR)FHE
BRFELRSE AR
M EE

BEME

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

2022 2021
—ZE== —T——
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET AT
41,140 35,080
82,461 77,881
862 1413
8,064 6,125
10,624 6,492
)] (12)
649 594
- (574)
1,460 1,420
138,057 137,470
867 616
7,363 77272
- (1,894)
146,287 143,464
837 (123)
59 67
2,332 (163)
80 (500)




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 —E -~ +_A=+—H

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONTINUED)

*%

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment for the year of HK$118,000
(2021: HK$112,000) is included in “Cost of sales and services” on the face of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Amortisation of other intangible assets for the year of HK$10,624,000
(2021: HK$6,492,000) is included in “Other expenses” on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group as the
employer to reduce the existing level of contributions. At 31 December
2022, the Group had no forfeited contributions available to reduce its
contributions to the pension schemes in future years (2021: Nil).

Inclusive of research and development cost for application software
products of HK$21,192,000 (2021: HK$18,999,000) and utility billing system
of HK$4,348,000 (2021: HK$8,308,000), respectively.

Inclusive of an amount of HK$82,461,000 (2021: HK$77,881,000) classified
under “Cost of services provided”above.

FINANCE COST

Interest on lease liabilities

HEREBEZHE

BRB AR A ()

*%

REZRYE - BB K& FE 23 E 118,000
BIL(ZZE = —%F : 1120008 7T) BALZA
BaRZ[HERRBERAIA -

N E A H th £E A B B B 8 10,624,000 % 7T
(=T = —45 : 64920008 TT) MALRE B
RZ[EMAZIA -

ANEBEARE  WETHEZKEKA
ARBLBRAEERRIKFE R ==
TZA=+—H  ANEEIWERL A
FAT AR E B FEERARS IR (=
T —F:fE) o

BIEEHERRHEERRAREBKE R
52 B 7 R BB KA 5 Bl & 21,192,000 7T
(== = — £ : 18,999,000 Jt) & 4,348,000
BT (ZT = —4F : 830800058 7T) °

BEIBEA LM BRERBKA] 2 H5E
82,461,000 7t (ZF = — £ : 77,881,000
JT) °

MBEEA

2022 2021

—=E_—— B

HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx TAET
397 245

g ZmEEERA A —EB-FER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 - —F+_-A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EEHM
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules FAEZHHRBEEEBERXIMERA
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong AFEAH EmHRA ([ ETRE]) - FEBRA]
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules), section 383(1) (a), (b), (c) and (f) of EBIZE383()@)  b) O RDIERESBA
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Hong Kong A RBRESM=ER) REIF 2B EER
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) ™

Regulation, is as follows:

2022 2021
—_=FE_—
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THT
Fees: we
Executive directors HITES = =
Independent non-executive directors BYIEHITES
(INEDs") ([BLIFMITEE]) 863 780
863 780
Other emoluments: Hith i & -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RUREDNR 5,267 5,189
Bonuses* B4 1,442 1,206
Equity-settled share-based payment expense RS i 45 E ARG 9 S S RS2 ¢ 310 222
Retirement benefit scheme contributions IR KRR AT B 3K
(defined contribution schemes) (R FRETE]) 72 72
7,091 6,689
7,954 7,469
o Certain directors of the Company are entitled to bonus payments which are * AARETESERENMNIBERE LA
determined on a discretionary basis. IR e
§ During the year, certain directors were awarded restricted shares of the & RAFEE  REARGF Z2HRGIRGD ZE
Company, subject to certain vesting conditions, in respect of their services e RETHEBERGEZERT  BTES
to the Group, under the restricted share award scheme of the Company, EERERAEEMIEEREERANQF
further details of which are set out in note 29 to the financial statements. BRFIRGD - A BEE— P BRI SR
The fair value of such restricted shares, which has been recognised in the KM FE29 - ZEEREIKRND 2 AFETIR
statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the BEEBHEE  YEREBHRNEERE
date of grant and the amount included in the financial statements for the R Mt AREERBHREZ BN
current year is included in the above directors' remuneration disclosures. BER EXESTMEER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 —E -~ +_A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(a) INEDs

The fees paid to INEDs during the year were as follows:

8.

INEDs: BYIERITESE :
Ms. Chan Yuen Shan Clara ek 100 3} 22 &=
Mr. Ha Shu Tong BRIEEE
Professor Lee Kwok On Matthew TEZHIE
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen TREEAE

Save as disclosed above, there were no other emoluments
payable to the INEDs during the current and prior years.

EEHM (&)

(a) BIFHITEE
FR I FHBIERNTES 2
(U N

2022 2021
== —E-—F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
THET AT

222 -

101 240

240 240

300 300

863 780

BREXBEEN RAFERAER
FEVEAGBENTELIFNTE
Mz -

g ZmEEERA A —EB-FER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 - —F+_-A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) 8. EEHM (&
(b) Executive directors (b) BITES
Equity-settled Retirement
Salaries, share-based benefit
allowances and payment scheme Total
benefits in kind Bonuses expense  contributions remuneration
e 2R R g BHREF
ENFlE T BRAXAEX HE e Helm
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
AL THT THT THT AL
2022 b Sempent
Executive directors: HIEE:
Ir. Ng Cheung Shing REBAETRERD 2,751 864 138 18 3,771
Mr. Leung King San Sunny 2EHRE 360 - - 18 378
Mr. Cheung Wai Lam RERLE 360 - 34 18 412
Mr. Ng Kiwok Keung RERESE 1,796 578 138 18 2,530
5,267 1,442 310 72 7,001
2021 —8>-f%
Executive directors; HITES:
Ir.Ng Cheung Shing REBAETRERM 2751 706 68 18 3543
Mr.Leung King San Sunny REMEE 360 - - 18 378
Mr. Cheung Wai Lam RERLE 360 - 8 18 464
Mr. Ng Kwok Keung REMLA 1718 500 8 18 2304
5189 1,206 222 72 6,089
The directors’ emoluments paid to Ir. Ng Cheung Shing (“Ir. SHTFREBLETRM([REE])
Ng") included a housing allowance of HK$2,471,000 (2021: 2 EE M & B FE R E2471,000% T
HK$2,471,000) which was remunerated by way of rental (ZZ=—F : 24710008 70) 2 X5
reimbursement. The rentals of the related property were paid EE - UNHSBEZAIAZN A
directly by Ir. Ng to the landlord, which is a company jointly BYEsHEHAREEEENT
controlled by Ir. Ng and one of his close family members. ¥F mzFEFAEAREERE
EF —ZEERKEKEHLRZES 2
NG
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or RAFERBAFE  EFWENR
agreed to waive any remuneration during the current and prior 2 ok [A) B M E eI 2 B 2 o8 -
years.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 —E -~ +_A=+—H

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two (2021:
two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in note
8 to the financial statements. Details of the remuneration for the
year of the remaining three (2021: three) non-director highest paid
employees are as follows:

& KoEah
B A5 E ARR 9 S R 2
1B
RIRBHET B R

(EREHREED

Salaries and allowances

Equity-settled share-based payment expense

Bonuses

Retirement benefit scheme contributions
(defined contribution schemes)

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

TEREHHNES

FRN BEKSFHEEBEME (ZF
TF MRBEF REZFHNFEH
R EIRERMET8 cHBR =R (Z = —%:
=R)BRRFMEEFEE ZHMFIE
T

2022 2021
—=E_— T —F
HK$’000 HKS'000
THE T FAETT
4,565 4904

187 224

943 654

51 54

5,746 5,836

FHNFUATAENZZSHMIEERESR
ZANEBWTE

Number of employees

EBEAH
2022
—_ g —
HK$1,000,001 to HKS$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7% 7T & 1,500,000 78 7T 1 1
HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 7T & 2,000,000 7% 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 78 JT & 2,500,000 7% 7T 2 1
3 3

During the year, restricted shares of the Company, subject to certain
vesting conditions, were awarded to one non-director highest paid
employee in respect of his services to the Group, under the restricted
share award scheme of the Company, further details of which are
set out in note 29 to the financial statements. The fair value of such
restricted shares, which has been recognised in the statement of
profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the date
of grant and the amount included in the financial statements for
the current year is included in the above non-director highest paid
employee’s remuneration disclosures.

RAFE  RIBEARRZH RS 528
AEORETHEBHREZRRT  —&&
SHMFEEREECAKRAANSEMEHR
RBERARAET ARSI - AR
—THBHRMBRRME20 - ZFER
BB 2 AFEDRE L BHEE - X2
REBRAERERER - Mt ARFE
MBEBRZEBNER EXRZSHMIEE
ZRBFHMMARE

g ZmEEERA A —EB-FER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B RS R AR B AL (4

31 DECEMBER 2022 - —F+_-A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2021:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

during the year, except for one subsidiary of the Group which is
a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime.
The first HK$2,000,000 (2021: HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits of
this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2021: 8.25%) and the remaining
assessable profits are taxed at 16.5% (2021: 16.5%). Taxes on profits
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax
prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

10. FT18%

BENBRIBEBEAFEARBEELZ

il RERR g 1 8% 2 16.5%

—E -4

165%) {E B - RS E — B A A
BRETTAFESH MR NE S - %k B
N a)HE%£2000008T (T = —F:
2,000,000 74 7T) FE& 3R i g A 16 12 8.25% (=
T —F 1 825%) BIF i H R E RS
MEBZ165% (ZZE = —F : 16.5%) 5 o
H Ath 10 2 FE SR B A 2 B IE TR R AR B
REEBMAERR RIAERZERRE
FTE -

Current — Hong Kong
Charge for the year
Overprovision in prior years
Current — Elsewhere
Charge for the year
Overprovision in prior years
Deferred (note 26)

Total tax charge for the year

BNHR — &7
FREZH
FTEEZREE

BIVHA — H fth b [
FREZH
TEEZREE

TEE (P 7 26)

FABIA AR

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

2022 2021
—=E_— —E—F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET T T
7,224 5,071
(393) (410)
216 196
(157) (195)
(2,423) (28)
4,467 4,634




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 —E -~ +_A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at
the statutory profits tax rate for Hong Kong in which the Company
and the majority of its subsidiaries operate/are domiciled to the tax

10. FRE% ()

ERANEARBREREDHERRLE
M EE EEFNEREAEMSR
BADG A 2 MBS H - BIRERRERFE

charge at the effective tax rate is as follows:

Profit before tax

Tax at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate of
16.5% (2021: 16.5%)

Effect of withholding tax of 5% at the
distributable profits of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries

Effect of differences in tax rates for overseas
subsidiaries or enacted by local authorities

Adjustments in respect of current tax of previous
periods

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax

Effect of additional tax deduction enacted by
tax authorities

Tax losses not recognised

Others

Tax charge at the Group’s effective tax rate

Under the income tax laws of the PRC, enterprises are subject to
corporate income tax (“CIT") generally at a rate of 25% (2021: 25%).
In the current and prior years, certain of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries

2B HEERINT
2022 2021
== T —4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
B B4 B 51,432 57,627
BEBEAEREI65%(Z T = —
F 1 165%) 5T E 2 IR 8,486 9,508
RAEEFBEMEAR ZA DI
S F 2 5% BT 2 &
132 5
SN B A B BE M
FIEMMEEENTE (327) (187)
FBEHIRE 2 ANEAR B R
(550) (605)
BARBUA (3,547) (469)
DGR b3 1,945 470
F5 75 51 P9 298 0 BB SN TEURL 2 Y
& (2,100) (4,906)
RIERIEEE 1,176 671
EAh (748) 147
AEBRERRE;E 2 HE
T 4,467 4,634
RIBEFBIFTSHE - BE—MREZ25% (=

=

—F 1 25%) 2R ERBMDEREH

(TREMBHR])  -RAFERBEFE -

operating in specific development zones of the PRC were granted
preferential CIT rates of 2.5% to 15% by the relevant tax authorities.

ANES B T aR pA P B 4 i R 3 [ A AR B T
BARERBREIEELS T25% = 15% 18
BOOEMESHRENER -

g ZmEEERA A —EB-FER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 — - —#+—-HA=+—H

10.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

On 25 July 2022, the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department
(the “IRD") issued an enquiry letter to a subsidiary of the Company
regarding the claim for enhanced deduction of certain research and
development expenditures. The subsidiary had further provided
part of the requested information and documents in support of the
deduction claim and replied to part of the enquires from the IRD as
at 22 February 2023. The IRD is in the process of further review of the
claim.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, it is not practicable
at this early stage to estimate reliably the outcome of the claim
and, therefore, the financial effect (including the amount or timing
thereof, if any) of the foregoing enquiry. However, the directors
believe that, subject to availability of the required evidence, the
subsidiary has valid grounds to pursue the claim for enhanced
deduction. Accordingly, no further provision for Hong Kong profits
tax is considered necessary at this stage.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 6 March
2023, the IRD has issued protective assessments to another two
subsidiaries (the “Subsidiaries”) of the Company demanding tax of
approximately HK$805,000 in aggregate for the year of assessment
2016/17. Per preliminary discussion with the assessor-in-charge, the
IRD is reviewing the tax affairs of the Subsidiaries for the years of
assessment from 2016/17 onwards and the issuance of the protective
assessments is merely for the purpose of avoiding the year to become
statutorily barred. During the discussion, the IRD informed that, at
this early stage, they are focusing on the nature and the deductibility
of certain expenditure/expenses. The Subsidiaries have lodged
objections against the protective assessments and would provide
relevant information and documents in support of the deduction
claims once they are being requested by the IRD.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, it is not practicable at
this early stage to estimate reliably on the outcome and the financial
effect (including the amount or timing thereof, if any) of this tax
review. However, the directors believe that the tax reporting of the
Subsidiaries have all along been properly handled. Accordingly, no
further provision for Hong Kong profits tax is considered necessary at
this stage.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

10. G (&)

EERBR(BBRINR _-_ZE-__F+
AZ+aBmRARA—EHE QR EL
AEK - ARBBRES THEMAXHER
SN - ZMBARIER T -_=F_"A
—tZBABBRIELBIRERE—F
REMBROIDEH R AIFZE
R BT R IS A IR EE — P |E -

ARBEERR N NHIBEE - A
FENAERENGR R DR ARNT R
Z(pRAHAcEKRE(WE)) - R
EEZRR EESHEZIENERLT
MBARARD ﬁﬁhﬁ%%ﬂﬂmﬁﬁ
FE it - R R EABLF B R ﬁ-ﬁ“‘R{’EHjiE
— -

RFEHBLEERE - m%%ﬂquz
F=RANHAARABIRKH B A
([ZEWBAF]) B L REET %ﬁ
M_T——LtEREREFEHMNEED
805,000 78 JT BB 7K o IR 45K B 5T AR = E A AT

ﬁﬁ HEBEEEEZEMBARR

TN/t FRANTIHEE 2F5
%ﬁ 2 FTA S MR R - THE AR
WEZEAMEEATERERER - REBHE
RS R R EIREE  HEIEEE
REFZH ERNEERETN - Z
EHRB AR EHREMTRIRHE S I
EEREMEBER  REIFINROEBE
B RS o

ARAEERA  NEBBREH A EMHE
EABMBECNERIMBEZE (BT
ﬁi%ﬁ(mﬁﬂﬂﬂﬁleT BESR
BE ZEMBRAR - BEAZERENRD
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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11. DIVIDENDS 11. RE

FR AR B — T AR A% 0.065 78 7T
ZEZ—F : 00687T)

B ARIE AR B A PR (D £2E

FTEIRE 2R TSRS

Interim — HK$0.065 (2021: HKS0.06) per
ordinary share
Less: Dividend for shares held under the
Company's restricted share award scheme

¥R KRB — B AR L B A% 00758 7T
ZEZ—F :011%7T)
B ARE AR R AR H IR 5 42
FTEIR A 2 R PSR
fi% 8

Proposed final - HK$0.075 (2021: HKS0.11) per
ordinary share
Less: Proposed dividend for shares held under
the Company’s restricted share award
scheme

BBl — IR AR 005 7T
(ZB=—F: 8)
Less: Proposed dividend for shares held under B IRIBE AR B PR S A% 528
the Company’s restricted share award T8I 2 R P15 #Ek
scheme A% S

Proposed special — HK$0.05 (2021: Nil) per
ordinary share

2022 2021
—=E_— T —F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
THET FAETT
16,217 14,969
(151) (124)
16,066 14,845
18,711 27,444
(182) (264)
18,529 27,180
12,474 —
(121) -
12,353 -
46,948 42,025

The proposed final and special dividends for the year will be
payable in cash and are subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

- MZAK
SHUER

AERZBRRRBREFNREFARE X

NS E NN IEL SN

FAEE -

MR EER AR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 - —F+_-A=+—H

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. BAEIEERRRELERE
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT F

BEREAEFSENBRESAGEER
REEMFERNRMNRFANEETE B
DNRE 39 85 047,162,0400% (Z B = — 4 :
247,477,113 ) 5t & - WL GIBR AR GG R
B 1D B2 ED AT 8178 N ETHF AR D 1B A% o

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
247,162,940 (2021: 247,477,113) in issue during the year, as adjusted
to exclude the shares held under the restricted share award scheme
of the Company.

BRETRNSBEIRES QR BB
REGEAFRNRNFTE BB LB
B F AR R ESRERRNAZ
FRACETEBRHAE  URBRRAE
REBEARBE N Z A LEEEREGRS
B BARIERER  ARTCHEESRA
BT EBRNEFOHEGTHE -

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent. The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during the year,
as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued
at no consideration on the deemed vesting of all dilutive restricted
shares of the Company awarded under the restricted share award
scheme of the Company.

AEEBREAREERNAABENT

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on:

Earnings

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on

profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent.

Shares

&7
SREAREERF IR AR LBBER
RIEATHEFFH

8}

Number of shares

R4 E

2022
—E—-

Weighted average number of ordinary shares SAESREARBIFAFAEE
7%

in issue during the year used in the basic
earnings per share calculation

R NAE 19 8K

Effect of dilution — weighted average number of #8828 — L @A INAE FH & :

ordinary shares:
Restricted shares awarded under the
Company’s restricted share award scheme

RIEA R ABR Gl I fn 22 R At 8
Rh 2 BRI

Number of shares used in the diluted earnings T E S ESSE T TR R M B

per share calculation

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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1,081,357 1,038,541
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 — - —#+—-HA=+—H

13. % BERRHE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture,
Computer fixtures
Leasehold equipment and other Motor
improvements  and software equipment vehicles Total
HENE EERER R £EBR
%15 Bt Hitk RE st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TR TR TR TR
31 December 2022 —E-_"&E+-A=1+-H
At 1 January 2022; R-_ZE-_—%#—F—H:
Cost A 6,890 6,910 2,523 647 16,970
Accumulated depreciation ZitiheE (6,877) (5,931) (2,303) (647) (15,758)
Net carrying amount FEFE 13 979 220 - 1,212
At 1 January 2022, net of “E-f-fA-R-
accumulated depreciation ?ﬂﬁ?}?%uﬁ‘ﬁ% 13 979 220 = 1,212
Additions NE 33 732 174 - 939
Depreciation provided FRHERE
during the year (10) (735) (117) - (862)
Exchange realignment T (3) (18) (18) - (39)
At 31 December 2022, net of RZEZZ4+A
accumulated depreciation =+—0 KR RHE 33 958 259 - 1,250
At 31 December 2022: WZZ__F+_A
==k
Cost KA 6,795 7,044 2,597 647 17,083
Accumulated depreciation ZEtE (6,762) (6,086) (2,338) (647) (15,833)
Net carrying amount REHE 33 958 259 - 1,250
Bl ZmEEFR A T _FFY



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B RS R AR B AL (4

31 DECEMBER 2022 - —F+_-A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

31 December 2021

At 1 January 2021:
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

At 1 January 2021, net of
accumulated depreciation

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation provided
during the year

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2021, net of
accumulated depreciation

At 31 December 2021:

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Leasehold

improvements

HEM=

30

HK$'000
57

13. Y15 - BB RHRE (&)

Computer
equipment
and software
BRRER
it
HK$'000
THT

Fumiture,
fixtures

and other
equipment
B RER
Hit R
HK$'000
TET

Motor
vehicles

ot
HKS'000
57

Total

@zt
HKS'000
TAL

—E_-f+ZA=1+-H
R-E-—%-F—-8:

A 6,848 7,076 2431 647 17,002

ZEE (6,735) (5472) 2.161) (647) (15,015)

REFE 13 1,604 270 = 1987
RZF=—%—A—-R"

M 25T E 13 1604 270 = 1987
NE - 564 77 - 641
e - 3) - - )
FRTERE

(102) (1,181) (130) = (1413)

EH e 2 5) 3 = -
RZT-—%+=RA

=1+—8 HKREHE 13 979 220 - 1212
R-ZE-—&+_H

==l

XA 6,390 6910 2523 647 16,970

Rt E (6,877) (5931) (2,303) (647) (15,758

REFE 13 979 220 = 1212

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited



207

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 —E -~ +_A=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REYWZE
2022 2021
—=E-=
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FEx FHTT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—H—RZKHE 66,790 66,290
Net gain/(loss) from fair value adjustments NEERFAEZ W (F18)
R 6 (80) 500
Carrying amount at 31 December R+—A=+—BzEKEE 66,710 66,790
The Group's investment properties consist of one (2021: one) REBZ2IREYMHERTE B (ZTZ—
commercial property in Mainland China and one (2021: one) F—EH)RPBAM 2 EEDER—
industrial property in Hong Kong. The directors of the Company H(ZE-—F: —H)MNREBZTEYD
have determined that the investment properties consist of two ¥ - ARAESERBESEME LS -
classes of asset, i.e., commercial and industrial, based on the nature, R kEREEREYSERMEER (B
characteristics and risks of each property. The Group’s investment MERTIH)EE - R_TZ_F+=_H
properties were revalued on 31 December 2022 based on valuations =t—R AEEZREMFERBUERE
performed by Landscope Surveyors Limited, independent EEREEMESRERMTAR A R#EST
professionally qualified valuers, at HK$66,710,000. Each year, the 2 1B E 1l 566,710,000 7T © 728 & B Bf
Group’s Chief Financial Officer decides, after proper approval, to BHEIFORTE  REUSEBRER  BFE
appoint which external valuer to be responsible for the external EINE(EERT B B A E B Y2 2 SN EBE1E o
valuations of the Group’s properties. Selection criteria include market HESEREMSEANG B2 BUMK
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional BB R EFKEE o RE BB B F G
standards are maintained. The Group’s Chief Financial Officer has BEMEFRPEHARFENBRER 2HE
discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and FrER A 2 BRa& M 4 RAETT RN 5158 ©

valuation results twice a year when the valuation is performed for
interim and annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating BREMEEBREBELEHERBETE=7 -
leases, further summary details of which are included in note 15 to HE TS EMEIH N Y EIRERMIFES ©

the financial statements.

At 31 December 2022, one of the Group's investment properties RIEBE_—_F+_A=+—H  XEBE

situated in Hong Kong with a carrying value of approximately REE 2 KA —I58RH E 4 463,500,000

HK$63,500,000 (2021: HK$63,500,000) was pledged to secure general BT REWME (ZZ = —F : 63,500,000

banking facilities granted to the Group. BT ERBEETAEE 2 —RIRITH
B{EER -

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are included RNEBIGEYHE 2 — PeFBEH N E 254

on page 254. B o

g ZmEEERA A —EB-FER



208

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 —ZE——#+—-A=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14. REYXE (&)
Fair value hierarchy NEESRERE
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of TREATAEEREMEZ A VFEFES
the Group's investment properties: MBRFE

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2022 using
REB-ZF+-A=+—-HZAFERAUTREGE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
SEB TS EATHBE EATTEE
HE BAEE BAEE

(%51/8) (%28) (%38) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FTERT FTET FTHET FTET
Recurring fair value KEUATENE:

measurement for:
Commercial property EEX/ES - - 3,210 3,210
Industrial property TEME - - 63,500 63,500
- - 66,710 66,710

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2021 using
RZBZ—F+_A=+—HZATERANTEEFNE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (EYE W) (EYEE))
GRS ERUTEHE EANAIEE
WE PN ¢ AR

(F18) ($28) (F3E) FE
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FBT FABT FET
Recurring fair value KEUATENE:
measurement for:
Commercial property EEXZES - = 3,290 3,290
Industrial property TEME - - 63,500 63,500
- - 66,790 66,790
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements RAFE FIEEFIECHATELTF
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 B 2SRRI EATETEEANE T
(2021: Nil). FIB (=% 8\) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B 35 S R M e (7R

31 DECEMBER 2022 —E -~ +_A=+—H

4. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within Level 3

of the fair value hierarchy:

Carrying amount at 1 January 2021
Net gain from a fair value adjustment
recognised in profit or loss

Carrying amount at 31 December 2021 and
1 January 2022

Net loss from a fair value adjustment
recognised in profit or loss

Carrying amount at 31 December 2022

14. REY = ()

"%E%%&%‘éif% (%)
wn%% NFEBEEREEFEIENAFER
¥R
Commercial Industrial
Property Property
[SEX/ES TEYE
HKS'000 HK$'000
FAT FETT
RZE-_—F—F—HAZEEELE 3,290 63,000
REZHERZ AFEFAR KRS
R - 500
RZE-_—F+-_A=+—HkK
—E-—F#—A—HZKHAE 3,290 63,500
REZHERZ A FEAEEE
HER (80) -
RZE-_—_F+-A=+—-HB2
EmEE 3,210 63,500
Rt RGEBARA B FFTR

209
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 - —F+_-A=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14. REY = (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEESHREE (&)
Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the key TRAHEEMEGHBERAZHERER
inputs to the valuation of investment properties: FTEBABERE

Fair value Significant
hierarchy Valuation techniques unobservable inputs

DNFEER  fhERE EATABR

£ LN ¢

Commercial property Level 3 Market comparable method Prevailing price per square foot RMB1,251 to RMB1,301 to
[EEZUES F3E st A BYHRZATER RMB2,118 RMB2,138

AR¥1,251 T2 ARE1301 L2
AR®2118T ARE2138TT

Industrial property Level 3 Market comparable method Prevailing price per square foot HK$10,611 to HK$9,083 to
IXME F3E 5 8% FYHRZEGTER HK$16,108 HK$14,023
10,611 B T2 9083 BILE
16,108 1T 1403787
Under the market comparable method (or market comparable BIE IS A L8O (ks Al L8 7 81) -
approach), a property’s fair value is estimated based on comparable MR FETIAR LR R 5 ARG o
transactions. The market comparable approach is based on the MIGA LB S IA B TR R AEE - Rt
principle of substitution under which a potential buyer will not pay BEERB TSR EINRBEEZ M
more for the property than it will cost to buy a comparable substitute ZALBBERMERZ 2 - AEEK
property. The unit of comparison applied by the Group is the price Az BREMAETFEFTRZER -

per square foot.

A significant increase/decrease in the estimated market price per BY s BEARMGEHEAREEN
square foot in insolation would result in a significant increase/ WD BERREWERTEKREE M,
decrease in the fair value of the investment properties. W o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B 7S R 2R BT oE (4

31 DECEMBER 2022 —E -~ +_A=+—H

15. LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various properties used in its

operations. Leases of properties generally have lease terms between

1 and 3 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and

subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

(@) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and

the movements during the year are as follows:

As at 1 January
Additions
Remeasurement on lease modifications

Depreciation charge
Exchange realignment

As at 31 December

15. HE

REBEREBEA
AEBBEERNEETEANSTRYENE
EaM -MEHE-—ROEHA—ZE=F-
—RME  AREREULSHEEESS
KRBT AREBAIIAL

(a) FRHEEE
FRAEEFHABREENERERER
ggmT :

Properties

L/ES

2022 2021
== —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
®n—H—H 18,142 4,983
NE 2,584 17,034
HEEE =2 (1,541) 1,720
e (8,064) (6,125)
PE 38 (306) 530
Rt+t-—A=+—H 10,815 18,142

g ZmEEERA A —EB-FER

211



212

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 - —F+_-A=+—H

15. LEASES (CONTINUED) 15. & (&)
The Group as a lessee (continued) AEBEEREBEA (HE)
(b) Lease liabilities (b)) HEEE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements FAHEEENRAERESHNOT

during the year are as follows:

2022 2021
—E_= —E-—F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FTEx T
Carrying amount at 1 January R—H—RBZEKRHE 18,248 7,038
New leases s 2,584 17,034
Remeasurement on lease modifications HERE L ENTE (1,541) 1,146
Accretion of interest recognised during the year N FER K| B K 397 245
Payments (B (7,345) (7,677)
Exchange realignment bE 5 R (316) 462
Carrying amount at 31 December R+-ZRA=+—HZEKEE 12,027 18,248
Analysed into: DHTAT -
Current portion mENE S 7,415 7,923
Non-current portion EMENEL D 4,612 10,325
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 36 HE B ER BB 5T 5 BRI R
to the financial statements. FMIFE36 ©
()  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases (0 EHEEEMNEZRBRNSEENT

are as follows:

2022 2021
—=E—=

HK$'000 HKS'000

FHExT T T

Interest on lease liabilities HEHBEZFE 397 245

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FREEEZINE 8,064 6,125

Expenses relating to short-term leases EHERBHE X 649 594
Gain on lease modifications HEBE 2 W - (574)

Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIERERNES T 9,110 6,390
(d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 31(c) to (d HEMRSRHEENR B REN

the financial statements. FE31(0) IEE o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 —E -~ +_A=+—H

15. LEASES (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessor
The Group leases its investment properties (note 14) consisting of

one (2021: one) commercial property in the PRC and one (2021:
one) industrial property in Hong Kong under operating lease
arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require the tenants
to pay security deposits. Rental income recognised by the Group
during the year was HK$1,984,000 (2021: HK$1,860,000), details of
which are included in note 5 to the financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the undiscounted lease payments
receivable by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

Within one year —FR"
After one year but within two years —FRERMFA

15. HE (&)

AEBEAEHBEA

AEBBEBELCEHELH  BEIEEME
(FF7E14) A BREMARBPEN—E (=
T —F:—H)BANERMREERN
—H(ZEZ—F: ) ILxAYWE-H
EMGER—RERBPZHERIZS - K
SERFARERIES KA A1,984,00075
T (ZZ = —4 118600008 7C) * AR
B BTSRRI ES o

RFEHHEER  AEERBEERAS
RIS Z AR BURR) R 2 HE N AR R AR R
W REEBEHFERENHAT :

2022 2021
- —E -
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET TFAT
1,324 1,224

36 -

1,360 1,224

g ZmEEERA A —EB-FER
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B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 —ZE——#+—-A=+—H

16. GOODWILL

HK$'000
THET

31 December 2021 —B-—%+=A=+—H
Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2021 and RZE-_—F—HA—HBRZZTZ—%F
31 December 2021 TZA=t+—BRAKREEE 135,001

HK$’000
TRERx

31 December 2022 —E-_-—F+=HA=+-—H
Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2022 and RZBE-_—F—A—HEZ=ZZ=Z

31 December 2022 +—A=+—HKAKMEEE 135,001

As further detailed in note 2.4 to the financial statements, the Group
applied the transitional provisions of HKFRS 3 that permitted goodwill
in respect of business combinations which occurred prior to 2001 to
remain eliminated against consolidated reserves.

The amount of goodwill remaining in consolidated reserves, arising

from the acquisition of subsidiaries prior to the adoption of SSAP 30
in 2001, was HK$7,227,000 as at 31 December 2021 and 2022.

Impairment testing of goodwill
Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to the

following cash-generating units for impairment testing:
Application services cash-generating units; and

Solutions and Integration services cash-generating unit.

B ISR M 24P R - REBEE R
& ﬁ?ﬁ‘@ﬁ%ﬁﬁ'J%B%ﬁZiﬂiﬁ\&*ﬂ*Y
R T —FHMELBREHAH
ZABRBEREAFEHE -

R T—F Y E..#,ﬁfwﬁ Al 55 3055
Al H&Z%Bﬁ% AIFTELWRBRIEA FE
ZHEESHE WN_E-—FR-ZT-_—F
+=A=+—H/7227000%TT °

[N

ABENRNE  EREKSFKEZRE

EEARETYREELEN
FEFRARTSIR S E A B

R RN SRR RS ELEN -

PEERCELBEMZHBEREENAT :

The carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
units are as follows:

Solutions and
Integration Services Total

R R R &R RS @
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-C —E-_—%F CZE-C —E-—&% C-—B-C —T-—%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TERL AT TEL FHL TAET THEL
132,978 132978 2,023 2,023 135,001 135,001

Application
Services

J& R R %

Carrying amount of goodwill HEREE
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B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 — - —#+—-HA=+—H

16. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)
Application services cash-generating units

The recoverable amounts of the application services cash-generating
units have been determined based on a value-in-use calculation using
cash flow projections approved by management covering a five-year
period. A zero (2021: zero) growth rate is used to extrapolate the cash
flows of the cash-generating units beyond the five-year period. The
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 129% (2021: 12%).
The cash flow projections are determined by management based on
past performance of the cash generating units and management’s

expectations for market development.

Solutions and Integration services cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the solutions and integration services
cash-generating unit has been determined based on a value in use
calculation using cash flow projections approved by management
covering a five-year period. A zero (2021: zero) growth rate is used
to extrapolate the cash flows of the cash-generating unit beyond
the five-year period. The discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections is 12% (2021: 12%). The cash flow projections are
determined based on past performance of the cash-generating unit

and management's expectations for market development.

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the
application services and the solutions and integration services cash-
generating units for 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021. The
following describes each key assumption on which management has
based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of

goodwill:

Budgeted/forecasted revenue

The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted/
forecasted revenue is the revenue achieved in the year immediately
before the budget/forecast year, adjusted for management’s

expected changes in market demand and customer base.

Budgeted/forecasted gross margins

The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted/
forecasted gross margins is the average gross margins achieved
in the year immediately before the budget/forecast year, adjusted
for any expected efficiency improvements and expected market

developments.

Discount rates

The discount rates used are before tax and reflect specific risks

relating to the relevant cash-generating units.

16. EE (&)

%Elﬁﬁlnj ni (nﬁ)
ERARBREEELEN

FERRBIREEELESBNL 2 I REEED R
BERAEENEE ZERAEEAUNAE
BEMMECAFHRERNETEN - HE
ReELBEMBEAFTFNHEERER £
ANEREXAT(ZT=_—F: %) - BHE
MEBAMANRE S 2% (ZE=_—F :
12%) c REeREBAREEEEE + K
BRESEABNCBERR  URERE
BYminER 2B -

BRAEFRRERBRBEREEEEN
BARTRREKRBREEE S 2K
e RBEREEEE  ZERER
AIfREREESE AFHTEERER
Bl o HEERSEABMBHAFNREM
ER FHNERXAT (ZT=—%F:
) BemETEAMERFTIRER12% (=
T—F:12%) REREENAEERE
EE HEEBRBeEEEM ZBERE -
NREEEEHMISER A -

KRB _—F+-_A=+—HEZ=_ZT=—
F+-A=+—H8  TEEAREALE
AARNRERRIEZECELEEMN ZFH
EENEFERzETRE EEERER
eREBIETEERENAMKEZE
HEZS/BHRBMT

FRE S TERMA
HEFFRRAZBEREERERE
BRAFEMzFEANDEIZBAEE
W EE BRI MIHHE R R EF P ER
B{EH LA -

BEBHEFIE

BE,/ BHEANE BENREREEY
SEAFENZ FENEEEZ THER
REE  AREERAKE AL TSE
BAEH B -

#r8%
BB AT AR BT R % - 7R
EREEMESEESAZHERR -

M RREEGRA —E— —FFR
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17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. Htt B EE

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Deferred
development
costs*

IEFE PR B AL AR
HK$'000
TER

Customer
relationships
EFB%
HK$’000
FHERT

Software
nH
HK$'000
THET

Total
mE
HK$'000
THET

31 December 2022 —E-__%4+—-H
Er=F
At 1 January 2022: RZZE—_—_#%#—F—8:
Cost B 46,231 14,767 46,028 107,026
Accumulated amortisation 2R RRE
and impairment (13,026) (10,757) (26,885) (50,668)
Net carrying amount REFE 33,205 4,010 19,143 56,358
Cost at 1 January 2022, net of RZEZ—F—H—H
accumulated amortisation A - HIBR 25T
and impairment B 5H R E 33,205 4,010 19,143 56,358
Amortisation provided during NEFFEHBE
the year (4,130) (1,655) (4,839) (10,624)
At 31 December 2022 N_ZE__F+=A
=+—H 29,075 2,355 14,304 45,734
At 31 December 2022: WZZE-—
+=ZRA=+—8:
Cost DN 46,231 14,767 46,028 107,026
Accumulated amortisation Rt RORE
and impairment (17,156) (12,412) (31,724) (61,292)
Net carrying amount REFE 29,075 2,355 14,304 45,734
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 —E -~ +_A=+—H

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 17. Htt B EZE (&)
Deferred
development Customer
costs* relationships Software Total
TR B AR B E#F /s ik
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THET THET THET
31 December 2021 —E-_—-5+=A8
==
At 1 January 2021: RZEZ—4%—-H—RH:
Cost k7S 44,337 14,767 46,028 105,132
Accumulated amortisation Rt RORE
and impairment (13,026) (9,101) (22,049) (44,176)
Net carrying amount REFE 31,311 5,666 23979 60,956
Cost at 1 January 2021, net of RZEZ—F—H—H
accumulated amortisation ZRCAR - Bk BE
and impairment e 5H R E 31,311 5,666 23,979 60,956
Additions NE 1,894 - - 1,894
Amortisation provided during RNEEE G
the year - (1,656) (4,836) (6,492)
At 31 December 2021 RZTE_—F+=A
=+—H 33,205 4,010 19,143 56,358
At 31 December 2021: RZZEZ—%+_H
E=:
Cost AR 46,231 14,767 46,028 107,026
Accumulated amortisation R RO E
and impairment (13,026) (10,757) (26,385) (50,668)
Net carrying amount REFE 33,205 4,010 19,143 56,358
@ In the prior year, additions of deferred development costs of HK$ 1,894,000 & RAFE @ RLEFREEKARE 1,894,000 7T
were from internal development. TR B NEBFEE -

Bt X EE BB A A B CFER
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31 DECEMBER 2022 —ZE——#+—-A=+—H

18. INVENTORIES

18. &

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx TATT

Work in progress RS

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES

16 36

19. EWWE Z R

Trade receivables JEUNE 5 R
Impairment VERED

The Group’s trading terms with its customers vary from contract to
contract or depending on the specific arrangements with individual
customers, and may include cash on delivery, advance payment and
on credit. For those customers who trade on credit, the overall credit
period is generally within 60 days, except for certain projects with
longer implementation schedules or for major or specific customers,
where the period may be extended. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding trade receivables and overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by management. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.
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2022 2021
—E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR
54,839 48,778
(3,923) (3.177)
50,916 45,601

AEE 2 X5 EFHEEMER G QR T &
ERFEP ZHRLHME  AIEBREER
3R FEANREBRER - ez F ARKTY
AETRHZEFPME  BREEH R
TZR6e0K - HEMETREETIHRE
IREBEAREE,  AEREEH - K
SE-HEEREHERER 2REE SR
R BEEEINEREHARFRLR - K
SEYEREFRKEZRAGHRTAE
MEAMBELEMERSESRE - B
BHRKL TR E -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance,
is as follows:

Within 1 month — & AR

1to 3 months —Z==EA
410 6 months A E

7 to 12 months tE=+=1@A

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

At beginning of year i)

BEEE, (BERE) FRE
(note 6) (Mf&E6)

Amount written off as uncollectable 1 8 73 A R Y [B] SR8

Exchange realignment M H B

At end of year ME#K

Impairment losses/(reversal of impairment), net

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using
a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision
rates are based on days past due. The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

219

19. B E 5 R (&)

REBEHREER  BREZFERRER
BHYEHGERREZRESTOT :

2022 2021
—E-—F T —F
HK$'000 HKS'000
TET BT
28,656 26,626
12,381 13,269
3,004 3,740
6,875 1,966
50,916 45,601

R B SRR RERRREZSNT

2022 2021
—E-= T —F
HK$'000 HKS'000
TET FET
3,177 3,861
837 (123)
- (595)
(91) 34
3,923 3,177

REHE B BRABEBREETREDN -
Ut EBRMEEER - BEXDERAH
BEET - At ERBRAARMELER R
RBEBMAISNBEREEEE  E8MR
AR ARRE BTN G R AT SEER -

g ZmEEERA A —EB-FER
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the
Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

At 31 December 2022

Expected credit loss rate

Gross carrying amount
(HK$'000)

Expected credit losses
(HK$'000)

At 31 December 2021

Expected credit loss rate

Gross carrying amount
(HK$'000)

Expected credit losses
(HKS$'000)

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Credit-
impaired
receivables
FERE
EWFE
R=2=Z
+=-A=+-AH
BHEEERX 100%
EmeE
(FEL) 3,404
BHEEER
(Fi#7) 3,404

Current

L

0.08%

34,386

28

19. B E 5 R (&)

T%%Z?U$‘il1i%%§f%%ﬁﬁ$§
BHERFNEERRER :

=)

Past due
okt

Less than 1to3 Over
1 month months 3 months

—fEAR ZEARL

0.17% 0.25% 5.75% 7.15%
4,816 4,003 8,230 54,839
8 10 473 3,923

Credit-
impaired
receivables
FERE
IR
RZBZ-%
t=A=1-8
Tﬁﬁm EBRX 100%
H2E
(F;‘%r‘c) 2958
BHEESE
(F#) 2958

Current

SEs

0.03%

30,650

Past due
Pzt

Less than 1103 Over

T month months 3 months

—fEAR

=EAKE

0.07% 0.19% 545% 6.51%
7,303 4,255 3612 48,778
5 8 197 3177

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20. ERRIE - ZERHEMEWRN
RECEIVABLES 15
2022 2021
—E-__ T
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHEx T T
Prepayments T 5RIE 12,413 13,286
Deposits and other receivables Re Rk HAth fE IR 5,504 4174
17,917 17,460
Portion classified as current assets DERRBEERD (15,897) (15,041)
Portion classified as non-current asset DERIERDEEN 2,020 2419
The financial assets included in the above balances relate to BIER Ll #5687 < B 75 & B B AR A%
receivables for which there was no recent history of default and past T’@TEE??ZFEHQ%’\IE RS RERRE - 1
due amounts. As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the loss allowance TR CFRIE-—F+ZA=+—8H"
was assessed by management to be minimal. ERETHEERERBE -
21. CONTRACT ASSETS 21. BREE
31 December 31 December 1 January
2022 2021 2021
—s-= —E— E — T —4F
+=—B=+—-H8 t=—A=+— —A—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHExT FHET FHET
Contract assets arising from: BREENRBUT
KIF :
Sale of goods and provision of software  $5& & M K IR
and GETS services BHRBNEFE
28R %% 969 222 3,060
Provision of Saa$S product offering, e RS Em
software implementation and related B4 H e S A8 B Al
services, IT solutions implementation f& B AR R R
and related services HRE KNG
R 1% 20,624 20,201 16,448
Maintenance services HEIRTS 3,708 5,205 740

25,301 25,628 20,248

Rt RGEBARA TE - —FFRR
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21. CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED)

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Contract assets are mainly initially recognised for revenue earned
from the provision of software implementation and related services,
and IT solutions implementation and related services as the receipt
of consideration is based on the billing process. Included in contract
assets for provision of software implementation and related services,
and IT solutions implementation and related services are unbilled
amounts of revenue. Upon completion of the billing of the revenue
from contract customers, the amounts recognised as contract assets
are reclassified to trade receivables. The decrease in contract assets in
2022 was mainly due to the decrease in the provision of maintenance
services near the end of the year. The increase in contract assets in
2021 was mainly due to an increase in the provision of maintenance
services near the end of that reporting year.

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets as
at 31 December is as follows:

Within one year —F R

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using
a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision
rates for the measurement of the expected credit losses of the
contract assets are based on those of the trade receivables as the
contract assets and the trade receivables are from the same customer
bases. The provision rates of contract assets are based on days past
due of trade receivables for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. There was
no recent history of default for the contract assets. Since the contract
assets are still current and the payment is not yet due, the expected
credit loss rates of contract assets are assessed by management to be
minimal.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

21.

BHNEE (A)

HARENKREDEEERRAERENE
B RS EEMAAERSE - ARE
R RR 77 2 B s M A8 B R 75 P 15 W A7)
RFER BB W EE - SLIRE ST E I RAE
BAARFS - A R B AR AR T R E i M AR
FARBFHAGHNEENAFRERAZE -
TRENTPBRAFRHKRER  ZFCHE
RBANEENSHSEN T BERKE
PEAR R _FE - _FNANEERDT

E B BN ERATERATIR (4 ARSI A P
H-R-_T_—FHNRNEEEMIEE
AT 72 3R 5 F R AT R 4 M s AR A% 1 A0
FER

Wt=A=+-8"
S ERRmMT :

BHEENBERKD

2022 2021
—_EFE__ ==&

HK$’000
TET
25,301

HKS 000
TAT

25,628

REHE B PR BEBREETREDN -
U ERHBEEER it BEANEERY
EEBERNBREXRTDERERE S RKTE
HEEBBRRBXZFAEMNGH  RAR
A%éé&ﬁ%%%% XK BHEREFE
e ANEBEENRBIEDENBHBAR
Mﬂﬁ@M%EEﬁWTH%ﬁ“%Z@
RIMETE ° &t EHERRR IS B HA]
SOARRBESZE - B R ARG E
REFFERIE S B R A SEEH -

PR EERBEAPIORE - BHNEELD
WHEEXN RS - RS HOEEMARE
B REEEHEANEENTENMEES
BRBIRIE -
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22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT ORLOSS

Debt investment, at fair value
Listed equity investments, at fair value

DERRBEERD
DERIERBEERD

Portion classified as current assets

Portion classified as non-current assets

The listed equity investments were classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss as they were held for trading.

The debt investment was mandatorily classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss as its contractual cash flows are not
solely payments of principal and interest.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's listed equity investments with
a carrying value of approximately HK$4,205,000 (2021: HKS$7,546,000)
were pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group.

A B2 EHRA
BRATEHE 2 EHRARE

22, EQ$E$§E§A§EZ,@H§§

2022 2021
—E—— T —F
HK$'000 HKS'000
THET TAT
2,100 2,100
4,205 7,546
6,305 9,646
(4,205) (7,546)
2,100 2,100

EIERARERNBRIEEEMED B AR
AFERBEARZMBEE

BHRRE TSRO BERRAFELE
S ARCHBEE REGHRSREL
FHE RN ARE RFE -

RZZE-_—_F+-_A=+—8 ' xE£EZ
TR EREEL 54,205,000 7T (=
T = —4F 75460008 70) E BBER T
REEZ —MIRTTEE (EIA

g ZmEEERA A —EB-FER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 - —F+_-A=+—H

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

23. BEREFRSEEUAREE
HRITER

2022 2021
—EF__ —EF - —4F

HK$’000 HK$'000
FTEx TAET

Cash and bank balances B & MIRTTH R 69,290 89,930
Time deposits TE HATF 3R 241,503 209,660
310,793 299,590

W BIRIT R 2 BARE
EREEIRTEHER (618) (685)
Pledged deposit for banking facility FRITHEE ZRITRE
granted by a bank* BT #8173 3k (402) (508)

Less: Pledged time deposits for performance
bonds/guarantees issued by banks

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the

SRAREEE

consolidated statement of financial position

*

The bank facility has not been utilised as at the end of the reporting period.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
and time deposits of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”)
amounted to approximately HK$52,239,000 (2021: HK$56,281,000).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement and Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on relevant bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods
of between one and six months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short
term time deposit rates. The bank balances and time deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

AFABREMBEIRAKRZERE R

309,773 298,397

* RREHRREER WLAPHHAZRITHE -

RIFEHBLEER  REBUARE (TA
REDFEZERES RBITEH LTS
T4 5522390008 T (ZFB = — 4 :
56,281,000/ 70) - AR EARIRA
H i EE - (BRIE SR INE S 2 K5
NMaElE EERNETERT  AE@EE
B BT EITIMNE RS 2 IRITHIE AR K
HinBHEAINE o

RITR S RIBABRITERNEEZZEH
KB - RHEMERNERANF—=
NEATE - REAKEEKIRESF KM
T WIRARRE AT R FERFEREFE - R
TRBEERFFAFEREERFRL
HAY B RS 8k 2 BRTT e
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24. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 24, BEREFERN - Htt B KIE
ACCRUALS R FEETFRIE
2022 2021
—E—— T —F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET T T
Trade payables FERE 5 BR 17,034 11,257
Other payables H A fE A FRIE 29,067 27,327
Accruals JESTFIE 23,098 25,134
69,199 63,718
Portion classified as current liabilities NEAERBDEERD (69,160) (63,718)
Portion classified as non-current liabilities NEAEREBAEISD 39 =
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting RFEHBEER BB ZEREFIREER
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: HZRERATAT
2022
—E—-— —E-—F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FExT T T
Within 1 month —EAR 15,311 8417
1to 3 months —==MA 1,224 2,155
4 to 6 months EAN 199 429
Over 6 months ~E A A E 300 256
17,034 11,257
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled B ZERLDEE - —RIZ30KER
on 30-day terms. B o

g ZmEEERA A —EB-FER
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25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 25. ENAE
Details of contract liabilities are as follows: BRBEEFBET
31 December 31 December 1 January
2022 2021 2021
—E-= — % — ==
+=BA=+—8H +=A —H—H
HK$’000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
FTET FH T T
Advances received from customers BREF B
Sale of goods and provision of HE S mRRHE G
software and GETS services MBTETES
BR 7% 3,378 2,715 5,898
Provision of Saa$S product offering, e AR S Em
software implementation and B A AR
related services, IT solutions % - AR ERR
implementation and related services 71 RE s & A8 Ak
%% 24,593 24,384 21,229
Maintenance services i T 27,626 28,973 33,890
55,597 56,072 61,017
Portion classified as current liabilities NEAERBEEIT D (54,190) (54,222) (58,708)
Portion classified as non-current liabilities 2 85 IEm B B (&
=55 1,407 1,850 2,309
The majority of the contract liabilities mainly include advances AP ENEEFEOERBEHIAEERE
received to render software implementation and related services, NIRRT - A ERA T RE i & H
IT solutions implementation and related services, and maintenance % AR 75 DA I 4 S AR 75 PT U B B 5K - R =
services. The decrease in contract liabilities in 2022 was mainly due T CFHANBERLIEERRFERE
to the decrease in advances received from customers in relation to HEBEERE 2 EREFP RV °
the provision of maintenance services at the end of the year. The RIZEZ—FHNEHNEBERD EEZHRZ
decrease in contract liabilities in 2021 was mainly due to the sale of FEREMEEERREHBGRBNE
goods and provision of software and GETS services, and the decrease FTESRY  RREREHEERBZERERP
in advances received from customers in relation to the provision of BB FTE ©

maintenance services at the end of that reporting year.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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B 7S R 2R BT oE (4

31 DECEMBER 2022 — - —#+—-HA=+—H

26. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year

are as follows:

Deferred tax assets

26. IELERIIE

EEBAEE

FR EEMBREERAGBZESHNT :

2022
—EB-—F
Temporary
differences
arising from

contract
liabilities
REEHNEE
ZERERE
HK$’000
FHET

2,061

At 1 January 2022 R-_E__F—H—H

Deferred tax credited to the consolidated statement of FAFF AL BEmR 2 IRLERIE
profit or loss during the year

Exchange realignment

347
ME H JE (203)
Gross deferred tax assets at 31 December 2022 N-_E-—F+ A =1+—HIELEFHE

BEER 2,205

EERERE

2022
—g——

B —

Deferred tax liabilities

Fair value

adjustments

Deferred  arising from

Revaluation development acquisition of
of properties costs  subsidiaries
WEKEAR
ZAFEAE
HK$000
Tz

Withholding

taxes Total

HK$'000
TER

WEE( BERRAA
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL  FER

kil
HK$'000
TER

At 1 January 2022 i Sy = 386 5,478 5,564 774 12,202
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to ~ FRHBR /(T A) A B R

the consolidated statement of ZIEERE

profit or loss during the year (20) (681) (1,507) 132 (2,076)
Exchange realignment P 5 - = - (19) (19)
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZEZZ&+=H

at 31 December 2022 =+—BEEHEEE

4 366 4,797 4,057 887 10,107

Bt X EE BB A A TR FFES
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 - —F+_-A=+—H

26. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 26. ERLERIE (48)
Deferred tax assets FEEBIEEE

Losses Temporary
available for differences
offsetting arising from
against future contract
taxable profits liabilities Total
AR ARRE REGHNERE
TR0 A ) 5 48 2 ERER k]
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETT FHET FHETT
At 1 January 2021 R-ZE—_—F—HA—H 824 2,320 3,144
Deferred tax charged to the FAMRGEIEREKZ
consolidated statement of profit or EAE R IE
loss during the year (824) (338) (1,162)
Exchange realignment ME W S - 79 79
Gross deferred tax assets RZZE=—4F+=H
at 31 December 2021 =+ —RERERIE
BEER - 2,061 2,061
Deferred tax liabilities EEBEEE

2021
—E-—F
Fair value
adjustments
Deferred arising from

Revaluation  development  acquisition of ~ Withholding

of properties Costs subsidiaries taxes Total
Bhé1l=UNG]
MEER BEREBRKEA 2D TFEAR B e
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TET FET AT TET TET
At 1 January 2021 RZZEZ—%—-H—H 386 5,166 7,071 764 13,387
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to ~ F RN/ GEA) GRABEXR
the consolidated statement of ZIEREHE
profit or loss during the year - 312 (1,507) 5 (1,190)
Exchange realignment B 5 8 B - - - 5 5
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZE=—F+=A
at 31 December 2021 =t-BELHEEE
£33 386 5478 5,564 774 12,202

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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26. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied
if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. For the Group’s subsidiaries established
in Mainland China, the applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The Group
is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed
by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At the end of the reporting period, in respect of certain subsidiaries
of the Group established in Mainland China, no deferred tax has
been recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on
the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding taxes. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, it is not probable that
these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable
future. The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred
tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately
HK$2,469,000 at 31 December 2022 (2021: HK$2,667,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

Tax losses not recognised
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unrecognised tax

losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately HK$2,381,000 (2021:
HK$1,458,000), subject to the agreement by the Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Department, that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits arising in Hong Kong of the companies
in which the losses arose. The Group also has estimated tax loss
arising in the Mainland China of HK$18,227,000 (2021: HK$4,137,000),
subject to the agreement by the relevant tax authority in the
Mainland China, for offsetting against future taxable profits arising in
the Mainland China which will expire in one to five years. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they
have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time
and/or due to the unpredictability of future taxable profit streams
of the companies in which the losses arose, and it is currently not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available against
which the tax losses can be utilised.

26. JEZERIE (&)

RIE A B RS ELE - R B A A S
ZHONERERBIMNEEEST KRB EIZ
T10%TEMHEHT - EEHREE_ZZN
F—A—HEEY WERR_ZZ+LF
TZRA=FT—RAZEMEERET o W=
A B SNE B B BT TR AR R B AR R
IR AR IRARE 2 B R - RN
BN BEAE S 2 [B AR EARE A
5%310% ° A BEZEF/\FE—H—H
i,$%lmmaﬁm¢!mmmizw

RNAFTEEZFE DR 2SS TER
ﬁa

RBEHEEER  AEBETEFER T
Bl A AR S 2 B T M B A R R E A A
MIBAHBFNERZBIHERELR
He APREZEERE  RAIRAREK - E
MEBRARTKAED RZFAF - R_F
——H+-_A=+—H HEFRERBZ
MBARKENRB s TR EHMEES K
#92,469,000%8 75 (ZZT = —4F : 2,667,000
J0) ¢ HEI ERE TR Lmﬁﬁﬁo

AR A R 1 PR SRR R 7 2 2

RER W BIERE

RFEHBEER  AEBREBEER
R RIAE B 42,381,000 T (Z 2= —
F 1 1,458,000/87T) ' Al ER HHEE R B
BEBEEBB AR ZRRERB AH «
MR BHMIERRY - AEE I EEHE
AR B A HE E AR A9 A 18 S 818,227,000 TT
T T — 4 413700078 70) K EE G
R—Z 1 F A EH R0 A B A Hb A 5 6D 8 2R
ot S8 )+ M 1113 o I3 P A B A S A R
Al - BN ZEEEBREEE KB TH5
BERZHBARR RK2BRZENBEA

) oA 7 FE AR i i ) 2T B 1 BT FE RN LA 2 3R
B 328 N K AT B 8 B sR ok A1) A] A VR K 85
MIBEBE W ARZEBEEERELER
HEE -

MR GEEERA
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27. SHARE CAPITAL

Shares

Authorised: SETERRA

1,000,000,000 (2021: 1,000,000,000)

ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

P TT 2 R

Issued and fully paid: EBITREERAE
249,488,384 (2021: 249,488,384)

ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

BTL KB

A summary of movements in the Company’s issued ordinary share
capital, share premium account and shares held under the restricted

27. RZ&

1R £3

2022
—=E=—=

2021
—E-—4F
HKS$'000
FABTT

HK$’000
TET

1,000,000,000 % (=& = —4F :
1,000,000,000 %) EF A% EI{E0.10

100,000 100,000

2494883848 (ZE = — 4 :
249,488,384 i%) F A EI{E 0.10

24,949 24,949

AARBBITEBERA - B RERKIR
EARGIIG ZE T2 E 2D EB

share award scheme is as follows:

YN

Shares held
under the
Number Share restricted
of shares Issued premium share award
Ordinary shares inissue capital account scheme
BREER
47 52 B
2R 2R R FEEE
RHEE R BER 2R “m
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FAT TAT TAT TAT
At 1 January 2021 RZZZ—4F
—H—H 249,488 384 24,949 53,104 (4,480) 73,573
Purchase of shares held under the EEBR IR RE
restricted share award scheme RN ) 29 = = - (2,707) (2,707)
Vesting of shares held under the B H 8 D BT IR
restricted share award scheme TRHOEE 29 = = = 176 1,176
At 31 December 2021 and RZEZ—%+Zf
at 1 January 2022 =T—BRRZE
——#—f—H 249,488,384 24,949 53,104 (6,011) 72,042
Purchase of shares held under the EEBR MR =B
restricted share award scheme AN ) 29 - - - (1,250) (1,250)
Vesting of shares held under the AR AR 17 Bt &l
restricted share award scheme BTRHEE 29 - - - 1,057 1,057
At 31 December 2022 RZBZ_%+_H
=+—H 249,488,384 24,949 53,104 (6,204) 71,849
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 — - —#+—-HA=+—H

27. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share options
issued under the scheme are included in note 28 to the financial

statements.

Restricted shares

Details of the Company’s restricted share award scheme and the
restricted shares held under the scheme are included in note 29 to

the financial statements.

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme primary for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group's operations. The share
option scheme entitles the holders of share options granted under
the scheme to subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company at any
time during the exercisable periods of the options. Share options
do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at

shareholders' meetings.

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2012 Scheme”)
in prior years. Eligible participants of the 2012 Scheme include
the Company’s directors (whether executive or non-executive
and whether independent or not), other employees of the Group,
consultants or advisers of the Group, suppliers of goods or services
to the Group, customers of the Group, the Company’s shareholders,
and any other person, at the sole discretion of the directors. The
2012 Scheme became effective on 19 November 2012 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years

from that date. The 2012 Scheme expired in November 2022.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the 2012 Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each eligible participant in the 2012 Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this

limit is subject to shareholders'approval in a general meeting.

27.

28.

B (%)

B M
B AR R R BB 8 MR B LA 83T
B HRHN M B RRMTES -

A R % IR 42

RRBVA RSB B AT 8 RAR B X AT 8
FAZBRBIRD FIEEN M B RRM T
29°

B IR M T &

ARBEE—RBEREES - T2BENR
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ERBERAG LRE -

AARBAERA—EERESS (==
——FHE]) c —B——FHEZAER
2HEEZEBREARNAES (TwmAITeIEH
TERTHBLER) AEBHEMES
AEBBEBKFZAAL  AAEEHREE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 —ZE——#+—-A=+—H

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Share options granted to a director or substantial shareholder of
the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject to approval
in advance by the INEDs. In addition, any share options granted to
a substantial shareholder or an INED of the Company, or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of
the Company's shares at the date of grant) in excess of HKS5 million,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 10 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HKS1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, and commences after
certain vesting period and ends on a date which is not later than 10
years from the date of offer of the share options or the expiry date of
the 2012 Scheme, whichever is earlier.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors,
but may be at least the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price
of the Company’s shares on the date of offer of the share options; (i)
the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii)
the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

No share option of the Company was outstanding, granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the current and prior years
and subsequent to the end of the reporting period up to the date of
approval of these financial statements under the 2012 Scheme.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 — - —#+—-HA=+—H

29. RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted a restricted share award scheme (the “Award
Scheme”) on 22 May 2008 and renewed the Award Scheme on 31
May 2017 (the “Renewed Date”) under which shares of the Company
(the "Awarded Shares”) may be awarded to selected employees
(including directors) of any members of the Group (the “Selected
Employees”) in accordance with the provisions of the Award Scheme
and an irrevocable trust (the “Trust”) was also established by the
Company for the purpose of the Award Scheme. The Award Scheme
became effective on the adoption date and, unless otherwise
terminated or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from the
Renewed Date. Further details of the Award Scheme are also set out
in the circulars of the Company dated 29 April 2008 and 26 April 2017.

The aggregate number of the Awarded Shares currently permitted
to be awarded under the Award Scheme throughout the duration
of the Award Scheme is limited to 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company from time to time or such other percentage as notified
to them by the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
(provided that the overall limit on the number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under any other incentive or share option schemes
and under the Award Scheme must not exceed 30% of the shares
of the Company in issue from time to time). Subject to the aforesaid
limit, the maximum number of the Awarded Shares which may be
awarded under the Award Scheme shall not exceed 2% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the year end date of the preceding
financial year of the Company for any 12-month period up to and
including the date of the relevant grant. The maximum number of
the Awarded Shares which may be awarded to a Selected Employee
under the Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the year end date of the preceding
financial year of the Company.

29. HRFI R4 R BT &

ARABR-_ZEENFRA -+ _HEH—
HA R B I m 2B Er S (2R &) R
—E—+FREA=T+—B(EEHHE
BEHRENETE o BRI - A AR A RIRSEE) T
Bz EXAAEEFERLTRES (B
EE)([EEgEE |) S#RAQR KRG ([4
BhR% (D)) + AR B Inph SRE AT B —IH
ANAHE{EE ([55E)) - BEFTEIE R K
MBEAER - BRIFWARIESIER] - 5B E
BEEHHEATERER - BRI EE—F
HBENERARR AT N\EMNA
ZHNBERZE—tFHEAZF A HZE
|i| °

B IR R R E AT 81X RED A BB AT X
Z BB ABREBASARA AR EET
BRAEZ10NIARRNEETS((EFE B
M F 2 E A D (AR 2RI EM
H fth S2 B = B R AT B S 2R At Bl 2 R i
BRITEHPTA B EIT R R A T &IT
ZBERBEZEERBIEEALARAT
2 TP 2 30%) o E R kAt fR %8 -
BERBROAR(BREZE) 2EA+=
AR RIFERE SRR 2 AR
=B E - NMEBEARNRF E— @RI
FEFERAZDHTRA2% RIZER
s8R A E R S BUE B B R 2 R A {0
EeBATGHEARANR L—EAFRFE
FREAZDEITRAI%

Bt X EE BB A A —EB-FER

233



234

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 —ZE——#+—-A=+—H

29. RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

(CONTINUED)

Pursuant to the rules governing the operation of the Award Scheme
(the “Scheme Rules”), the Board shall select the Selected Employees
and determine the number of the Awarded Shares to be awarded.
The Board shall cause to pay the trustee of the Trust (the “Trustee”)
the purchase price and the related expenses from the Company’s
resources for the shares of the Company to be purchased by the
Trustee. The Trustee is a third party appointed by the Board for the
administration of the Award Scheme. The Trustee shall purchase
from the market such number of shares of the Company awarded
as specified by the Board and shall hold such shares until they are
vested in accordance with the Scheme Rules.

When a Selected Employee has satisfied all vesting conditions, which
might include service and/or performance conditions, specified by
the Board at the time of making the award and becomes entitled
to the shares of the Company forming the subject of the award, the
Trustee shall transfer the relevant vested Awarded Shares to that
employee at no cost. The Selected Employee, however, is not entitled
to receive any income or distribution, such as dividend derived
from the unvested Awarded Shares allocated to him/her. The said
income or distributions shall be used by the Trustee for payment of
the Trustee’s fees or expenses or for purchase of further shares of the
Company for the Award Scheme.

The Trustee shall not exercise the voting rights in respect of any
shares of the Company held under the Trust, including, inter alia, the
Awarded Shares and further shares of the Company acquired out of
the income derived therefrom.

The fair value of the Awarded Shares awarded was based on the
market value of the Company’s shares at the grant date and the
Group recognised an equity-settled share-based payment expense
of HK$1,177,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
HK$838,000).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 — - —#+—-HA=+—H

29. RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

(CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, 474,000 Awarded Shares
(2021: 573,000 Awarded Shares) were vested and transferred to
certain executive directors of the Company and certain employees
of the Group. During the year ended 31 December 2022, upon the
vesting of certain Awards Shares, the carrying value of the shares held
under the restricted share award scheme account of the Company
was reduced by HK$1,057,000 (2021: HK$1,176,000) and such amount
was transferred to the share-based payment reserve of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Trustee acquired for
the Award Scheme 506,000 ordinary shares (2021:1,000,000 ordinary
shares) of the Company through purchases on the open market at
a total cost (including related transaction costs) of approximately
HK$1,250,000 (2021: HKS2,707,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2022, 1,170,000 Awarded Shares
were awarded to certain executive directors of the Company and
certain employees of the Group, which will be transferred to the
employees at nil consideration, subject to the satisfaction of certain
service conditions, upon vesting in various tranches, with the last
tranches ending on 30 June 2025 (2021: Nil).

29. HRFIR 7R B & (&)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 - —F+_-A=+—H

29. RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME 29. BR&IR D REEE (&)
(CONTINUED)
The following Awarded Shares were awarded and outstanding under FR - BERBFIEEERERTEZ
the Award Scheme during the year: HERGHAT
2022 2021
—E-C —E-—fF
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
fair value unvested fair value unvested
at grant date Awarded at grant date Awarded
per share Shares per share Shares
R A R B
R mE AGERRE Sk meE 58 22
THAFE BHEE FHRFE Rin#E
HK$ HKS
BT BT
At 1 January R—A—H 2.59 1,082,000 257 1,655,000
Awarded during the year FREL 2.24 1,170,000 - =
Vested during the year ENGE 2,55 (474,000) 253 (573,000)
Forfeited during the year ERRIK 2.72 (190,000) = =
At 31 December RTZRA=+—8 2.33 1,588,000 259 1,082,000
Out of the total of 13,635,000 Award Shares awarded, 4,550,000 ER T 246 $£13,6350000% 82 B 15+ -
Awarded Shares were awarded to the executive directors of the B AR R AT E =5 1 4,550,000 A% 22 E)
Company. BAp
At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company RHELERBHRERER - NARIRIEE
had 1,588,000 Awarded Shares unvested under the Award Scheme, BIaT &M R 5B 2 SRR D E B A 1,588,000
which represented approximately 0.6% of the Company's ordinary B IEARAIRZEZERTERRA
shares in issue at that date. 0.6% °
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30.

31.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 126 to 127 of the financial
statements.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations for wholly-foreign-
owned enterprises, a portion of the profits of the Group's subsidiaries,
which are established in the PRC, has been transferred to reserve
funds which are restricted as to use. The subsidiaries are not required
to effect any further transfer when the amount of the reserve funds
reaches 50% of their registered capital.

The Group’s goodwill reserve represents goodwill which arose on
the acquisition of certain subsidiaries in prior years and remains
eliminated against consolidated reserves, as further explained in note
16 to the financial statements.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-

of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$2,584,000 (2021:
HK$17,034,000) and HKS$2,584,000 (2021: HK$17,034,000),
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for properties.

30.

31.

(G
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31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 31. MEBERERME (&)
OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) METEMEEZAEED

activities

Lease liabilities

HEAE
HK$’000
FHET

2022 —E-—
At 1 January 2022 RZE-_—_F—H—H 18,248
Changes from financing cash flows BEREREL (7,345)
New leases FHE 2,584
Remeasurement on lease modifications HESB 2EHT= (1,541)
Interest expense BRI 397
Exchange realignment PE 7, 3% (316)
At 31 December 2022 R-ZE__F£+-_A=+—H 12,027

Lease liabilities

HEBE
HKS$'000
THT
2021 —EB=-—F
At 1 January 2021 RZE=——F—H—H 7,038
Changes from financing cash flows MEREREH (7,677)
New leases e 17,034
Remeasurement on lease modifications HEST 2EHT= 1,146
Interest expense Ip=N 245
Exchange realignment bE 5 = 462
At 31 December 2021 R-ZTE-_—F+-_fF=+—H 18,248
(c) Total cash outflow for leases () HEHABSRE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of FARESRERNEERRS T
cash flows is as follows: AR
2022 2021
—==-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FABTT
Within operating activities KEEEN 649 594
Within financing activities BMEEBHA 7,345 7,677
7,994 8,271
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32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities in connection
with certain guarantees not provided for in the financial statements

were as follows:

Guarantees have been given to certain banks by the Company for
performance bonds/guarantees issued by the banks in relation
to certain contracts undertaken by the Group amounting to
HK$31,700,000 as at 31 December 2022 (2021: HK$31,700,000), of
which HK$20,694,000 (2021: HK$21,116,000) was utilised as at 31

December 2022.

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions, arrangements and balances detailed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had the following

transactions with related parties during the year:

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

Short term employee benefits

Post-employment benefits BB 1248 A
Total compensation paid to key management
personnel & 4818

These included continuing connected transactions exempt from the
connected transaction requirements under Rule 14A.95 of the Listing

Rules.

Further details of directors’emoluments are included in note 8 to the

financial statements.

EHEE RN
Equity-settled share-based payment expense AR E LARR (0 2 S B2

XNEEERABZ

32.

33.

HAREE

RIBEHEEER  LARNRMBHRRAE
HEEEETREREBARBENAT

R-BE-_—F+-_A=+—H' ' AQAE
RAEERZE 2ETEOMBSHERITE
HZBORE ERAETETIRES
231,700,000/ 7T (== = —4F : 31,700,000
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 34. I EZDE
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial ZHAGBETAERNRERBLEER KA
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (ERONNE
2022 —E-—
Financial assets MBEE
Financial assets
at fair value
through
profit or loss
RAFERLER
ARZHMBEE
Mandatorily Financial
designed assets at
assuch amortised cost Total
iz 2 18 85 B A
MEEE ARZHBEEE HEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET
Trade receivables FEUE 5 BR K = 50,916 50,916
Deposits and other receivables & & HE b FE Y GRIE - 5,504 5,504
Financial assets at fair value through EAFELESARZ
profit or loss S EE 6,305 - 6,305
Pledged bank deposits EERITIER - 1,020 1,020
Cash and cash equivalents ReRERBCEE - 309,773 309,773
6,305 367,213 373,518
Financial liabilities ke s

Financial
liabilities
at amortised

cost

2 8 85 B A

ARZHBEER

HK$’000

FHET

Trade payables ERE SRR 17,034
Other payables o FE N TR IR 29,067
Financial liabilities included in accruals FTAERTRIB L MG EE 8,172
Lease liabilities HEAE 12,027
66,300
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B 7S R 2R BT oE (4
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(CONTINUED)

2021

Financial assets

Trade receivables

Deposits and other receivables
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss
Pledged bank deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

Trade payables
Other payables

Financial liabilities included in accruals

Lease liabilities

FEd E 5 AR

BE M H A W RIR
BATFELEaARZ
MBEE
EHEIRRITER
ReRkERREEE

34. BT RS E (H)

—_E-—F
MHEE
Financial assets
at fair value
through
profit or loss
BATELER
AR B EE
Mandatorily Financial
designed assets at
as such amortised cost
5 il TR GH AR AR
WMtIEE ABRZMBEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
- 45601 45,601
- 4,174 4174
9,646 - 9,646
- 1,193 1,193
= 298,397 298,397
9,646 349,365 359,011
BHaE

FE B Z B
H{th &1 5K IR
AR RIEZ BB AE
HERE

MR EER AR

Financial
liabilities

at amortised
cost

Y2 5 SH X R
AR BaE
HK$'000

TATT

11,257
27,327

8,250
18,248

65,082

—T— —FFIR
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the
Group’s financial assets and liabilities reasonably approximated to
their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged bank deposits, trade receivables, current portion
of deposits and other receivables, trade payables, current portion of
other payables and financial liabilities included in accruals reasonably
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments or the effect of discounting is not
material.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used
to estimate the fair values for certain financial instruments:

The fair values of the non-current deposits and other payables have
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using
rates currently available for instruments with similar terms. In the
opinion of the directors, the fair values of these financial instruments
reasonably approximate to their carrying amounts.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted
market prices.

The fair value of a club membership debenture included in debt
investment is based on available market prices.
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35. FAIRVALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of

the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:
As at 31 December 2022

Quoted prices
in active
markets

35. MR TEAEAFERAFESER
B (E)

DFESRRE
TRERAEEEBTAZATENES
MR

BRAVEFEZEE
R-_ZE-_—F+-_F=+—H

Fair value measurement using
AFERANTEENE
Significant
observable

inputs
(Level 2)
EATEE
BAHE
($218)
HK$'000
TR

Significant
unobservable
inputs

(Level 3)
EARTBE
BAHE
($38)
HK$'000
THEIT

(Level 1)
EIE

iz RE
(E18)
HK$'000
THT

ag
HK$'000
TER

Financial assets at fair value through profit orloss:  RA FELEBFEAR 2
RBEE -
Listed equity investments ERRARE 4,205 - - 4,205
Debt investment BEHERE - 2,100 - 2,100
4,205 2,100 - 6,305

As at 31 December 2021

R—ZE-_—4F+-_A=+—H

Fair value measurement using
RTEFAUTREANE
Significant
observable
inputs

(Level 2)
EAUER
BARE
(F28)
HK$'000
THEL

Quoted prices
in active
markets
(Level 1)

R
miZRE
(E18)
HK$'000
TET

Significant
unobservable
inputs

(Level 3)
BEANATEER
BAHE
(£3E)
HK$'000
TET

it
HK$000
TAT

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: & AT EZLEBHAE 2
RBEE -
Listed equity investments FRRAEEE 7,546 = = 7,546
Debt investment BRRE - 2,100 = 2,100
7,546 2,100 - 9,646

Bt X EE BB A A —EB-FER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 —ZE——#+—-A=+—H

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Liabilities measured at fair value:

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value

as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for

both financial assets and financial liabilities (2021: Nil).

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments include lease liabilities,
pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities
such as trade receivables, deposits and other receivables, trade and
other payables, financial liabilities included in accruals, and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, which mainly arise directly

from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, equity price risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for

managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A R @ B

Interest rate risk

36. EMEEAEREXK (&)

The Group'’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group's cash at banks and bank deposits with

floating interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact on

floating rate bank balances and bank deposits).

AEBAEHISN RS MAT 2 B E
ZEANEEFRNRITRBZBF XS
ZRERRITERER -

TERBIVEF AR BB HTE L ER
T A BB AR GEBF %

RITAE R MRTT 17 3P
AT RE IR

SR8 HHEL

882 GRS -

Increase/

Increase/
(decrease) in

(decrease) in
basis points

e,
OB A)

profit

before tax
BRBE A= R
2, i)

2022 —®——

Hong Kong dollar ABIT (50)
United States dollar ETT (50)
RMB ARE (50)
Hong Kong dollar BIT 50
United States dollar ETT 50
RMB AR 50

Increase/
(decrease) in
basis points
e,
(B 4)

2021 —B-—F
Hong Kong dollar BIT (25)
United States dollar EV (25)
RMB AR (25)
Hong Kong dollar BT 25
United States dollar Eiv 25
RMB AR 25

MR EER AR

HK$’000
TERT

(433)
(856)
(261)

433
856
261

Increase/
(decrease)

in profit
before tax

B 56 AT A

2, (R

HK$'000
TET

245



246

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 - —F+_-A=+—H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. MEREERFRRBE(A)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Interest rate risk (continued) R = = b ()
There is no impact on the Group’s equity except on the retained BRARBB IR AN - AR E R B
profits. g-
Foreign currency risk Sk L B
The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures AEEEHRZZEERR - ItRBEZER
mainly arise from revenue generated and/or costs and expenses BEREESBUEAZEMIEEEAINE
incurred by operating units in currencies other than the units’ BRI ZWBMAR,REEZRARAY -
functional currencies.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of TRESEMEEMEREFIE BN
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB T AEBRREPHEEEBUARKES
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s BRI T ARTE 4+ 2 BRI AR A8 AR
profit before tax arising from RMB denominated financial instruments. BEIEERAI g S IR B ) 2 BRI R ©

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
exchange in profit
rate before tax

ExtH BR Bt Al 73 7
(FB2) 48 GRD)

% HKS'000
FHT
2022 —g——
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB ST H AR B 5 (660)
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB WA THARSHE (5) 660
2021 —E-—F
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB i H AR E 5 (667)
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB fis 7 7T H A REFAE (5) 667
There is no impact on the Group’s equity except on the retained BRARBB IR AN - AR E R B A
profits. &2

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk

The Group primarily trades on credit terms with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that most customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are to a certain extent subject to
certain credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored by the Group’s management on an ongoing basis.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure
to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly
based on past due information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at
31 December. The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for
financial assets.

As at 31 December 2022

36. B EAREEEERBE (&)

FERR
AEEEBRRT R
= R - R BOK

=R=§ KTALTTX
KEBD Btz = EIR T T2

.
B o

EERBRRELEBRERER

TEEE/TEBAKEIETT BERHEEEER
SEERR  TEABAREHSEE

(ﬁﬂﬁiFTETﬁE BERAREHHER

TRREMEHN) ARt -_A=t+—H
FRBMEEERDE 2N E R
BEEMKREAE -

R-ZF-_—_F+-_H=1+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A F&
FEBR 2HAMEEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F—HR E-ER F=ER BtrE wE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THET THERT THERT TRT
Trade receivables* JEW B 5 8RR - - - 54,839 54,839
Contract assets BREE - - - 25,301 25,301
Deposits and other e RAMEKR
receivables — Normal** FRIA— IEF* 5,504 - - - 5,504
Pledged bank deposits B RITIFHK
— Not yet past due — [# R 80 EA 1,020 - - - 1,020
Cash and cash equivalents  HRE&RERE
— Not yet past due & E — W A 180 5P 309,773 - - - 309,773
316,297 - - 80,140 396,437

Bt X EE BB A A —EB-FER

E&%Z’**E&

RHZEP E
AXREELHABBE TEEERER - It
Sh o BIRESHRZ MR AN EBEE BB
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 - —F+_-A=+—H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. BEREEEERBE (&)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Credit risk (continued) EER (&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) BEaREBRAFEHTEREBE (F&)
As at 31 December 2021 R-ZE-_—F+-A=+—8H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A 2 &4
EEBE 2 HBEEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F—BER FPEER F=PEER Kl PapzS #aFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FTAT AT FET FHET FTAT
Trade receivables* FEWE 5 BR 5K * - - - 48,778 48778
Contract assets GHEE - - = 25,628 25,628
Deposits and other Re R H b EIK
receivables — Normal** FRIE— IE & * 4,174 = - - 4174
Pledged bank deposits B IRERITIF
~ Not yet past due IR — a1 AN 26 H 1,193 = = - 1,193
Cash and cash equivalents R & MERIE L
— Not yet past due & — i A s HR 298,397 - - - 298,397
303,764 - - 74,406 378,170
& For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach & RAEEERABEAEAERENERE
for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in SRR ERNBEERENERRERTE
note 19 to the financial statements. RERMITE19
** The credit quality of the deposits and other receivables is considered to be = 3R & K H b FE Ug 3038 7k 80 2 1 3 A R
“normal” when they are not past due and there is no information indicating RAMBEER VS HREEERRKIE
that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial o BIRIERe REMEBWRFIENEER
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is considered EZRIEE] -BH - AIRMBEENE
to be ‘doubtful” BEEEZAIRE] -
Since the Group primarily trades on credit terms with recognised and HRASEEZRRIREERTFZE=
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for collateral. FREERIENTRS  WEFTEMRM -
Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/counterparty. EEETRBAEERF HFHEHERE -
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had certain REREPREEER  ARASEREKE S
concentrations of credit risk as 25.5% (2021: 16.9%) of the total trade BRI AAZER B 255% (B = —4F : 16.9%)
receivables of the Group were due from certain departments/units of REWEAFITHRERBF (REEZA
the Government of the HKSAR, the Group’s largest customer. BF)BETEMN B 2RE WAE

AR -EEEETRAR -
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 19 to the
financial statements.

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the
value of individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity price
risk arising from individual equity investments included in financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss — listed equity investments
(note 22) as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. The Group's listed equity
investments are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and are
valued at quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10% change
in the fair values of the Group’s listed equity investments, with all
other variables held constant and before any impact on tax, based on
their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period.

36. EMEEAEREXK (&)

EER kR ()

B 5 BB R A OF 45 B PR IR AR (4D

7 S B R B M 5 5 5 1 2 A MO 2 B
MES BV ERE Eﬁ%#%%ﬁ%
fiEE19 -

N
AR AN 48 L 2 9 £ O B SR RO L 3 38

FBEZECERRAB S 2 A FERE
2R o AEEZ RABERBRRRE =
E__ERF_—Ft_A=1T—HF
ERAFELBERARZHBEE-—LH
AR E (M5 22) 2 @RI BAKRE - A&
B EMBRAREREEBIM LT B
HEMHEEERIRTISRENE -

TREIIEMA HME %ZfﬁﬁT 2 B
TRARFHEMMBZER - UEEEER

B $%@tmﬂx7ﬁ&%ﬁé$&%%ﬂﬁaﬁ%
BHZAFEFEE 0% - HEER 2
BRIRSE o

Carrying Increase/
amount (decrease)
of equity in profit
investments before tax
R ®RE BRBE A F
ZIEREE 8N 0HD)
HKS'000 HK$'000
FHIT T
2022 —E-—
Equity investments listed in Hong Kong: EEB EMZBRAKRE -
— financial assets at fair value through profit or loss —RBRATFELES ARZ
MBEE 4,205 421
2021 —B-—-F
Equity investments listed in Hong Kong: EEB LM ZBRAIEE -
— financial assets at fair value through profit or loss —RBRATFELESARZ
MBEE 7,546 755

There is no impact on the Group's equity except on the retained
profits.

BRIRE R AN - HAEE RS EE AR
2,

iF’J’HHF/\ )Lﬁlﬁﬁi
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. IEAREEEERBE (&)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk REBESRRE
The Group’s objective is to ensure there are adequate funds to meet REBE s BERBEREREHE S AER
its contractual payments for financial liabilities in the short and long HEBMRRAZUBEEGHANR - B8R
term. In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and MBECRRE AEEERRERERE
maintains a level of cash and bank balances, and bank deposits ERAETHREAEEEEMT RS R
deemed adequate by management to finance the Group's operations RITHEERKF AR ERTTF 5K+ WRk 48 A 3R
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Cash flows EMERDERNIFE SREEERE
of the Group are closely monitored by senior management on an FPERAEE 7 RERE

ongoing basis.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end of the RFERBEER  NEBIRES QRN
reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, RENRECHMBEEIRBERAT
is as follows:

2022
—m——

R A p—

3to
(o])] Less than less than 1to

demand 3 months 12 months 5years Total
=F

REREE SR=EA T-@AR —-Z&F mE

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TET TER TEr TET

Trade payables B SRR 16,508 75 451 = 17,034
Other payables H i JE T 508 = 29,067 = = 29,067
Lease liabilities HEBE - 1,631 6,013 4,660 12,304
Financial liabilities included in STAERRIEZ
accruals e’ - 8,172 - - 8,172
Guarantees given to banks for RAEBAZ 2 E
performance bonds/guarantees TEHNELRY
issued in relation to certain RE /R
contracts undertaken by the Group  $R1THR A Z 1R 20,694 - - - 20,694
37,202 38,945 6,464 4,660 87,271
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (continued)

36. EMEEAEREXK (&)

REBETRR (&)

2021
— T
3to
On Less than less than (R)
demand 3 months 12 months 5 years Total
==
BEREE IR=EA +TZEAR —ZE=8fF FkE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHBT FHET FHET FHT
Trade payables e B SRR 10,439 532 286 - 11,257
Other payables B & (S R = 27,327 = = 27,327
Lease liabilities HERE - 1573 6,501 10,443 18517
Financial liabilities included in STAERTRIEZ
accruals g aE = 8250 = = 8,250
Guarantees given to banks for MASERAE S
performance bonds/guarantees FEHEHRELD
issued in relation to certain REE/ERMIA
contracts undertaken by the Group ~ $RfTIR {2 &R 21,116 = = = 21,116
31,555 37,682 6787 10443 86,467
Capital management EXAEE

The primary objectives of the Group'’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’value.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
for managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of shareholders’
equity.

AEEEAERZIZAMNEAREARAE
SERE RN A RFBBEARLLE
AR H XM M ABR G REAEE -

REBRBSER L EEREEEE Y
R THRMAREREANGERE RE
AR o AN & (B A] LA iB B AR R B
2B MR EBEE AN EITIAR N
RENARELRLERE BE_T-__FK
—E-—HE+-_A=+—HILFEER ' K
SEZEAEEBE  BRNEFITES

AEEZBEABPARRERTDAMK °

g ZmEEERA A B CFER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B RS R AR B AL (4

31 DECEMBER 2022 - —F+_-A=+—H

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company

at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investments in subsidiaries

CURRENT ASSETS
Prepayments

Tax recoverable

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade payables, other payables and accruals

NET CURRENT ASSETS

Net assets

EQUITY
Issued capital
Share premium account

Shares held under the restricted share award

scheme
Share-based payment reserve (note)
Retained profits (note)

Proposed final and special dividends (note)

Total equity

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

37. ARB P B EK

RBERAEEEBARATBRRAKRZE

B
2022 2021
== —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
FRBEE
R B R RIEE 186,614 171,029
REBEE
TE{ FIE 336 311
AlREFIA 2 =
RekERBEEEE 1,163 1,256
MEEERE 1,501 1,567
REBAE
JEE SRR - H e IR
N FE T RIE 476 497
RBEEFE 1,025 1,070
BEFE 187,639 172,099
-
BT AR 24,949 24,949
& 15 & (B BR 53,104 53,104
RIEER IR, EEEEFEE 2
&1 (6,204) 6,011)
A&7 1~ SR e e (B 5E) 5,455 5335
REB & (FE5E) 79,453 67,542
R R B R B A% B (B 5E) 30,882 27,180
B 187,639 172,099

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited




253

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2022 —E -~ +_A=+—H

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 37. XX FHHMR K (&)
COMPANY (CONTINUED)
Note: MIEE -
A summary of the Company’s other reserves and proposed final and special ARFHFHERBERARSNREBENT :

dividends is as follows:

Other reserves
Hitb#E
Proposed
Share-based final and
payment Retained special

reserve profits dividends Total
g BOR AR &
A1 R E B F HRIRE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET

At 1 January 2021 RZT=—_—F—A—H 5673 69,597 29,702 104,972
Profit for the year N A - 40,012 - 40,012
Vesting of shares held under the restricted ARG SRR EITE T
share award scheme f& 17 5% 8 (1,176) - - (1,176)
Share award arrangements A& 17 B2 Eh 22 HE 838 - - 838
Final 2020 dividend declared ER-ZF_TFRARE - 42 (29,702) (29,744
Interim 2021 dividend T —FFRERKRE = (14,845) = (14,845)
Proposed final 2021 dividend BER-TZ - —FREARE - (27,180) 27,180 =
At 31 December 2021 and at 1 January 2022 R-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—8kK
R=ZZE=—_—_F—H—H 5,335 67,542 27,180 100,057
Profit for the year NEEmF - 58,902 - 58,902
Vesting of shares held under the restricted BRI 2@ T EIE T
share award scheme f& 17 &5 B (1,057) - - (1,057)
Share award arrangements A% 17 B2 Eh 22 HE 1,177 - - 1,177
Final 2021 dividend declared BER-ZEZ—FREARE - (43) (27,180) (27,223)
Interim 2022 dividend —TE - _FRHRE - (16,066) - (16,066)
Proposed final and special 2022 dividends BT —FREARFRE - (30,882) 30,882 -
At 31 December 2022 R-—ZE-_—_F+=-_A=+—H 5,455 79,453 30,882 115,790
38. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 38. #HLEMB®RE
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by EZeRN T =F=-RA -t HHERK
the board of directors on 20 March 2023. BB A TR o

Bt X EE BB A A B CFER
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

/e

31 DECEMBER 2022 -+ _-A=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Location

1. Units 1,2 and 3 on 11" Floor
Westlands Centre
No. 20 Westlands Road
Quarry Bay
Hong Kong

2. Unit No. 2601 on Level 26
South Tower
Guangzhou World Trade Centre Complex
Nos. 371-375 Huanshi East Road
Dongshan District
Guangzhou
Guangdong Province
PRC

ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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Long term lease

RHHEE

Medium term lease

RHEE

Attributable
interest of the

Group
rEEEN
EZAIH
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100%
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FFEHBESE

AT RAKERAERAEAVRERZEENRE
ENBEZHRE  DRBACTEZLERM
BHRE YOBEBEHSHIE - WHESL T
RSB HRREPEAED

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial
statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out below. This summary
does not form part of the audited financial statements.

RESULTS

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=+—-HLEE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—2-C “FT--F —EF-TE —FT-NF —F)\%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAET FET FRET FET
REVENUE A 268,719 265,504 256,265 275,893 281427
Cost of sales and services $HE R ARFE AR (123,719) (113,073) (111,477) (120,639) (121,492)
Gross profit EF 145,000 152431 144,788 155,254 159,935
Otherincome and gains, et E At A K Wizt /% 58 13,642 5,367 22,279 7,875 10,084
Foreign exchange differences, [ X Z %8/ % %8
net 866 (403) (625) 335 329
Fairvalue gains/(losses), net: A F{EUE,/ (BIE) F58
Financial assets at fair value BAFESERAEZ
through profit or loss BT AE (2,332) 163 (2,755) 323 (384)
Investment properties REWE (80) 500 (941) 3,626 4406
Selling and distribution HERDHAL
expenses (32,153) (33,068) (32812) (36,631) (35,358)
General and administrative —R RIS F 5
expenses, net (62,490) (60,626) (60,906) (63,455) (57,788)
Finance cost B%ER (397) (245) (1,155) (1,102) -
Other expenses Hfth 7 %2 (10,624) (6,492) (6,233) (6,024) (6,024)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX MRt A& A 51,432 57,627 61,640 60,201 75,200
Income tax expense FTSBif X (4,467) (4,634) (1,726) (4,308) (7172)
PROFIT FOT THE YEAR REERF 46,965 52,993 59914 55,893 68,028
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: BUF AL :
Owners of the parent ISUNGIE =N 47,011 53,844 60,125 55,893 68,028
Non-controlling interests FEFE 1 s (46) (851) 211) = =
46,965 52,993 59914 55,893 68,028

MR EER AR

B _FER
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY (CONTINUED)

EEHBEHMEER)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—~H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—E-C — - —ZT-FTF “—FT-—AF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FBT FHBT FHET FHBT
TOTAL ASSETS EEHE 678,490 681,297 667,268 633,965 631,345
TOTAL LIABILITIES aE4E (155,399) (157,668) (151,709) (152,586) (153,281)
523,091 523,629 515,559 481,379 478,064

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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